
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Thursday, 21 April 2016, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Ben Berry 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Stan Collins 

Joss Curwen 

Pru Jupe (Vice-Chairman) 

Kevin Lancaster 

Ian Stewart 

 

 
 
 
Tuesday, 12 April 2016 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Sandip Mahajan 

 

Telephone: 01539 793188 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 14 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 3 December 2016 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on 
this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as 
well as any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration 
of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she 
is advised to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  APPOINTMENT OF THE AUDIT PANEL   

 Subject to any necessary changes after Annual Council, to appoint an 
Audit Panel and agree a meeting date to review the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2015/16. 

 

6  WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16  15 - 18 

 To review the Audit Committee’s Work Programme for 2015/16.  

7  WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17  19 - 22 

 To review the Audit Committee’s Work Programme for 2016/17.  

8  REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND 
RISK PROCESS  

23 - 48 

 To note the review of the Performance Management Framework and Risk 
Process.  
 

 



9  ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2015/16  49 - 86 

 To adopt the Accounting Policies for the closure of the 2015/16 Accounts.  

10  INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT  

87 - 106 

 To note progress made against Internal Audit Report Recommendations 
and the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan for 2015/16. 

 

11  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (No. 4)  107 - 118 

 To note a summary of the work carried out by Internal Audit and details of 
the progress made on the delivery of the approved Audit Plan for the 
fourth period of 2015/16 including Internal Audit reports. 

 

 a  USE OF AGENCY AND INTERIM WORKERS  119 - 124 

 b  TREASURY MANAGEMENT  125 - 130 

12  EXTERNAL AUDIT CERTIFICATION REPORT 2014/15  131 - 134 

 To consider the findings set out in the External Audit Certification Report 
for 2014/15. 

 

13  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16  135 - 154 

 To consider the planned External Audit work for the financial statements 
and Value for Money Conclusion and note the findings from the interim 
audit work. 

 

14  EXTERNAL AUDIT FEE LETTER FOR 2016/17  155 - 158 

 To note the fee set out in the External Audit Fee Letter for 2016/17.  

15  EXTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT  159 - 172 

 To note progress made on the external audit and on current issues for 
local government. 

 

16  CHANGES TO ARRANGEMENTS FOR APPOINTMENT OF 
EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

173 - 180 

 To approve that the Council indicates interest in the Sector Led Body 
approach for the appointment of External Auditors. 
 

 

17  AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16  181 - 192 

 To consider the Audit Committee’s draft Annual Report for 2015/16.  

18  AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  193 - 200 

 To review the updated Audit Committee Risk Register.  

19  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To receive a verbal report from the Assistant Director (Resources) and 
Section 151 Officer. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number). 

There are no items in this part of the agenda.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



16 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the 
Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Thursday, 3 December 2015, at 7.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
Pru Jupe (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Ben Berry 

Joss Curwen 
Kevin Lancaster 

Ian Stewart 
 

  
 

Officers 
 

Alan Davis Principal Housing Solutions and Homelessness Officer 

Sandip Mahajan 

Shelagh McGregor 

Democratic Services and Scrutiny Officer 

Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

Paul Mountford Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer 

Simon Rowley Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 

 
AUD/27 MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 23 September 2015. 
 

AUD/28 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that Councillor Ian Stewart declared an interest in 
Minute AUD/33 (2015/16). 
 

AUD/29 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no items in Part II of the Agenda. 
 

AUD/30 WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16  
 
The Committee reviewed their Work Programme for 2015/16. The scheduled 
review of the Audit Committee’s Risk Register had been moved to the April 
meeting to ensure each meeting was practically balanced. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme for 2015/16 be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



17 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/31 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer presented the Strategic Risks 
Register update for quarter 2 of 2015/16. This was a full Register including 
strategic risks above the ‘line of appetite’ (outside acceptable tolerance levels) and 
below the ‘line of appetite’, (within acceptable tolerance).  
 
Mitigation actions, which were considered by Senior Management to reduce the 
likelihood and impact of a risk above the ‘line of appetite’, were listed in the 
Register with due dates (for implementing actions) and reviewed quarterly. Risks 
below the ‘line of appetite’ were reviewed annually.  
 
Risks being managed through mitigation would come off the Register (archived) if 
they were no longer a risk. Operational risks were controlled at service and 
management levels. 
 
Members sought clarification on the proposed reduction in likelihood and impact of 
Risk 3 (Business Continuity). It was explained that each service had local business 
continuity plans which were reviewed and linked to the IT Recovery Plan and 
Strategic Business Continuity Plan. Both of these Plans were in place and the 
Strategic Plan would be reviewed. This risk was potentially moving towards only 
requiring annual review. Members accepted that the impact level could be reduced 
but concerns were still expressed that events outside immediate control meant a 
reasonable likelihood of this risk happening. 
  
It was noted that one of the mitigations (resilient internet connection) was due. It 
was thought this was on track but would be checked and likelihood concerns 
would be considered for the quarter three review of risks.   
 
Similar concerns were expressed with Risk 6 (Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP)) that Government could reduce funding more than expected, e.g. 
uncertainty over future New Homes Bonus funding and levels of business rate 
receipts. The assessment had been based on a robust MTFP which incorporated 
a track record of delivering savings but would be reviewed for quarter three.  
 
Members felt that it was useful seeing the full Register and mitigation actions.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the Risk Management update be noted; and  
 
(2) for the quarter 3 report, officers be asked to review the likelihood of Risks 3 
(Business Continuity) and 6 (Medium Term Financial Plan) and update the 
mitigation status of Risk 3 with respect to the resilient internet connection. 
 

AUD/32 INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) presented a progress 
report on implementation of Internal Audit recommendations and the Annual 

Page 6



18 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

Governance Statement (AGS) Action Plan. The Action Plan had proved an 
effective monitoring tool that had significantly increased progress with 
implementing recommendations to over 95%. 
 
There were 19 Internal Audit recommendations of which 16 had future completion 
dates; of the three recommendations due, all three had been completed. 
 
The AGS Action Plan contained three longer-term actions and progress would be 
reported back to the Audit Committee in April 2016 as part of the updated Annual 
Governance process. 
 
The report also covered managing the risk of fraud and corruption in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice and local codes. Six areas had been identified which 
required some improvement of which two had been actioned and previously 
reported (Minute AUD/65 (2014/15) refers). 
 
Members noted the good progress made including the high rate of 
recommendations implemented. They considered whether an even higher target 
could be set but felt that the ethos was in the right direction of continuously raising 
standards.  
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made with implementing Internal Audit 
recommendations and progress made against the Annual Governance Statement 
Action Plan and Fraud and Corruption be noted. 
 

AUD/33 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (NO. 3)  
 
Note - Councillor Ian Stewart declared an Other Registrable Interest in 
relation to the Homelessness Service as he held political responsibility at 
Cumbria County Council for temporary accommodation. 
 
33.1 PROGRESS REPORT 
The Head of Internal Audit presented this report which summarised the work 
carried out by Internal Audit and progress made on the delivery of the approved 
Audit Plan in period three of 2015/16. Audit staff had been allocated for all the 
planned audits. Six audits were in progress, including two due to be finalised, and 
would be reported to the Committee at its April 2016 meeting. This included the 
audit of Bereavement Services (listed in error as April 2015).  
 
Five audits had been completed; three had been considered previously and two 
were being considered at this meeting. A quick-fire scrutiny of the current Digital 
Platform work, in its early stages, had taken place with feedback to ensure it was 
developing effectively. It was not proposed to present a report to the Audit 
Committee. Members queried what would happen to the 15 audit days set aside 
for this work in the Audit Plan. It was explained that the allocated days could be 
held in reserve for any contingency work but this would be checked.  
 
Internal Audit’s performance related to ensuring that the Audit Plan was on track. 
Members requested that managers be thanked for helping with this. 
 

Page 7



19 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

The Head of Internal Audit outlined the findings and recommendations of the two 
recently completed audits. The scope of each audit was listed in the reports. 
 
33.2 HOMELESSNESS SERVICE - SOCIAL LETTINGS SCHEME 
This audit of the Homelessness Service’s Social Lettings Scheme, leasing 
properties from private landlords for renting to tenants (clients) in need, had 
reviewed the effectiveness of the Scheme, including arrangements for sub-letting, 
rents, private landlords and void management.  
 
A partial assurance had been given with one high priority recommendation, seven 
medium priority recommendations and two advisory recommendations. The 
strengths of the service were also recognised, in particular being an innovative 
approach.  
 
The audit had recognised that the accommodation was supposed to support 
tenants in the short-term but people were staying for some time. The high priority 
recommendation concerned long-term planning for wider objectives and benefits. 
This including ensuring that tenants were supported to fulfil their obligations and 
opportunities then sought for making their tenancy more long-term permanent 
accommodation. This meant that the scheme should evolve with existing landlords 
agreeing to house satisfactory tenants beyond the short-term and new landlords 
being encouraged to participate in the scheme.  
 
The medium priority recommendations concerned introducing performance targets 
for monitoring and being reported upon; making accommodation agreements more 
legally robust; checking the quality of housing including energy efficiency before 
signing agreements; arrangements for checking rent receipts and ‘write-offs’; 
robust arrangements for regular inspections of properties; clear breakdown of fees 
methodology; and cost recovery from tenants for damage.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit explained that good work was going on with more 
comprehensive approaches needed for various areas such as documentation. 
This would help ensure that the Council would be less open to any legal challenge.  
 
Management had responded positively with an action plan to implement the 
recommendations within the first half of 2016. The Principal Housing Solutions and 
Homelessness Officer confirmed that the audit had been useful and officers were 
working on delivering actions by the end of April 2016.  
 
Members felt that executive summary audit reports were fine when substantial and 
reasonable assurance levels were being delivered. However, for partial or lower 
assurance then detailed more comprehensive reports were needed. This detail 
would put recommendations into context, e.g. recognising effective wider 
performance of busy services and some actions could be relatively simple. 
Officers and Internal Audit would develop appropriate reporting.  
 
33.3 STREET SCENE SERVICE - STREET CLEANING  
This audit of Street Cleaning had reviewed the effectiveness of the Service 
including education initiatives; enforcement work; policies, procedures and 
planning; and performance.  

Page 8



20 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

 
A reasonable assurance had been given with two medium priority 
recommendations and two advisory recommendations. The strengths of the 
service were also recognised.  
 
The medium priority recommendations concerned developing a more 
comprehensive Enforcement Plan, incorporating an education plan, with precise 
aims, targets and budgets; to improve outcomes and secure efficiencies linked to 
the Council Plan. Effective education initiatives would lessen the need for 
enforcement. Service plans also needed to refer more to enforcement and 
education.     
 
Management had responded positively with an action plan to implement the 
recommendations Members queried if there was a wider problem across the 
Council concerning documenting processes and procedures. It was explained that 
there were some council-wide rules such as the Constitution and service-specific 
areas. The Assistant Director (Neighbourhood Services) explained that it had been 
a useful audit of a busy service and robust processes and procedures did exist. 
The service would consider incorporating the recommendations into the existing  
Action Plan. The External Auditor noted that it was important to have robust 
processes and procedures especially if restructuring was taking place.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the progress made against the agreed 2015/16 Audit Plan be noted;  
 
(2) Officers and Internal Audit be requested to develop appropriate audit 
reporting based on assurance levels; and 
 
(3) the detailed Homelessness Service (Social Lettings Scheme) with progress 
made be reported to the April 2016 meeting of the Audit Committee.  
 

AUD/34 EXTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2014/15  
 
The External Auditor presented the statutory Annual Audit Letter which 
summarised work undertaken over the last year. An unqualified opinion had been 
made for both the financial statements audit and value for money conclusion 
(economic, efficient and effective use of resources).  
 
The certification of the Council’s Housing Benefits claim had now been completed 
resulting in a qualified opinion due to some errors noted during detailed testing. 
Returns had been submitted to the Department for Work and Pensions. The 
findings would be reported to the April 2016 meeting of the Committee. 
 
Members thanked Finance staff for their efforts. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Audit Letter for 2014/15 be noted 
 
 
 

Page 9



21 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/35 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The External Auditor presented the regular progress report of areas of work 
undertaken and planned over the next year. The Accounts Audit Plan would be 
presented at the April 2016 meeting of the Committee. The Plan would detail work 
required for the audit of the Council’s 2015/16 financial statements as well as an 
assessment of the Council’s value for money (economic, efficient and effective use 
of resources). The certification of the Council’s Housing Benefits claim was 
completed resulting in a qualified opinion and the findings would be reported to the 
April 2016 meeting of the Committee.  
 
Groundwork would include looking at financial systems, internal controls, 
accounting issues and robust testing. This would allow 11 sample months to be 
tested and, in due course, the final month. Early discussions were taking place 
with Finance to ensure good preparation for the advent of future earlier accounts 
reporting requirements.  
 
Alongside this was the regular topical update exploring major challenges and 
opportunities for local government. They had also produced some guidance 
documents to complement their update.  
 
The ‘Code of Audit Practice’ was produced by the National Audit Office (NAO) 
covering how auditors should undertake their functions for local authorities. The 
NAO planned to supplement the Code with detailed guidance in specific areas 
which had been produced in November 2015 following consultation. The guidance 
included definitions of audit ‘assurance’ opinions and ‘proper arrangements’ for 
securing value for money. This would supersede the ‘economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in use of resources’ approach to a risk-based approach focusing on 
ensuring informed decision-making was taking place; sustainable resource 
deployment; and effective partnership working. The External Auditor was 
reviewing the NAO’s new guidance and would provide a more detailed report to 
the Audit Committee in due course.  
 
‘Making devolution work: a practical guide for local leaders’ outlined the 
ingredients of making successful devolution bids covering what could an authority 
do differently and better; what precise powers were needed; what economic 
geography would be most effective; and what governance would be needed to 
give confidence to central government. Alongside this the report covered plans for 
local authorities to gain new powers; retain local taxes including business rates; 
and improve the efficiency of council tax collection.  
 
‘Turning up the volume: the Business Location Index’ aimed to help local 
authorities and other stakeholders secure greater levels of inward investment 
(growth) by identifying key factors such as economic performance, people and 
skills and environmental and infrastructure characteristics of an area. 
 
‘Knowing the Ropes - Audit Committee Effectiveness Review’ looked at ways in 
which audit committees could be effective role as part of an organisation’s 
governance and how they were perceived. ‘Supporting members in governance’ 
complemented the Effectiveness Review guidance. Members queried the 

Page 10



22 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

reference in the Effectiveness guidance as to the model size of an audit committee 
being 3-5 members. It was explained that the guidance actually covered a number 
of sectors so was fairly broad and ‘one size didn’t fit all’. It was noted that the Audit 
Committee had grown to reflect increased responsibilities.  
 
Another significant area was the need for local authorities to produce, by 2017, 
plans for new homes to help deliver national build targets by 2020. The Right to 
Buy Scheme had been extended nationally for social housing tenants. Local 
authorities and housing associations would also be expected to build starter 
homes for which funding was available.  
 
RESOLVED – That the progress report and summary of emerging national issues 
be noted. 
 

AUD/36 REVIEW OF THE LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE  
 
The Financial Services Manager explained that the Local Code of Governance 
had been updated in 2013 and annually reviewed. It had been reviewed again in 
line with best practice and was assessed as ‘fit for purpose’. 
 
The national ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework’ was 
being reviewed and an updated framework with guidance was expected in early 
2016. This could have an impact on the Council’s Governance Framework 
including the Local Code of Governance. Therefore the Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan (Minute AUD/32 (2015/16) refers) recognised the need to 
review local governance arrangements if national guidance changed. This could 
be reported back to the April 2016 meeting of the Audit Committee.  
 
RESOLVED – That the review of the Local Code of Governance be noted. 
 

AUD/37 REVIEW OF THE ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY AND ACTIVITY  
 
The Financial Services Manager explained that the current Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy had been reviewed and merged with the Anti-Bribery Policy to 
create a simpler collective policy set which followed a recommendation from 
Internal Audit. A separate Anti-Money Laundering Policy was being retained as it 
concerned a small group of people. These changes would need to be reflected in 
the Constitution.  
 
Several national and regional bodies were responsible for anti-fraud guidance and 
work. The Council identified best practice and developed local polices and work 
based on this. The recently appointed Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer had a key role 
including working with service managers to develop fraud and corruption risk 
assessments and action plans. Other work would include reference to the National 
Fraud Initiative (biennially) and annual cross-referencing of the Electoral Roll 
(updated 1 December 2015) with the Council Tax Register. 
 
A key element of the various anti-fraud activities was to use the risk-based 
approach focusing on risks identified.  One current high priority risk was tackling 
Right to Buy (RTB) fraud, RTB properties were sold at heavily discounted prices 

Page 11



23 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

so involved a range of fraud such as being purchased through the tenant by third 
parties who didn’t live at the property and provided the funds. Members requested 
how they and the public could provide fraud information and to what phone 
number. Relevant information would be provided to Members.  
 
The review also included a range of statistical indicators of potential fraudulent 
activity. It was noted that the two recent cases of potential fraud had been 
investigated and been unfounded.  
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the amendments to the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy, as shown 
in Appendix 1 to the report, be noted and referred to Council for approval;  
 
(2) the amendments to the Article of the Constitution: Budget and Policy 
Framework, as shown in Appendix 2 to the report, be noted and referred to 
Council for approval; 
 
(3) the Anti-Money Laundering Policy, as shown in Appendix 3 to the report, be 
noted and referred to Council for approval; and 
 
(4) the anti-fraud activity be noted.  
 

AUD/38 REVIEW OF THE WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  
 
The Financial Services Manager explained that the Whistleblowing Policy was 
based on national guidance and best practice and was annually reviewed.  The 
Policy linked closely to the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy (Minute AUD/37 
(2015/16) refers). There had been no incidents reported under the Policy, since it 
had been last reviewed in 2013. No changes were proposed to the Policy. 
 
Members queried if the whistleblowing hotline number was known by staff and if it 
had been used. Whistleblowing training had been provided to managers and 
online training (anti-fraud and whistleblowing) was to be made available to all staff. 
The current Internal Auditor provided the hotline number which would be replaced 
in April 2016 when the new Internal Auditor was appointed. 
 
RESOLVED – That the review of the Whistleblowing Policy, as shown in Appendix 
1 to the report, be noted. 
 

AUD/39 REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
The Financial Services Manager explained that the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) had produced best practice ‘Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police Audit Committees’ for testing the 
effectiveness of audit committees. This comprised of a detailed self-assessment 
checklist and model terms of reference for audit committees.  
 
CIPFA had also produced a model Knowledge and Skills Framework for ensuring 
Audit Committee Members had the right tools. The External Auditor, Grant 

Page 12



24 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

Thornton, had produced an effectiveness guide ‘Knowing the ropes’ (Minute 
AUD/11 (2015/16) refers) which recognised that audit committees had resource 
restrains so needed to be effective including needing to be led by a capable 
chairman.  
 
The overall checklist conclusion was that the Audit Committee was effective.  
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the review and its conclusion that the Committee is operating effectively in 
all material respects be approved, and 
 
(2)  the Skills Framework for Members of the Audit Committee, in Appendix 2 to 
the report, be noted. 
 

AUD/40 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) explained that the 
Council’s Constitution was reviewed annually and aspects relevant to the Audit 
Committee had been considered. A number of proposed changes were 
recommended to increase the efficiency of the procurement process and improve 
internal controls including financial thresholds relevant to Key Decisions made by 
the Executive (Cabinet or delegated to named senior officers) 
 
The Review had focused on financial controls within the Financial and Contract 
Procedure Rules respectively and changes to relevant Articles of the Constitution. 
The two main proposed changes concerned the definition of Key Decisions and 
the procurement process for Tender Acceptances. 
 
Key Decisions were defined as being of potential significant impact on two or more 
Wards (one Ward for two-Member Wards) or cost/save over £60,000. Statutory 
requirements for Key Decisions included publicising decisions at least 28 days 
before they were due for decision. This figure had been set in 2000 when 
executive arrangements had been introduced but the retail price index (inflation) 
had risen by over 50% since which would equate to a Key Decision figure of 
£91,500. Benchmarking had been undertaken with comparable authorities and so 
it was proposed that the Key Decision figure be increased to £100,000.  
 
The second main change was to streamline and make efficient the procurement 
process by removing the need for tender acceptances to be processed through the 
Key Decision process which caused delays (including to bidders) and created 
extra staff costs. This would only apply to non-contentious contracts and be 
subject to proper processes. It was proposed that a single procurement schedule 
was produced, outlining procurement exercises planned for the year, which would 
form part of the annual budget approval process. 
 
Other minor financial and procurement changes were also proposed as contained 
within the report. 
 

Page 13



25 
03.12.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

Members recognised the rationale for the proposed changes but expressed some 
concerns over the proposed higher thresholds for executive or delegated decisions 
before Key Decision requirements applied. It was also suggested that if using the 
consumer price index instead of the RPI then proposed thresholds ought to be 
lower. Whichever inflation measure was used, some of the higher proposed 
thresholds, such as £100,000 for delegated decisions not subject to Key Decision 
requirements, seemed far too high. It was explained that, as well as identifying 
thresholds that were more up-to-date and appropriate, there needed to be a small 
number of clear structured thresholds that were manageable.  
 
For contract overspend reporting requirements, it was explained that the proposed 
requirement to report overspends 10% or more over the contract value from the 
current 3% recognised that actual amounts involved needed to be recognised. 
Sometimes quite small amounts might be reported so the proposal avoided 
relatively minor overspends having to be reported.  
 
Members felt that the proposed threshold increase from £35,000 to £100,000 for 
‘writing off’ debts, before Key Decision requirements applied, was far too high. 
Instead a threshold of £60,000 was recommended. It was explained that this 
essentially concerned bankrupt businesses so the prospects of getting any return 
was limited. Wording would need to reflect that all the accounts for a relevant 
debtor would need to be ‘written off’. Members felt that setting a high threshold 
might imply a struggling local economy. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed amendments to the Constitution, as referred to 
in the appendices to the report, be recommended to Cabinet and Council for 
approval subject to the threshold for ‘writing off’ debts, before Key Decision 
requirements applied, being set at £60,000. 
 

AUD/41 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) reported that a draft 
annual budget report might be prepared for Council on 17 December 2015. The 
Government was expected to announce the financial settlement for local 
government for 2016/17 around then and results would most likely be reported to 
Members after 17 December through a briefing paper.  
 
It was noted that the proportionate allocations of New Homes Bonus funding and 
business rates receipts between the Council at district level and Cumbria County 
Council might change resulting in less budget funds for the Council. It was 
explained that neither of these income streams featured in the base budget.  
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.45 p.m. 

Page 14



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Sandip Mahajan √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √ 

Review progress against work programme Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √    

Audit Committee Annual Report 

(Referral to Council) 
Helen Smith    √ 

Update of progress regarding Internal and 
External Audit recommendations & the Annual 
Governance  Action Plan 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

√ √ √ √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Sandip Mahajan   √  

Review of audit contracts 

(external audit will be dependent upon 
decision by Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Ltd) 

Helen Smith √ (internal audit)    

External Audit 

2014/15 Annual Audit Letter Neil Krajewski   √  

P
age 15

Item
 N

o.6



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

2014/15 Grant Certification Report Neil Krajewski    √ 

2015/16 Opinion Audit Plan Neil Krajewski    √ 

Audit Fee Letter  Neil Krajewski    √ 

External Auditor Update Neil Krajewski √  √ √ 

Appointment of External Auditors Helen Smith    √ 

Internal Audit 

2014/15 Annual Internal Audit Report Niki Riley √    

2015/16 Internal Audit Progress Report 
(including Individual Audit Report and updates 
on high priority recommendations if required) 

Niki Riley √ √ √ √ 

2016/17 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) 

TIAA Ltd    

Defer to July 
2016 due to 
change of 
contractor 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit 
Niki Riley /  

Helen Smith 
√    

Accounts 

P
age 16



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

Review 2014/15 Statement of Accounts 
including the International Auditing Standards 
compliance response 

Helen Smith √    

Progress regarding Final Accounts Audit 
Action Plan 

Helen Smith Incorporated into Internal and External Audit Recommendation Report 

2014/15 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Neil Krajewski  √   

2014/15 Approve Statement of Accounts 
amended following Audit  (if needed) 
(including signature of letter of representation) 

Helen Smith  √   

Review Accounting Policies for 2015/16 
Statement of Accounts 

Pete Notley    √  

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Appoint Panel to review Annual Governance 
Statement 

Sandip Mahajan    √ 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith   √  

P
age 17



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

Review of Performance Management 
Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

 
Review of Risk Management Policy Simon McVey    

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  
Defer to April 

2016 
√ 

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy Helen Smith   √  

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

As required 

 

P
age 18



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Sandip Mahajan √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √ 

Review progress against work programme Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √    

Audit Committee Annual Report 

(Referral to Council) 
Helen Smith    √ 

Update of progress regarding Internal and 
External Audit recommendations & the Annual 
Governance Action Plan 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

√ √ √ √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Sandip Mahajan   √  

External Audit 

2014/15 Annual Audit Letter Neil Krajewski   √  

2014/15 Grant Certification Report Neil Krajewski    √ 

2015/16 Opinion Audit Plan Neil Krajewski    √ 

Audit Fee Letter  Neil Krajewski    √ 

P
age 19

Item
 N

o.7



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

External Auditor Update Neil Krajewski √  √ √ 

Appointment of External Audit Helen Smith As required 

Internal Audit 

2015/16 Annual Internal Audit Report Niki Riley √    

2016/17 Internal Audit Progress Report 
(including Individual Audit Report and updates 
on high priority recommendations if required) 

TIAA Ltd √ √ √ √ 

Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including review 
of Internal Audit Charter) 

TIAA Ltd √ (2016/17)   √ (2017/18) 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith √    

Accounts 

Review 2015/16 Statement of Accounts 
(including the International Auditing Standards 
compliance response) and Annual 
Governance Statement 

Helen Smith √    

2015/16 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Neil Krajewski  √   

P
age 20



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

2015/16 Approve Statement of Accounts 
amended following Audit  (if needed) 
(including signature of letter of representation) 

Helen Smith  √   

Review Accounting Policies for 2016/17 
Statement of Accounts 

Pete Notley    √  

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Appoint Panel to review Annual Governance 
Statement 

Sandip Mahajan    √ 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith   √  

Review of Performance Management 
Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Risk Management Policy Simon McVey    √ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy Helen Smith   √  

P
age 21



   

21/4/2016 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

As required 

 

P
age 22



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

21 April 2016 

Review of Performance Management Framework 
and Risk Process 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Jonathan Brook - Portfolio Holder Innovation 
and Improvement 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

KEY DECISION: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report presents the update to the Performance Management Framework 
and the Risk Process. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) note that no changes were required for the Performance 
Management Framework (April 2016); and 

(2) note the updated Risk Process (April 2016). 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Council has an existing Performance Management Framework.  The 
2016 update to the Council Plan for 2014 – 2019 has been taken into 
consideration as part of the Annual Review of these documents. No changes 
were required and the Framework can be seen in appendix 1 of this report.  

3.2 The Framework describes how the Council monitors its performance and 
reflects the performance monitoring structures and schedules. 

3.3 This document will help support the Council in developing and embedding a 
high performance culture to further enhance the quality of services for the 
people of South Lakeland. 

3.4 As part of the annual refresh the Framework was reviewed in March 2016.   

  

Page 23

Item No.8



2 
 

3.5 The Council has an existing Risk Process and this has also been reviewed as 
part of the annual refresh for 2016. No significant changes were required 
however a reference to Fraud and Corruption risks was made as an audit 
requirement – please see appendix 2 of this report. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Partnerships and Organisational Development staff were involved in the 
review of the Performance Management Framework and the Risk Process. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The consequences of not approving updates to policies are to weaken 
corporate governance arrangements. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Reviewing key policies is a key organisational control that supports good 
performance with the Council Plan and helps develop and embed a high 
performance culture. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 No financial implications are associated with the proposals set out in this 
report. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No resource implications are associated with the proposals set out in this 
report 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications associated with the reviewed documents. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental  

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

This report is expected to support and 
have a positive impact on Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
needs. There are no changes required 
to the Performance Management 
Framework or the Risk Process for 
2016 and therefore there is no 
requirement to carry out a Health, 
Social, Economic or Environmental 
Assessment. 

 

Page 24



3 
 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

There are no changes required to the 
Performance Management 
Framework or the Risk Process for 
2016 and therefore there is no 
requirement to carry out an Equality 
Impact Assessment. This report is 
expected to support and have a 
positive impact on Equality and 
Diversity. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Not to update the 
policies 

The consequences of 
not updating policies are 
to weaken corporate 
governance 
arrangements 

Policies are updated 
and approvals sought 
prior to implementation 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Performance Management Framework 2016 

2 Risk Process 2016 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

31/03/16  31/03/16 Via email in 
advance of 

 

Page 25



4 
 

Audit 
Committee 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

 21/04/2016  31/03/16 31/03/16 

Human 
Resources 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

31/03/16     

 

Page 26



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
1 

 

 

 
 

[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the 
text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.] 

Version 9.0 

April 2016 

 

Page 27



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
2 

 

Version Control 

  

Version By Date Comments 

0.06 Corporate Vision 18/08/2011 Meet needs of Localism Bill. 

1.0 Risk and Performance 
Officer 

05/03/2012 Reviewed with changes to process timescales 

2.0 Risk and Performance 
Officer 

01/06/2013 Additional performance diagrams and 
explanatory text 

3.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

18/11/2013 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

3.1 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

03/12/2013 Amendments following Consultation with Policy 
& Partnerships Manager 

4.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

09/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

5.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

13/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

6.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

14/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

7.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

16/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

8.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

01/03/2015 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 (Updated in February 2015) 

9.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

31/03/2016 Reviewed – no changes required. 

 

How we review this document 

 
Partnerships and Organisational Development will facilitate an annual review involving: 

 

1. Member Services for performance reporting requirements 

2. Human Resources for workforce and appraisal elements 

3. Finance for budgeting timescales 

4. Partnerships and Organisational Development for localism and consultation 

  

Page 28



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
3 

 

Performance - Introduction 
 
Performance management is about the delivery of the goals of an organisation and its 
community.  It needs much more than just back office systems, processes, plans and 
indicators.  Successful performance management needs leaders, managers and staff to see 
their purpose to continually improve what they do - and the services they provide to their 
communities.  
 
Performance management must add value.  In order to do this the processes employed must 
achieve the right balance between effort and results.  
 
Performance management is central to the political process – performance information is 
reported regularly to Scrutiny and Cabinet Committees.   
 
The Performance Management Framework recognises that improvement comes from people 
and process, and that the framework will not operate without staff awareness.   
 
It will be about positive endorsement, continuous improvement, innovation and creativity.   
 
In particular, the processes should emphasize the significance of performance management for 
enabling service improvement, and build links into other improvement processes - and into 
training and development. 
 
Effective performance management: 

1. Is being clear about the purpose of the Council 

2. Has a strong emphasis on achieving outcomes 

3. Has robust and effective planning systems which ensure the allocation of resources 
follow service demands 

4. Monitors delivery against clear targets and acts upon them 

5. Minimises the risk of serious error 

Additionally our political and administrative leadership makes performance a priority, and the 
clear vision motivates, enthuses and empowers staff – an organisation that has a culture that is 
enabling and empowering.  
 

  

Page 29



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
4 

 

Purpose and aim of the framework 
 
The purpose and aim of our Performance Management Framework is to make sure we deliver:  
 

 the right services  

 at the right time  

 in the right way  

 value for money  

 
Our Performance Management Framework sets out how we put this into practice.  
 

 providing an overview of the steps to be taken, followed by a brief explanation of each  

 summarising Member and Officer performance management roles and responsibilities 

 listing reporting arrangements for various Council and Partnership plans and strategies 

 
Our Performance Management Framework follows the sequence of: 
 

Plan    Do    Review 
 

Plan means being clear about what we are setting out to achieve and how we are going 
to achieve it  

Do means putting our plans into action in the most efficient and effective way  

Review means monitoring results to ensure that we:  

achieve what was planned and to the agreed standard  

can compare our performance with other service providers and with our own 
past achievements to show trends  

have relevant and timely information to feed back into the process  

can inform stakeholders accordingly  
 
  

Page 30



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
5 

 

Performance management is the responsibility of everyone in the Council.  A summary of the 
key roles and responsibilities of Officers and Councillors is set out below: 
 

 Plan Do Review 

 Vision 

Planning 

Commitment 

Action and Results Monitoring 

Review and Response 

Councillors Approve the Council Plan, 
key strategies and Budget 

Hold the Cabinet to account 

Scrutinise the Council’s 
performance 

Undertake specific reviews 
of any identified 
performance issues which 
can be undertaken through 
the Council’s arrangements 
for scrutiny 

Cabinet Formulate the Council’s 
priorities 

Monitor and respond  to 
performance data 

Challenge performance of 
all services 

Ensure strategic delivery of 
Council Plan  

Monitor performance with 
Portfolio Holder Priority 
Plans via monthly meeting 
with Assistant Directors 

Senior 
Management 

Oversee Performance 
Management Framework 

Commitment to Council’s 
priorities through the 
allocation of responsibilities 
and resources 

Strategic responsibility for 
delivery of Council’s 
priorities including 
monitoring performance 

Take a view on service 
underperformance and 
manage the Council Plan 

Ensure that Assistant 
Directors’ annual 
performance appraisals 
underpin the performance 
with the Council Plan 

Review the Council Plan 
Performance Report every 
quarter 

Assistant 
Directors 

Ensure that service area 
plans underpin 
performance with the 
Council Plan 

Sign off Service Plans 

Ensure that managers’ 
annual performance 
appraisals underpin 
performance with service 
area plans 

Hold 1-2-1’s with managers 
as required to manage 
performance with key 
activity – this may include 
projects as well as day to 
day work 

Monitor directorate 
performance at 
Departmental Management 
Team meetings on a 
quarterly basis 

Respond to service and 
organisational workflow and 
workload issues 

Operational 
Managers 

Produce Service Plans 

Contribute to the Council’s 
corporate priorities and 
objectives 

Manage projects applying 
project management 
techniques appropriately 

Deliver Service Plans 

Provide data in accordance 
with performance reporting 
requirements 

Maintain service budget 
and implement efficiencies 

Support staff to deliver their 
objectives and manage 
Staff performance 

Staff Responsible for personal 
development and 
performance 

Understand how work 
contributes to  vision, 
priorities and objectives 

Raise specific issues 
regarding performance with 
Operational Managers 

Ensure that activity listed 
within individual 
performance reviews are 
implemented on schedule 

Page 31



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
6 

 

Performance Reporting Process 

 

  

P
age 32



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
7 

 

 

 

The Council will make decisions on the priorities, risks, activities, ownership, targets and 
measures necessary to meet the needs of South Lakeland. 

 

1. Vision 

 

Performance management begins with a clear vision. The Council’s corporate vision is 
contained in our Council Plan for 2014-2019 (Updated February 2015): 

 
Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 

 
This vision is underpinned by our agreed values, which influence the way we work. They lie at 
the heart of everything we do:  
 

Our Values 

Empowering People 

By listening to our customers and our employees, their ideas and comments will help us make 
improvements to customer services and workforce development 

 

Creative and Flexible 

Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions address the needs 
of South Lakeland 

 

Open and Transparent 

Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public 

  

Plan 

Page 33



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
8 

 

 
 
 

2. Planning 

 

The Council’s priorities are set out in the Council Plan and are informed by the Council’s mixed 
approach to service delivery 
 

 Innovation and 
Improvement 

More Local 
Engaging communities and empowering them to deliver on things that 
matter locally, whilst setting and delivering on strategic priorities for South 
Lakeland 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

F
o

c
u

s
 a

re
a
s

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
e

a
s

u
re

s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

Partnership working and collaboration 
Continue to build on our successes to identify current and future 
opportunities for shared delivery of projects and a more collaborative 
approach to service provision 

Stewardship 
Continue to plan and manage our resources and responsibility for 
conserving and enhancing the environment in which our communities live 
and work. 

Entrepreneurship 
Look at where there are opportunities to reduce the burden of taxation, to 
help others and become more entrepreneurial in the way we do business 

Our Members, Our Workforce 
Members are advocates to ensure that the needs of local communities are 
identified, understood and supported by a workforce that is in the right 
place at the right time with the skills and motivation to deliver the highest 
quality services to our customers 

Key Regional and National Drivers 
Supported by the four priorities in the Council Plan 

 
The Council must focus must on how we and our partners can achieve positive outcomes for 
our communities - to improve their quality of life and the services we provide for them.  
 
When planning, the Council must ensure it understands South Lakeland, our communities and 
their needs based on a detailed knowledge of key demographic data, customer satisfaction and 
perceptions.  
 
  

Plan 

Page 34



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
9 

 

 

 
 
As a Community Leader, the Council should engage with and share information, where 
applicable, with partners particularly the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership, the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, One South Lakeland Partnership, Local Area Partnerships Parish and Town 
Councils and Community Groups. 
 
We must also be aware of available resources, anticipated risks and levels of current 
performance when setting priorities and developing Plans.  
 
The Council’s services are delivered through plans and strategies at all levels, both 
independently and in partnership with other service providers and provide a link between our 
high-level Vision and strategic priorities and team and individual performance.  
 

Our Priorities  

The Council has agreed four priorities in its new Council Plan for 2014-2019 (updated February 
2015), which support the Council’s Vision. 
 
Our Economy 
Enabling and delivering opportunities for sustainable economic growth 
 
Our Housing Needs 
Providing homes to meet need 
 
Our Environment 
Protecting and enhancing our environment 
 
Our Health and Wellbeing 
Improving health and reducing health inequalities 

 
  

Plan 

Page 35



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
10 

 

 
 
 
 

3. Commitment 

 
The priorities for South Lakeland are set at the highest level.  These priorities are not only 
supported by the Council’s strategic and operational plans but also individual staff appraisals.  
Managing employees’ performance is a continuous process.   
 
It involves making sure that the performance of employees contributes to the goals of their 
teams and the business as a whole. Performance monitoring which includes risk management 
activity ensures that the key priorities are met. 
 
Organisational commitment is demonstrated through the allocation of responsibilities and 
resources.  
 
Members’ responsibilities are set out in the Council’s Constitution.   
 
Officers’ responsibilities are contained in the Constitution, Job Descriptions and annual 
appraisals.  
 
Ownership of responsibility is further supported by:  

 The Personal Qualities Framework links organisational targets and actions with those of 
individual employees  

 Commitment to training and development through the Corporate Training Programme 
and Training Budget  

Financial resources are allocated to the Council’s Priorities through the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and annual Revenue and Capital Budgets.  Resources provided by other bodies are 
secured through external funding bids.  
 
Commitments towards achieving South Lakeland and Cumbria Strategy priorities are 
demonstrated through membership of Boards, Task Groups and Officer Working Groups. 
 
  

Plan 

Page 36



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
11 

 

 

 

4. Action and Results 

 

The Council will implement its plans at strategic, operational and individual levels. Services are 
delivered in accordance with our strategies and plans, having regard to the following: 

 strategic outcomes and our ambitions as set out by our four Council Plan priorities 
 

Priority Economy Housing Environment 
Health & 

Wellbeing 

Ambitions The council will 
support the 
development of 
higher paid jobs in 
South Lakeland 

We will help our 
towns and villages 
to thrive 
commercially whilst 
retaining their 
distinctive character 

 

The council will 
help deliver new 
affordable and open 
market housing 
through private 
sector led 
developments 
across the district 

The quality and 
condition of private 
sector housing will 
be improved and 
the number of 
empty homes 
reduced 

The council and its 
partners will work 
together to 
significantly reduce 
the risk of 
homelessness 

 

The council will 
help residents to 
reduce the total 
amount of 
household waste 
and extend the 
range of recycled 
materials from the 
kerbside 

The council will 
make progress in 
reducing carbon 
emissions and 
become more 
energy efficient 

The council will 
support 
communities to 
become more 
energy efficient 

The council and its 
communities will 
enhance and 
protect the district’s 
high quality 
environment 

Through our Public 
Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 
the council and its 
partners will 
support health 
improvements and 
reduce health 
inequalities 

We will build upon 
our cultural 
reputation as a 
place for nationally 
and internationally 
recognised arts, 
events and festivals 

  

Do 

Page 37



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
12 

 

 

 

 Measures to monitor service-delivery in practice and to help focus attention on our 
continued programme of innovation and improvement 

Delivering our priorities 

Sustainable 
Budget 

Flexible and 
Skilled 
Workforce 

Community 
Leadership 

Improved 
Customer 
Engagement and 
Communication 

Management 
Information 
Systems 
(Operational) 

Financial 
Implications 

Savings, 
reductions, 
efficiencies to be 
found 

Total Service 
Expenditure 

Resource 
implications 

Days lost to 
sickness 

Staff engaged in 
training and 
development 

Legal Implications 

Elected Members 
engaged with 
training and 
development 

Promoting the 
Council and 
Council Services 

Key Performance 
Indicators 
submitted as part 
of requirements for 
regulatory services 

Risk Assessments 

Complaints 

Social, Economic 
and Environmental 
Impact 

Equality and 
Diversity Impact 

 

 

Measures 
 

Dedicated performance management scorecards provide consistency and better access to 
information regarding ownership, service activity and measures, and to improve monitoring and 
reporting procedures including the management of complaints received; service planning and 
projects. 
 

Every stage of the performance management process relies on evidence and data to allow the 
organisation to make judgments on what South Lakeland and the Council’s needs are; what its 
customers’ needs are; what it has achieved and how it compares.  It is vital that all this 
information is high quality, reliable, and timely data.  As part of a rolling programme of 
scorecard review, regular assurance checks will be carried out and reported to Members and 
Officers. 
 

Financial Management 
 

Financial Management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the running of the 
Council, including the policy framework and budget.   
 

All Members and Officers have a duty to abide by the highest standards of probity in dealing 
with financial issues.  This is facilitated by ensuring everyone is clear about the standards to 
which they are working and the controls that are in place to ensure that these standards are 
met.  The Corporate Financial Monitoring Report is presented to advise Members of the 
financial position of the Council each quarter.  Explanations of variances are provided.   
 

The report is presented to the Performance Sub-Committee.  The report summarises the 
General Fund revenue and capital positions with monitoring updates for large and volatile costs 
and income, approved savings, Treasury Management, Revenue Collection and Sundry and 
Long term debtors.  
 

The Corporate Financial Monitoring Report includes the following areas: 

1. Revenue Budget monitoring 

2. Budget Savings monitoring 

3. Capital Budget monitoring 

4. Treasury Management review    

Do 

Page 38



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
13 

 

 

 
Personal Qualities 

It is important to ensure that all staff are aware of how the performance appraisal ‘fits’ with the 
Performance Management Framework. In terms of the hierarchy of strategic and business 
planning the performance appraisal process sits as follows: 

 

 

 
The above plans are aspirational i.e. they are the statement of either new objectives or an 
intention to improve service/performance on existing objectives.  Therefore individual 
performance appraisals will reflect this i.e. the performance objectives will be about 
implementing new services, improving existing services, reducing cost etc.  
 
They fundamentally represent change.  However, the Performance Appraisal Scheme also 
includes two other factors, Personal Qualities and Development.   
 
Personal Qualities reflects the way in which employees conduct themselves and the manner in 
which business is undertaken.  Adherence to these qualities will support the successful pursuit 
of objectives.  Development acknowledges that for staff at all levels there will be gaps between 
current performance and target performance which cannot be addressed by additional 
resources or new technology but by enhancing the skills, knowledge and confidence of the 
post-holder.  
  

Council Plan 

Group/Service 
Plan 

Performance 
Appraisal 

Do 

Page 39



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
14 

 

 
 
Performance Appraisals are not the only corporately supported performance/communication 
mechanisms available.  For line managers performance appraisals form part of a tripartite staff 
management portfolio. 

 

 

 
 
Managers and staff need to be able to differentiate between the aims and content of the various 
meetings. 
 
1-2-1’s between managers and staff should be conducted on a regular basis and are an 
opportunity to: 

 Manage tasks and prioritise work 

 Tackle day to day supervision and resource issues 

 Monitor and evaluate incoming and outgoing work 

They can also be used to visit the performance objectives and individual development needs 
and, where appropriate, amend/update the performance review and developmental review 
sections of the performance appraisal documentation. 

 
Managers should brief their teams once a month as a minimum and should be the opportunity 
to: 

 Communicate corporate information  

 Discuss service issues 

 Raise awareness of topical issues facing the Council 

 Listen to ideas and discuss innovative solutions on issues facing the team, service and 
Council 

The aim of the Performance Appraisal Policy is to ensure the performance appraisal process is 
embedded within organisational culture and practice rather than be a stand alone, once a year 
activity.   

 
  

Performance 
Appraisal 

1-2-1s 
Team 

Meetings 

Do 

Page 40



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
15 

 

 

 

Performance data will be collected and areas for concern identified.  Areas that are not on track 
will be commented on by staff with ownership at weekly meetings. 

 

5. Monitoring 

 

Feedback and other information generated in delivering services enables us to actively 
monitor performance and report as necessary to Committees, management and  
operational teams, individuals, members of the public and external agencies.  This is 
undertaken in accordance with the following: 
 

Quarter 1  

April 

Complete a review of and update the policies and strategies integral to the 
Performance Management Framework. 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data to Performance Sub-Committee 

Staff appraisal process is started. 

May Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data which details progress with action 
towards priorities, progress towards targets, management of risks and capital & 
revenue figures. 

June The Council’s Annual financial accounts are completed. 

The Council’s Annual Governance Statement is produced. 

Quarter 2  

July 

Council approves performance framework related policies and strategies. Update the 
Council Plan & Community Strategy. The draft budget is prepared. 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data to Performance Sub-Committee 

Publish the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan 

August Update operational plans and the Five Year Strategy. 

Consultation on the draft budget.  

Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data. 

September Staff mid year Job Appraisals are completed 

Quarter 3  

October 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data to Performance Sub-Committee 

November Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data. 

December Budget options are aligned to priorities 

Quarter 4  

January 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data to Performance Sub-Committee 

February Publish the Community Strategy, the Five Year Strategy, the Council’s Council Plan, 
Council Budget and Capital Programme. 

Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data. 

March Publish the Council’s operational plans including the workforce element. 

  

Review 

Page 41



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 9.0 

April 2016 
16 

 

 
 
 
Detailed information regarding costs, performance and benchmarking of services will be 
reported along with a value for money calculation. This will bring essential business information 
to decision makers – for more detail see the diagram below: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Results of service performance are published internally and externally in the Council’s 
Performance Sub-Committee reports.  
 
In addition, the Council provides employees, Members and the public with feedback on the 
Council’s performance in a number of digestible formats.  This includes the annual report of our 
performance over a 12 month period.  
 
 

6. Review and Response 

 

Reviewing and taking corrective action are essential steps as they distinguish performance 
management from performance monitoring.  Action taken is recorded to provide an audit trail 
and evidence of improvement, and could include any or all of the following:  
 

 Reassessing the need for a particular service  

 Re-designing standards, measures and targets  

 Reviewing systems and processes  

 Re-evaluating resource requirements  

 
Customer feedback is used to support the review process, while benchmarking helps to set 
Council performance into context by comparing processes and measure results, for example 
when carrying out service reviews or value-for-money exercises.  
 
Implementation of this Framework is overseen by the Senior Management Team. 
 

Costs 

 

Costs of individual 
services 

Benefits 

 

Measures that show 
performance 

 

Benchmarking for 
comparing with 
other authorities 

Value for Money 

 

Cost per head of 
population for each 

service 

Review 

Page 42



1 
Version: 6 

Date: April 2016 
 

  

Version 6 

April 2016 

Page 43



2 
Version: 6 

Date: April 2016 
 

Contents 

 

Risk Management Process ................................................................................................. 3 
Roles and Responsibilities .................................................................................................. 4 
Risk Management – Five practical steps ............................................................................. 5 
Risk Prioritisation Matrix ...................................................................................................... 6 
 

 

 

Version Control 

Version By Date Comments 

v1 

June 

2011 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

13/07/2011 Risk process simplified, shortened and Internal 
Audit Recommendations included. 

Cabinet approval. 

v2 

March 

2012 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

05/03/2012 Reviewed - no changes required 

 

v3 

June 

2013 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

01/06/2013 Reviewed – minor changes required 

 

v4 

March 
2014 

Principal 
Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

20/03/2014 Reviewed – minor changes required and Risk 
Prioritisation Matrix simplified 

 

V5 

March 
2015 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

January 2015 Reviewed – management of partnership risks better 
defined 

V6 

April 2016 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

March 2016 Reviewed - no significant changes required 
Reference to fraud and corruption risks added as 
required by audit. 

 

 

How we review this document 

Partnerships and Organisational Development will facilitate a periodic review in line with 

government guidance. 

  

Page 44



3 
Version: 6 

Date: April 2016 
 

Risk Management Process 

 

Introduction 
This document outlines how South Lakeland District Council is taking on its responsibility to 
manage risks and opportunities using a structured and focused approach. 
 

This process will enable the Council to identify: 
1. Partnership risks 
2. Strategic risks 
3. Operational risks 
4. assess the risks for likelihood and impact 
5. identify mitigating controls  
6. allocate responsibility for both risks and controls. 

 

What is Risk? 
A risk is an event which has a negative or positive effect on the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives. 
 

What is Risk Management? 
Risk management is both the awareness of risks and the management processes that are 
directed towards effective reduction or mitigation of risks. Identifying and dealing with the 
principal risks facing an authority enables it to identify key actions it must take to deliver its 
objectives. 
 

Corporate processes and risk 
These corporate processes require the consideration of risk.   

 Council Planning Process 

 Project Management 

 Financial Planning 

 Partnerships 

 Cabinet/Council reports 

 Business Continuity 

 Health and safety 

 Fraud and corruption 

 Insurance 
 

Why do we need a Risk Management Process? 
Risk management will strengthen the ability of South Lakeland District Council to achieve its 
objectives and enhance the value of services provided, to make the area a place where 
people want to live and work, where they are able to enjoy a high quality of life.  
 
Risk management is also an essential part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy/ framework on Corporate Governance that has been adopted by SLDC. 
Alongside Corporate Governance the Council is required to publish an annual assurance 
statement in respect of internal controls. This determines that the Council is responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk. 
 

Page 45



4 
Version: 6 

Date: April 2016 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
The Innovation and Improvement Portfolio Holder and the Chief Executive jointly have 
overall responsibility for risk management throughout the Council.  
 
Strategic Risks: 
Senior Management Team is pivotal in the management of the Council’s high level risks by 
identifying and reviewing existing risks and ensuring mitigation. These decisions will 
determine which risks are included on the Strategic Risk Register. Senior Management 
Team reviews the risks along with corporate plan performance on a quarterly basis. 
 
The Performance and Risk Officer is located within Partnerships and Organisational 
Development and maintains the strategic risks and mitigating controls each quarter on behalf 
of the Senior Management Team. The officer also organises appropriate training for staff 
and members and reviews the risk process. The officer prepares quarterly monitoring reports 
covering risks and performance with the Council Plan for: 
 

1. Senior Management Team 
2. Performance Sub Committee 
3. Cabinet 

 
Performance Sub-Committee will monitor the mitigation of the Strategic Risks in quarters 
two, three and four. This reporting ensures that all senior elected members understand the 
Strategic Risks and their mitigating controls. 
 
Operational Risks: 
Directorates will identify, manage and monitor their operational risks.  Assistant Directors will 
review their register of risks each year and list them on operational level plans. Assistant 
Directors and senior managers can escalate these risks to Senior Management Team if they 
feel that they are more of a strategic nature or that they need help with mitigation. In this way 
operational risks are identified and managed - and where necessary escalated for further 
control. 
 
Partnership Risks: 
There are two kinds of risks involved in partnership working. The first are the risks that the 
Council faces because it is a partner. These risks will be identified by the key partnership 
lead and managed via service plans and if necessary escalated as a potential strategic risk. 
The Second risks are the risks that the partnership faces as a whole. Where a key 
partnership is significant enough to warrant risk management arrangements these risks will 
be reviewed and managed by the partnership itself. The risks will be communicated back to 
the Council via the Council’s representative on that Partnership. These risks may then bring 
about new strategic risks which would then be subject to the Council’s performance 
management arrangements. 
 
Links with Audit findings: 
Internal audit is responsible for undertaking periodic assessment of the Council’s risk 
management processes as part of reviewing of corporate governance arrangements. 
Internal Audit will also as a result of their risk assessments in other areas of the Councils 
operations highlight to Senior Management Team further risks for their consideration and 
possible inclusion on the Strategic Risk Register.  These risks are then performance 
managed as part of the quarterly performance monitoring process 
 

Page 46



5 
Version: 6 

Date: April 2016 
 

Risk Management – Five practical steps 
Managing risks involves adopting a systematic and robust process. The following risk 
management cycle describes the processes that should be followed.  

 
Step 1 - Identifying the risks 
When identifying risks it is suggested that as a minimum the following categories of risk be 
used. They will act as a prompt and as a trigger for officers involved in the identification 
process. These categories are Financial (including Fraud and Corruption), Environmental, 
Customer (including Equalities), Reputational and Legislative.  
 
Risks can also be positive rather than just negative - in that there may be positive 
opportunities brought about by the impact of a risk.  These opportunities should be identified 
so that they can be maximised if the risk occurs. A project can also be thought of as positive 
risk taking as it is something that will bring benefits - but there will be risks to manage along 
the way.  
 
Risks can also be strategic or operational in nature and it is important that both types of risk 
are managed effectively. If risks identified at an operational level are considered to be 
strategic in nature they should be brought to the attention of Senior Management Team by 
Assistant Directors. 
 
Step 2 - Analysing the risks 
It will help understanding of each risk if analysis of the vulnerabilities, triggers and 
consequences are completed. This better understanding will aid the next step in the process 
- prioritisation of risks. There may be Equalities considerations when completing this analysis 
work. 
 
Step 3 - Risk Profiling and prioritisation 
A standard prioritisation matrix is used across the Council to plot the risks in terms of 
likelihood and impact. Once completed this risk profile clearly illustrates the risks which are 
priorities for management. The Council’s line of risk tolerance or appetite is set on the 
matrix. This line determines which risks cannot be tolerated and must be managed down, 
transferred or avoided.  
 
Step 4 - Action Planning 
Most risks are capable of being managed – either by managing down the likelihood or 
impact or both.  Action plans will also identify the resources required to deliver the 
improvements, key dates and deadlines and critical success factors. There may be 
Equalities issues when agreeing risk actions 
 
Step 5 - Risk management monitoring and reporting framework 
Quarterly monitoring of the effective management of risks through Overview &Scrutiny 
including regular reporting on council plan performance. 

Page 47



6 
Version: 6 

Date: April 2016 
 

Risk Prioritisation Matrix  
 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

A 

high 

    

B 

medium 

    

C 

low 

    

D 

very low 

    

 4 

negligible 

 

3 

marginal 

2 

serious 

1 

critical 

 Impact 

 

 

 

Priority risks which 

require mitigating 

controls and quarterly 

review 

Low priority risks 

which require annual 

review 

Page 48



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

21 April 2016 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2015/16 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Pete Notley – Chief Accountant 

WARDS: Not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report presents the proposed accounting policies to be used for the 
closure of the 2015/16 accounts.  These are prepared in line with CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2015/16 (the Code). 
Adopting the proposed policies will form a solid platform for the production of 
a high quality set of annual accounts.  

1.2 The draft final statements will be brought to the Audit Committee on the 21 
July 2016 with the final audited statements brought back for authorisation on 
21 September 2016 (proposed date). 

2.0     RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee adopt the accounting policies  
at Appendix 2, to be used for the closure of the 2015/16 Accounts.  

 
3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 As part of its statement of accounts, the Council needs to disclose the 
accounting policies it has applied to all material balances and transactions. 
There is little discretion to the Council as the proper accounting practices, that 
all local authorities follow, are set down in the Code. There have only been 
minor changes to the Code from the prior year.  

3.2 The proposed accounting policy disclosures are presented at Appendix 1, 
these are presented with the changes highlighted so it is clear what has been 
updated. These do not depart from the provisions of the 2015/16 Code. Some 
changes have been made to the 2014/15 policies as follows: 

 A new policy around the use of ‘Fair Value’ as the measurement basis for 
recognition and/or disclosures for relevant assets and liabilities. 

 De-cluttering of policies, for example where the Council does not have 
material transactions including inventory and finance leases. 

Page 49

Item No.9



 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 All local Authorities are consulted as part of CIPFA’s preparation of the Code 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 No alternative options are proposed, the Council has no circumstances that 
would justify a material departure from the Code. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The policies in Appendix 2 underpin the Council’s reporting on its financial 
performance and position. There is little discretion to depart from the policies 
set down by the Code. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

7.3 Legal 

 The Code constitutes ‘proper accounting practices’ to be followed by a local 
authority under the terms of section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003.  

7.4      Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

There are no health, social, economic 
or environmental issues. 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

There are no equality or diversity 
issues. 

 

Page 50



7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council reports its 
financial performance 
and position on the 
basis of accounting 
policies that materially 
depart from the Code. 

Material errors are 
included in the draft 
statements or the 
accounts may be 
qualified. 

Officers review the 
Code annually and 
Committee adopt the 
updated Accounting 
Polices 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Pete Notley, Chief Accountant, 01539 793157, 
p.notley@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Accounting Policies 2015/16 showing tracked changes 

2 Accounting Policies 2015/16 incorporating changes 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

2014/15 Final Accounts http://tinyurl.com/h5nbjhh 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

31/3/2016 n/a n/a 31/3/2016 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 21/4/2016 n/a 31/3/2016 31/3/2016 

Human 
Resources 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



 

Appendix 1 
 

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the accounting policies to be adopted for 
preparation of the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this section is to explain the basis for the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts of South Lakeland District 
Council. Where individual transactions and other events are not covered by these policies 
they are accounted for in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice identified below. 
 
The accounting policies are the main principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
that specify how these transactions and other events are reflected in the financial 
statements of the Council.   
 
The accounts follow the appropriate accounting standards as required by the CIPFA Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the Code 
of Practice). The Code constitutes a “proper accounting practice” under the terms of 
Section 21 (2) of the Local Government Act 2003.  The Code is based on approved 
international accounting standards, except where these conflict with specific accounting or 
legislative requirements, so that the Council’s accounts present a true and fair view of the 
financial position and transactions of the authority.  
 
The basic accounting convention adopted is historic cost, modified by the revaluation of 
certain categories of tangible non-current assets and financial assets. 
 
The Accounting Policies that follow are presented in an order that, as far as possible, 
corresponds with the layout of the main statements. A full index of Policies follows. 
 
 
GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
Policy 1  Fundamental Accounting Concepts 
Policy 2  Estimation and Prior Year Errors 
Policy 3  Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Policy 4  VAT 
 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
Policy 5 Revenue Grants and Contributions  
Policy 6 Employee Benefits 
Policy 7 Costs of Support Services 
Policy 8 External Interest 
Policy 9 Charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
  Statement for the Use of Non-current Assets 
Policy 10 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
 
BALANCE SHEET 
Policy 11 Fair Value Measurement 
Policy 11 12  Definition of Capital Expenditure 

Page 53



 

Policy 12 13  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Policy 1314 Heritage Assets 
Policy 1415 Investment Properties 
Policy 1516 Intangible Assets 
Policy 16 17 Non-Current Asset Disposal 
Policy 17 18  Leases 
Policy 18  Investments 
Policy 19  Inventory 
Policy 1920  Bad Debts 
Policy 2119 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Policy 2220 Capital Grants and Contributions 
Policy 2321 Provisions 
Policy 24 22 Reserves 
Policy 2523 Financial Assets 
Policy 26 24 Financial Liabilities 
Policy 2725 Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
OTHER 
Policy 2826 Contingent Liabilities 
Policy 2927 Contingent Assets 

 

 
1. FUNDAMENTAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS 
 
a) Underlying Assumptions 
 
Accruals 
The financial statements, other than the cash flow information, are prepared on an accruals 
basis.  This means that expenditure and income are recognised in the accounts in the 
period in which they are incurred or earned, not as money is paid or received.  
 
Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Council will 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future. 
 
b) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Information 
 
Understandability 
These accounts are based on accounting concepts, treatments and terminology, which 
require reasonable knowledge of accounting and local government.  However, all 
reasonable efforts have been made to use plain language and where technical terms are 
unavoidable they have been explained as they occur. 
 
Relevance 
The accounts have been prepared with the objective of providing information about the 
Council’s financial performance and position that is useful to the reader in assessing the 
stewardship of public funds and for making future economic decisions. 
 
 
 

Page 54



 

Materiality 
The Code permits the concept of materiality to be used in the preparation of the accounts. 
Omissions or mis-statements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, 
influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial 
statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or mis-statement 
judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the item, or a combination 
of both, could be the determining factor.  

 
Faithful Representation 
The financial information is complete, neutral and free from error in that it: 

 has been prepared so as to reflect the reality or substance of the transaction and 
activities underlying them, rather than their formal legal character; 

 represents faithfully the transactions and events it purports to or could reasonably 
be expected to represent; 

 is free from deliberate or systemic bias; 

 is free from material error; 

 is complete within the bounds of materiality and cost. 
 
Comparability 
The financial statements have been prepared to allow comparison of the Council’s financial 
position over time. In addition to complying with the Code, the Council’s statements also 
comply with the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP); this establishes proper 
practice with regard to consistent financial reporting and therefore aids comparability with 
other local authorities. 
 
Verifiable 
Information used to prepare the accounts can be verified. Where estimates have been 
used, the relevant assumptions underlying the estimation technique will be disclosed. 
 
Timely 
The statutory timeframe for preparation of the accounts will be adhered to. 
 
Primacy of Legislative Requirements 
Local Authorities derive their powers from statute and their financial and accounting 
framework is closely controlled by primary and secondary legislation.  It is a fundamental 
principle of local authority accounting that, where specific legislative requirements and 
accounting principles conflict, legislative requirements as shown in Appendix B to the Code 
shall apply. To satisfy the twin demands of accounting regulations and legislation, Local 
Authority accounts include a reconciling statement to disclose how legislation has had an 
impact on the general fund and other reserves (the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
supporting note). 
 
2. ESTIMATION AND PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 
 
In order to prepare the annual accounts by the specified deadline, it has been necessary 
to use estimation methods in relation to some transactions and events. The Council has 
applied the same methods this year as in previous years. 
 
The estimation techniques that have been used are, in the Council’s view, appropriate and 
consistently applied.  Should the effect of a change to an estimation technique be material, 

Page 55



 

a description of the change and, if practicable, the effect on the results for the current period 
and future years would be separately disclosed. 
 
Where errors have occurred in relation to previous years’ recognition, measurement, 
presentation, or disclosure of elements of financial statements, they are corrected 
retrospectively where material and disclosed in the notes to the statements. 
 
3. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
In compliance with the Code, in all material respects both revenue and capital accounts of 
the Council are maintained on an accruals basis.  That is, sums due to or payable by the 
Council during the year are included in the accounts whether or not the cash has actually 
been received or paid in the year. In particular: 

 Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the 
date the Council provides the relevant goods or services 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, if material, they 
are carried as inventory on the Balance Sheet. Where not material, these will be 
expensed in year. 

 Employee Costs – see separate Employee Benefits Policy below 

 Interest payable on borrowings, and receivable on investments, is accounted for on 
the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than 
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised, but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors 
is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected 

 
Accruals are largely based on known commitments and are assessed accurately. Where 
estimates are made, they are based on historical records, precedence and officers’ 
knowledge and experience. In all cases the Council adopts a prudent approach to avoid 
overstating its resources. 
 
4. VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) 
 
Value Added Tax is included within the accounts only to the extent that it is irrecoverable 
and therefore charged to revenue or capital expenditure as appropriate. VAT receivable is 
excluded from income. 
 
5. REVENUE GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Government grants and contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. Specific 
revenue grants and contributions are matched with the service expenditure to which they 
relate in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless there are 
conditions that have not been met. In such cases the income is credited to Receipts in 
Advance until the conditions are met. Once conditions are met the grant is transferred to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Page 56



 

Where there are no conditions outstanding, but expenditure has not been incurred, the 
grant is transferred to an earmarked reserve until the expenditure is incurred. It is then 
transferred to the General Fund Balance through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Grants to cover general expenditure e.g. Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Council Tax 
Freeze grant are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within 
the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line.  
 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate, and are set-off against the previous entries in the accounts. 
 
6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
During Employment 
Short-term benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and non-monetary benefits for current 
employees. They are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Council.  
 
An accrual is made at the end of each year for the cost of holiday entitlement and flexi-time 
balances not taken at the year-end. The accrual is based on the salary rates for the year 
in which it will be taken. The accrual is charged to the cost of services, but then reversed 
out in the Movement in Reserves Statement, so that benefits are charged to revenue in the 
year in which the holiday or flexi-time is taken. 
 
Termination Benefits 
These are benefits payable as a result of a decision taken by the Council to terminate an 
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or as a result of an employee’s 
decision to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the 
relevant service in the period when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of benefits 
made to the employee or when the criteria for recognising a provision to cover such costs 
are met, whichever is the earliest.  
 
Where termination benefits involve pension enhancements, statutory provisions require 
the amount charged to the General Fund to be the amount paid in the year and not that 
calculated in accordance with relevant accounting standards. The Movement in Reserves 
Statement therefore shows entries in and out of the Pensions Reserve to bring the 
treatment into line with the accruals requirements of Accounting Standards. 
 
Retirement Benefits 
The Council has adopted the accounting requirements under IAS19 – Retirement Benefits, 
as required by the Code. Employees of the Council are members of Cumbria County 
Pension Fund, part of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Local Government 
Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected 
unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation 
to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about 
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of estimated earnings 
for current employees 

Page 57



 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate and 
type of bond provided by the Actuary  

 The assets of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

- quoted securities at current bid price 
- unquoted securities by professional estimate 
- unitised securities at current bid price 
- property at market value 

 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Component Detail Accounting Treatment 
Current service cost Increase in the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation resulting 
from employee service in the 
current period including interest on 
the current service cost. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement for appropriate 
service 

Past service cost / 
gains 

Change in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation for 
service in prior periods resulting 
from a plan amendment or 
curtailment and any gain or loss on 
settlement. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement, Non 
Distributed costs 

Net interest on the net 
defined benefit 
liability(asset) 

Change during the period in the net 
defined liability (asset) that arises 
from the passage of time. 

Financing and Investment 
Income and  Expenditure 
in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

Other contributions to 
the Pension Fund 
including Gains/losses 
on 
settlements and 
curtailments 

Result of actions to relieve Council 
of liabilities or events that reduce 
expected future service or accrual 
of benefits of employees 

Debited to Net Cost of 
Services in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement, 
Non Distributed Costs 

Re-measurements  
(return on plan assets, 
actuarial gains and 
losses) 

Return on Plan assets not included 
in net interest. 
Changes in net pensions liability 
arising because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made 
at 
last actuarial valuation or changes 
to actuaries’ assumptions split 
between demographic and financial 
assumptions 

Accounted for in the 
Pensions Reserve and as 
part of Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure. 

Contributions paid to 
the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme 

Cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund. 

Not accounted for as an 
expense in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement but charged 
against General Fund 
through Movement in 
Reserves 

Other administration 
costs 

Other costs of scheme 
administration 

Debited to other operating 
expenditure 

Page 58



 

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to 
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 
Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits, and replace them 
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but 
unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Any prepayments into the pension fund will be treated as a reduction to the pension liability. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award 
to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award, and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 
 
Residual Arrangements 
The Greater Manchester and West Yorkshire Pension Funds charge the Council for the 
full pensions of a small number of pensioners of local authorities that were replaced by 
South Lakeland District Council in the 1974 Local Government Re-organisation. 
 
7. COSTS OF SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The accounting treatment for support services has been prepared in accordance with 
SeRCOP.  The costs of management and administration overheads have been allocated 
to all services.   
 
The following costs are accounted for as separate expenditure heads and are shown on 
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

 Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation 

 Non-Distributed Costs – cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring 
early and any depreciation and impairment losses on surplus assets 

 
The total absorption costing principle is used with the full cost of overheads and support 
services being shared between users on the following basis: 

 
Description 

 
Basis of Allocation 

Financial Services Gross revenue expenditure 
Budget 

Legal Services Time apportionment 
Human Resources/Payroll Staff Numbers 
Democratic Services Time apportionment 
Administrative Buildings Area occupied 
Information Services Number of PC Users 
Corporate Services Time apportionment 
  
  

Page 59



 

8. EXTERNAL INTEREST 
 
Interest payments on external borrowings (Public Works Loans Board and other bodies) 
are fully accrued in order that each year bears the costs of interest related to its actual 
external borrowing.  External interest income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement over the period to which it relates. 
 
9. CHARGES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE   
STATEMENT FOR THE USE OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited or credited 
with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding non-current assets during the 
year: 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on 
tangible non-current assets used by the service and other losses where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written-
off 

 Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses 
or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to an 
amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with 
statutory guidance). Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore 
replaced by MRP in the Movements in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two. 
 
10. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions, 
but does not result in the creation of non-current assets owned by the Council (REFCUS), 
has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. 
Examples include disabled facilities grants on private houses.   

 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from  capital 
resources, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement through the Movement 
in Reserves Statement, so there is no impact on the level of the Council Tax.  
 
11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
  

 Where asset and liability values on the balance sheet reflect their current value, 
these will be measured at Fair Value unless a different measurement basis is 
specified in the Code. This is defined as the price that would be received to sell an 
asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction, between market 
participants, at the measurement date. This definition will also be applied if 
disclosures about Fair Values are required for assets and liabilities measured on a  
basis other than fair value. 

Page 60



 

  
11.12. DEFINITION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
All expenditure on the acquisition, construction, replacement or restoration of a tangible 
non-current asset has been capitalised and classified as property, plant, equipment, 
heritage asset or investment property, where it is probable that future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and where the cost can 
be measured reliably. 
 
This will also include subsequent expenditure except where this only maintains the asset’s 
potential to deliver the level of service anticipated when the asset was acquired. In this 
case, the expenditure will be treated as revenue and will be charged to the service account. 
 
Where a component of an asset is replaced or restored the amount in the accounts relating 
to the old component is de-recognised. Major overhaul or replacement expenditure can 
also be capitalised if it relates to a non-current asset that has previously been depreciated. 
 
A non-current asset is initially recognised at its cost, which is its purchase price plus any 
costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use.  Directly 
attributable costs are the labour costs of own employees (e.g. site workers, in-house 
architects and surveyors) arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the specific 
asset, the incremental costs to the Council that would have been avoided only if the 
particular non-current asset had not been constructed or acquired. 
 
Costs will be ineligible to the extent that they relate to activity that takes place before the 
intention to acquire or construct a particular non-current asset has been confirmed.  
Examples include project appraisals and feasibility studies. 
 
The Council has adopted an aggregate de-minimis level of £10,000 for expenditure on 
capital schemes; if expenditure in a single financial year is less than £10,000 it will still be 
capitalised if this is part of an ongoing scheme which in total is £10,000 or more. 
Expenditure on schemes below this level is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year it is incurred. 
 
12.13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
 
Recognition and Valuation 
After initial recognition in the accounts at cost, non-current assets are valued on the basis 
required by International Standards and recommended by CIPFA and the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  
 
Operational Land and buildings have been valued by the Council’s external valuers at 
Currentfair Vvalue on the basis of market related evidence where available. Depreciated 
Replacement Cost (DRC) has been used on specialist assets where there is no active 
market. The basis of the valuation, including that for vehicles, equipment and plant, is the 
net realisable value in existing use.  Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy 
for Currentfair Vvalue for vehicles, plant and equipment.  
 
Infrastructure assets and assets under construction are held at depreciated historic cost; 
community assets are held at historic cost. 

Page 61



 

 
Revaluations 
Revaluations of non-current assets are being carried out as part of a rolling programme 
over a four-year cycle. However, in addition material changes to asset valuations will be 
adjusted in the interim period as they occur, for example where there is enhancement 
expenditure in the year or as a result of an impairment review. Although a rolling 
programme is used, the Council’s valuers will consider the carrying amounts of all land and 
building assets at the balance sheet date for the potential of material misstatement. 
Revaluations of non-current assets also take place when an asset is classified as Held for 
Sale. 
 
Any gains on revaluation will be credited to the Revaluation Reserve, unless it reverses a 
previous loss on the same asset that was charged to service expenditure. In that event the 
equivalent gain will be credited back to where the charge was made in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Losses on valuation will be debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, unless it can be set against any previous gains in Revaluation Reserve for that 
asset. 
 
Impairment 
All categories of non-current assets or material individual assets are reviewed each year 
for evidence of reductions in value. 
 
Where there is a material reduction in recoverable amount, the loss is reflected through an 
impairment charge to the service accounts, unless there is a revaluation surplus in the 
revaluation reserve for that asset, in which case it will be set off against that surplus.   
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all non-current assets with a finite useful life with the 
exception of Investment Properties, some Heritage Assets, Assets Under Construction and 
Assets Held for Sale.  Where depreciation is provided for, assets are generally depreciated 
using the “straight line” method on the opening balance. Details of the relevant periods are 
shown in the Property, Plant and Equipment note to the accounts. The depreciation periods 
are reviewed each year. 
 
In exceptional circumstances, where an event occurs in year that creates a material 
difference between the opening and closing valuation of an asset, a different approach 
may be used to provide a fair estimate of the value of using the asset in the year. This 
would base the depreciation charge on a value judged to best represent the year in 
question overall. This will only be done where it has a material impact on the depreciation 
charge and the details will be made explicit within the notes to the accounts. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated. An amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation and that which would have been charged on a historical cost basis, is 
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Derecognition 
Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when it has no future 
economic benefit or social benefit. 

Page 62



 

 
The gain or loss from derecognition is the net of its disposal proceeds, if any, and its 
carrying amount and is included in the Other Operating Expenditure in the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services. 
 
Where part of an asset is being replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the existing 
part is derecognised and replaced with the recognised amount for the new part. Where the 
carrying amount of the existing part is difficult to identify, estimates based on the cost of 
the new part are used to establish the amount. 
 
13.14. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage Assets are those that are: 

 held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture 
and/or  

 preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or 
historical associations  

 
They include both tangible and intangible assets. Where the values of these items are 
individually and/or collectively immaterial they are included in the Balance Sheet at a 
nominal value, and reference is made to them in the notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
With the exception of the relaxations shown below, Heritage Assets are recognised and 
measured in accordance with the policies on Property, Plant and Equipment or Donated 
Assets. 
 
Land and Buildings 
Where valuation methods cannot be applied due to the nature of the asset, for example 
Kendal Castle, a nil value has been used. No impairment or depreciation is therefore 
applicable in these cases. 
 
Collections 
The disparate collections held in various locations within the Council are reported in the 
Balance Sheet at valuation. This is estimated using the insurance value. When acquisitions 
are made they are initially recognised at cost, whereas donations will be recognised at 
valuation by reference to market information.  
 
14.15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
Assets held and managed purely for rental income or capital appreciation are held as 
Investment Properties, and their annual revenue income and expenditure are reflected in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure. They are not subject to depreciation but are re-valued annually 
at Fair Value according to market conditions at the year-end. 
 
15.16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance, but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences), is capitalised when it will bring benefits 
to the Council for more than one financial year. The asset is normally held at historical cost, 

Page 63



 

less any accumulated amortisation (depreciation) and impairment loss, unless there is an 
active market in which case fair value will apply.  
 
The amortisation (depreciation) cost is charged to the relevant service account over the 
economic life to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits. Where an intangible asset 
has an indefinite life no amortisation (depreciation) is applied. In line with tangible assets, 
the values of intangible assets (if in use) are reviewed periodically, and impairment, 

disposal and useful life policies are also applied and reviewed.  
 
16.17. NON-CURRENT ASSET DISPOSAL 
 
Held for Sale 
Assets held for sale must be available for and in a physical condition appropriate for 
immediate sale, all approvals received or granted and expected to be sold within one year. 
In most cases this will be when the Council approves its sale and marketing.  
 
When an asset is classified as for sale, it is immediately revalued in its pre-reclassification 
asset class. It is thenbefore reclassifiedcation and shown on the Balance Sheet at the lower 
of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. When the asset is sold any gain or loss is 
shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains are only 
recognised up to the value of any losses previously posted to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Receipts 
Receipts from disposals are credited to Other Operating Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 
Amounts in excess of £10,000 are accounted for as Capital Receipts. 
 
The balance of receipts, after taking account of costs of disposal, is credited to a Capital 
Receipts Reserve and can only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement). Gains or 
losses on disposals are not a charge against Council Tax as amounts are provided for 
under separate capital financing arrangements. Amounts are appropriated from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

 
17.18. LEASES 
 
General 
The Council enters into leases both from and to external organisations/individuals. The 
nature of the lease can be either operational or finance with the determining factor being 
the amount of risks and rewards that pass with the lease. The Council currently has no 
Finance leases. 
 
Where the majority of the risks and rewards pass with the lease, these are accounted for 
as finance leases and are reflected in the Balance Sheet of the organisation that is leasing 
the asset. Otherwise it is an operating lease and all the transactions are confined to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Leases of land are classified as operating leases as land has an indefinite life. 

Page 64



 

 
Finance Leases 
Rentals payable are apportioned between: 

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment 
(initially shown as a liability in the Balance Sheet matched with a tangible non-
current asset – the liability being written down as rents are payable) and 

 A finance charge that is debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These 
costs are charged to reflect a constant rate of charge on the remaining balance of 
the obligation each year.  

 
Using the same principles as for rents payable, rents receivable are split between a capital 
element that is set-off against a long-term debtor and an interest element that is credited 
to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
 
Operating Leases 
Rentals payable are charged directly to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. This generally means they 
are charged when they become payable. 
 
Rents received are credited to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as they are due. 
 
Leases from External Bodies 
The Council enters into leases as well as other methods of financing equipment and vehicle 
purchases in line with the Prudential Code. It also enters into leases for the use of individual 
properties for the efficient delivery of services. 
 
Operating leases are charged to revenue on an accruals basis.  Sums not yet paid are 
accrued for and prepaid payments are treated as payments in advance.  Finance leases 
result in the creation of an asset and liability in the Balance Sheet along with the 
requirement to provide depreciation and revaluations.  
 
An analysis of leasing transactions is shown in the Notes to the Accounting Statements. 

Leases to External Bodies 

The Council owns a number of assets that are leased to external organisations. The 
majority are short-term arrangements (operating) and rentals are reflected in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Where effectively the lessee enjoys 
the economic benefit of the property for the majority of the life of the asset, a long-term 
debtor is established that is written-down by the principal element of the annual rental.  
 
An analysis of leasing transactions is shown in the Notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
18. INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments are shown in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  Investments are made in 
accordance with the appropriate statutory regulations and the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 

Page 65



 

19. INVENTORY 
 
Stocks held are valued at the lower of actual cost or net realisable value in accordance 
with the Code. Where stocks have been identified as being of no further use to the Council 
and the appropriate procedures have been complied with, the obsolete stock has been 
written-off; otherwise an allowance has been made for obsolescence. 
 
20. 18. BAD DEBTS 
 
The Council continually reviews its debts as part of its monitoring process taking account 
of past recovery rates and any relevant advice from external bodies. Provision is made for 
impairment of debts, which for most services is calculated as 25% of all debts between 6 
months and one year old, 50% of all debts between 1 and 2 years old and 100% of all 
debts over two years old.   
 
Separate amounts are calculated for Council Tax, NNDR, Housing Rents and Benefits. 
These reflect increasing levels of provision dependent on the stage of recovery, with 
anything over two years being fully provided for.  
 
21.19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents include: 

 petty cash 

 amounts held in instant access accounts 

 the consolidated payments and income accounts with the Council’s main bankers 
 
 
22.20. CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Capital grants and contributions received for the purposes of financing capital expenditure 
are credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis, unless there are 
conditions that have not been met. In this case, the income is credited to Capital Grants 
Receipts in Advance until the conditions are met. It is then transferred to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
When there are no conditions outstanding and the related expenditure to be financed from 
that grant has been incurred, the grant is transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 
and reported through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding but the related expenditure has not been 
incurred the grant is transferred to Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When the expenditure is incurred the grant is 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account with appropriate reporting in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. 
 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate and set off against the previous entries in the accounts. Repayment is regarded 
as capital expenditure and transfers are made between the Comprehensive Income and 

Page 66



 

Expenditure Statement and the Capital Adjustment Account with the transfer being 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
 
23.21. PROVISIONS 
 
The Council makes general provisions for significant liabilities or losses, which are likely or 
certain to be incurred but are uncertain as to the amounts or dates on which they will arise. 
For example the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 
requirement to make a settlement or pay compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service in the year that the Council becomes 
aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the amount that might be paid. When 
payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance 
Sheet. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and where it is apparent 
that it is no longer needed or the amount needs to be changed, then amounts are either 
credited back to revenue or additional sums charged to revenue to increase the provision. 
 

Details of each provision are included in Notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
24.22. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes, 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expenditure is incurred it is charged to the service revenue account in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is appropriated back into the General 
Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council 
tax for the expenditure. A list of reserves for specific purposes, and an explanation of their 
use, is included in the notes to the Accounting Statements.  
 
Capital Reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets and 
retirement benefits. These are not available for use by the Council for revenue purposes, 
and some can only be used for specific statutory purposes. These reserves are explained 
in the relevant notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
25.23. FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
Financial assets are classified into three two main types: 

 loans and receivables – assets  that have fixed or determinable payments but are 
not quoted in an active market 

 assets held for trading – financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

 assets held for sale – assets that do not fit under any other category; these are held 
at fair value and may include, for example, equity shareholdings and quoted 
investments, including UK Gilts. 

 
Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 

Page 67



 

interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means 
that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable, and 
interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
The Council has made loans to voluntary organisations and other bodies at less than 
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the present value of the interest 
that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than 
the outstanding principal. Interest is credited at a marginally higher effective rate of interest 
than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to 
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require 
that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the 
financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund 
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a 
charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited/debited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Assets Held for Trading  
Where financial instruments meet the Code criteria of “assets held for trading”, these are 
classified at fair value through profit or loss. These are recognised and carried at fair value. 
Movements in fair value recorded in the Balance Sheet are balanced by posting gains and 
losses to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as they arise. Any 
residual gains and losses arising at the settlement date are cleared through the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Fair value is taken as the bid-market 
price for investments that are not placed directly into bank deposit accounts. 
 
Interest earned on financial assets is disclosed separately in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 
 
Assets Available for Sale 
Where financial instruments meet the Code criteria of “Assets Held for Sale” any change 
in fair value due to market conditions will be posted to ‘Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure’ but will be reversed into the Financial Instruments Available for Sale Reserve. 
This will leave only the effective interest rate based on the amortised cost as a credit to the 
General Fund. 
 

26.24. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount (balance carried forward) of the liability, 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the borrowings 

Page 68



 

that the Council has, this means that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable, and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
Accounting for debt re-structuring or early settlement will be in accordance with the Code 
and relevant statute. 
 
27.25. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date which relate to conditions that existed at the balance 
sheet date, are adjusted in the Accounts and disclosures. For events occurring after the 
Balance Sheet date relating to conditions that arose after that date, adjustments are not 
made in the Accounts but details are disclosed in a note. Events taking place after the date 
of authorisation are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 
28.26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Where there is a possible obligation to make a payment, but the amount and timing is not 
certain, no entry is required to be made in the accounts.  However, for each class of 
contingent liability which the Council has the following commentary has been included in 
the notes to the Accounting Statements: 

 the nature of the contingency 

 a brief description 

 an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate)  

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any 
payment  

 
29.27. CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
Contingent assets occur where a possible asset arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Council. No entry is required to be made in the accounts.   
However, for each class of contingent asset which the Council has, the following 
information has been included in the notes to the Accounting Statements: 

 a commentary on the nature of the contingency 

 a brief description 

 an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate) 

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any receipt. 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



 

Appendix 2 
 

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the accounting policies to be adopted for 
preparation of the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this section is to explain the basis for the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts of South Lakeland District 
Council. Where individual transactions and other events are not covered by these 
policies they are accounted for in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice identified below. 
 
The accounting policies are the main principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
that specify how these transactions and other events are reflected in the financial 
statements of the Council.   
 
The accounts follow the appropriate accounting standards as required by the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 
(the Code of Practice). The Code constitutes a “proper accounting practice” under the 
terms of Section 21 (2) of the Local Government Act 2003.  The Code is based on 
approved international accounting standards, except where these conflict with specific 
accounting or legislative requirements, so that the Council’s accounts present a true and 
fair view of the financial position and transactions of the authority.  
 
The basic accounting convention adopted is historic cost, modified by the revaluation of 
certain categories of tangible non-current assets and financial assets. 
 
The Accounting Policies that follow are presented in an order that, as far as possible, 
corresponds with the layout of the main statements. A full index of Policies follows. 
 
 
GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
Policy 1  Fundamental Accounting Concepts 
Policy 2  Estimation and Prior Year Errors 
Policy 3  Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Policy 4  VAT 
 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
Policy 5 Revenue Grants and Contributions  
Policy 6 Employee Benefits 
Policy 7 Costs of Support Services 
Policy 8 External Interest 
Policy 9 Charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
  Statement for the Use of Non-current Assets 
Policy 10 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
 
BALANCE SHEET 
Policy 11 Fair Value Measurement 
Policy 12  Definition of Capital Expenditure 

Page 71



 

Policy 13  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Policy 14 Heritage Assets 
Policy 15 Investment Properties 
Policy 16 Intangible Assets 
Policy 17 Non-Current Asset Disposal 
Policy 18  Leases 
Policy 19 Bad Debts 
Policy 19 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Policy 20 Capital Grants and Contributions 
Policy 21 Provisions 
Policy 22 Reserves 
Policy 23 Financial Assets 
Policy 24 Financial Liabilities 
Policy 25 Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
OTHER 
Policy 26 Contingent Liabilities 
Policy 27 Contingent Assets 

 

 
1. FUNDAMENTAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS 
 
a) Underlying Assumptions 
 
Accruals 
The financial statements, other than the cash flow information, are prepared on an 
accruals basis.  This means that expenditure and income are recognised in the accounts 
in the period in which they are incurred or earned, not as money is paid or received.  
 
Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Council will 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future. 
 
b) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Information 
 
Understandability 
These accounts are based on accounting concepts, treatments and terminology, which 
require reasonable knowledge of accounting and local government.  However, all 
reasonable efforts have been made to use plain language and where technical terms are 
unavoidable they have been explained as they occur. 
 
Relevance 
The accounts have been prepared with the objective of providing information about the 
Council’s financial performance and position that is useful to the reader in assessing the 
stewardship of public funds and for making future economic decisions. 
 
Materiality 
The Code permits the concept of materiality to be used in the preparation of the accounts. 
Omissions or mis-statements of items are material if they could, individually or 
collectively, influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the 

Page 72



 

financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or mis-
statement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the item, or a 
combination of both, could be the determining factor.  

 
Faithful Representation 
The financial information is complete, neutral and free from error in that it: 

 has been prepared so as to reflect the reality or substance of the transaction and 
activities underlying them, rather than their formal legal character; 

 represents faithfully the transactions and events it purports to or could reasonably 
be expected to represent; 

 is free from deliberate or systemic bias; 

 is free from material error; 

 is complete within the bounds of materiality and cost. 
 
Comparability 
The financial statements have been prepared to allow comparison of the Council’s 
financial position over time. In addition to complying with the Code, the Council’s 
statements also comply with the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP); this 
establishes proper practice with regard to consistent financial reporting and therefore 
aids comparability with other local authorities. 
 
Verifiable 
Information used to prepare the accounts can be verified. Where estimates have been 
used, the relevant assumptions underlying the estimation technique will be disclosed. 
 
Timely 
The statutory timeframe for preparation of the accounts will be adhered to. 
 
Primacy of Legislative Requirements 
Local Authorities derive their powers from statute and their financial and accounting 
framework is closely controlled by primary and secondary legislation.  It is a fundamental 
principle of local authority accounting that, where specific legislative requirements and 
accounting principles conflict, legislative requirements as shown in Appendix B to the 
Code shall apply. To satisfy the twin demands of accounting regulations and legislation, 
Local Authority accounts include a reconciling statement to disclose how legislation has 
had an impact on the general fund and other reserves (the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and supporting note). 
 
2. ESTIMATION AND PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 
 
In order to prepare the annual accounts by the specified deadline, it has been necessary 
to use estimation methods in relation to some transactions and events. The Council has 
applied the same methods this year as in previous years. 
 
The estimation techniques that have been used are, in the Council’s view, appropriate 
and consistently applied.  Should the effect of a change to an estimation technique be 
material, a description of the change and, if practicable, the effect on the results for the 
current period and future years would be separately disclosed. 
 

Page 73



 

Where errors have occurred in relation to previous years’ recognition, measurement, 
presentation, or disclosure of elements of financial statements, they are corrected 
retrospectively where material and disclosed in the notes to the statements. 
 
3. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
In compliance with the Code, in all material respects both revenue and capital accounts 
of the Council are maintained on an accruals basis.  That is, sums due to or payable by 
the Council during the year are included in the accounts whether or not the cash has 
actually been received or paid in the year. In particular: 

 Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the 
date the Council provides the relevant goods or services 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, if material, 
they are carried as inventory on the Balance Sheet. Where not material, these will 
be expensed in year. 

 Employee Costs – see separate Employee Benefits Policy below 

 Interest payable on borrowings, and receivable on investments, is accounted for 
on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather 
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised, but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of 
debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might 
not be collected 

 
Accruals are largely based on known commitments and are assessed accurately. Where 
estimates are made, they are based on historical records, precedence and officers’ 
knowledge and experience. In all cases the Council adopts a prudent approach to avoid 
overstating its resources. 
 
4. VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) 
 
Value Added Tax is included within the accounts only to the extent that it is irrecoverable 
and therefore charged to revenue or capital expenditure as appropriate. VAT receivable 
is excluded from income. 
 
5. REVENUE GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Government grants and contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. Specific 
revenue grants and contributions are matched with the service expenditure to which they 
relate in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless there are 
conditions that have not been met. In such cases the income is credited to Receipts in 
Advance until the conditions are met. Once conditions are met the grant is transferred to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding, but expenditure has not been incurred, the 
grant is transferred to an earmarked reserve until the expenditure is incurred. It is then 
transferred to the General Fund Balance through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

Page 74



 

Grants to cover general expenditure e.g. Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Council Tax 
Freeze grant are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
within the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line.  
 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate, and are set-off against the previous entries in the accounts. 
 
6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
During Employment 
Short-term benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and non-monetary benefits for current 
employees. They are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Council.  
 
An accrual is made at the end of each year for the cost of holiday entitlement and flexi-
time balances not taken at the year-end. The accrual is based on the salary rates for the 
year in which it will be taken. The accrual is charged to the cost of services, but then 
reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement, so that benefits are charged to 
revenue in the year in which the holiday or flexi-time is taken. 
 
Termination Benefits 
These are benefits payable as a result of a decision taken by the Council to terminate an 
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or as a result of an 
employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals 
basis to the relevant service in the period when the Council can no longer withdraw the 
offer of benefits made to the employee or when the criteria for recognising a provision to 
cover such costs are met, whichever is the earliest.  
 
Where termination benefits involve pension enhancements, statutory provisions require 
the amount charged to the General Fund to be the amount paid in the year and not that 
calculated in accordance with relevant accounting standards. The Movement in Reserves 
Statement therefore shows entries in and out of the Pensions Reserve to bring the 
treatment into line with the accruals requirements of Accounting Standards. 
 
Retirement Benefits 
The Council has adopted the accounting requirements under IAS19 – Retirement 
Benefits, as required by the Code. Employees of the Council are members of Cumbria 
County Pension Fund, part of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Local 
Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections 
of estimated earnings for current employees 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate and 
type of bond provided by the Actuary  

 The assets of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

Page 75



 

- quoted securities at current bid price 
- unquoted securities by professional estimate 
- unitised securities at current bid price 
- property at market value 

 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Component Detail Accounting Treatment 
Current service cost Increase in the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation resulting 
from employee service in the 
current period including interest on 
the current service cost. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement for appropriate 
service 

Past service cost / 
gains 

Change in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation for 
service in prior periods resulting 
from a plan amendment or 
curtailment and any gain or loss on 
settlement. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement, Non 
Distributed costs 

Net interest on the net 
defined benefit 
liability(asset) 

Change during the period in the net 
defined liability (asset) that arises 
from the passage of time. 

Financing and Investment 
Income and  Expenditure 
in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

Other contributions to 
the Pension Fund 
including Gains/losses 
on 
settlements and 
curtailments 

Result of actions to relieve Council 
of liabilities or events that reduce 
expected future service or accrual 
of benefits of employees 

Debited to Net Cost of 
Services in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement, 
Non Distributed Costs 

Re-measurements  
(return on plan assets, 
actuarial gains and 
losses) 

Return on Plan assets not included 
in net interest. 
Changes in net pensions liability 
arising because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made 
at 
last actuarial valuation or changes 
to actuaries’ assumptions split 
between demographic and financial 
assumptions 

Accounted for in the 
Pensions Reserve and as 
part of Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure. 

Contributions paid to 
the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme 

Cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund. 

Not accounted for as an 
expense in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement but charged 
against General Fund 
through Movement in 
Reserves 

Other administration 
costs 

Other costs of scheme 
administration 

Debited to other operating 
expenditure 

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance 
to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement 

Page 76



 

in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits, and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the 
fund but unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Any prepayments into the pension fund will be treated as a reduction to the pension 
liability. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of 
an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the 
award, and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 
 
Residual Arrangements 
The Greater Manchester and West Yorkshire Pension Funds charge the Council for the 
full pensions of a small number of pensioners of local authorities that were replaced by 
South Lakeland District Council in the 1974 Local Government Re-organisation. 
 
7. COSTS OF SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The accounting treatment for support services has been prepared in accordance with 
SeRCOP.  The costs of management and administration overheads have been allocated 
to all services.   
 
The following costs are accounted for as separate expenditure heads and are shown on 
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

 Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation 

 Non-Distributed Costs – cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees 
retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses on surplus assets 

 
The total absorption costing principle is used with the full cost of overheads and support 
services being shared between users on the following basis: 
 
Description 

 
Basis of Allocation 

Financial Services Gross revenue expenditure 
Budget 

Legal Services Time apportionment 
Human Resources/Payroll Staff Numbers 
Democratic Services Time apportionment 
Administrative Buildings Area occupied 
Information Services Number of PC Users 
Corporate Services Time apportionment 
  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 77



 

 
8. EXTERNAL INTEREST 
 
Interest payments on external borrowings (Public Works Loans Board and other bodies) 
are fully accrued in order that each year bears the costs of interest related to its actual 
external borrowing.  External interest income is credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement over the period to which it relates. 
 
9. CHARGES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE   
STATEMENT FOR THE USE OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited or credited 
with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding non-current assets during 
the year: 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on 
tangible non-current assets used by the service and other losses where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be 
written-off 

 Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses 
or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to 
an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with 
statutory guidance). Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore 
replaced by MRP in the Movements in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two. 
 
10. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions, 
but does not result in the creation of non-current assets owned by the Council 
(REFCUS), has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in 
the year. Examples include disabled facilities grants on private houses.   

 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from  capital 
resources, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, so there is no impact on the level of the Council Tax.  
 
11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Where asset and liability values on the balance sheet reflect their current value, these will 
be measured at Fair Value unless a different measurement basis is specified in the 
Code. This is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to 
transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction, between market participants, at the 
measurement date.  
 

Page 78



 

This definition will also be applied if disclosures about Fair Values are required for assets 
and liabilities measured on a  basis other than fair value. 
 
12. DEFINITION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
All expenditure on the acquisition, construction, replacement or restoration of a tangible 
non-current asset has been capitalised and classified as property, plant, equipment, 
heritage asset or investment property, where it is probable that future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and where the cost 
can be measured reliably. 
 
This will also include subsequent expenditure except where this only maintains the 
asset’s potential to deliver the level of service anticipated when the asset was acquired. 
In this case, the expenditure will be treated as revenue and will be charged to the service 
account. 
 
Where a component of an asset is replaced or restored the amount in the accounts 
relating to the old component is de-recognised. Major overhaul or replacement 
expenditure can also be capitalised if it relates to a non-current asset that has previously 
been depreciated. 
 
A non-current asset is initially recognised at its cost, which is its purchase price plus any 
costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use.  Directly 
attributable costs are the labour costs of own employees (e.g. site workers, in-house 
architects and surveyors) arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the 
specific asset, the incremental costs to the Council that would have been avoided only if 
the particular non-current asset had not been constructed or acquired. 
 
Costs will be ineligible to the extent that they relate to activity that takes place before the 
intention to acquire or construct a particular non-current asset has been confirmed.  
Examples include project appraisals and feasibility studies. 
 
The Council has adopted an aggregate de-minimis level of £10,000 for expenditure on 
capital schemes; if expenditure in a single financial year is less than £10,000 it will still be 
capitalised if this is part of an ongoing scheme which in total is £10,000 or more. 
Expenditure on schemes below this level is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year it is incurred. 
 
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
 
Recognition and Valuation 
After initial recognition in the accounts at cost, non-current assets are valued on the basis 
required by International Standards and recommended by CIPFA and the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  
 
Operational Land and buildings have been valued by the Council’s external valuers at 
Current Value on the basis of market related evidence where available. Depreciated 
Replacement Cost (DRC) has been used on specialist assets where there is no active 
market. The basis of the valuation, including that for vehicles, equipment and plant, is the 

Page 79



 

net realisable value in existing use.  Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy 
for Current Value for vehicles, plant and equipment.  
 
Infrastructure assets and assets under construction are held at depreciated historic cost; 
community assets are held at historic cost. 
 
Revaluations 
Revaluations of non-current assets are being carried out as part of a rolling programme 
over a four-year cycle. However, in addition material changes to asset valuations will be 
adjusted in the interim period as they occur, for example where there is enhancement 
expenditure in the year or as a result of an impairment review. Although a rolling 
programme is used, the Council’s valuers will consider the carrying amounts of all land 
and building assets at the balance sheet date for the potential of material misstatement. 
Revaluations of non-current assets also take place when an asset is classified as Held 
for Sale. 
 
Any gains on revaluation will be credited to the Revaluation Reserve, unless it reverses a 
previous loss on the same asset that was charged to service expenditure. In that event 
the equivalent gain will be credited back to where the charge was made in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Losses on valuation will be debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, unless it can be set against any previous gains in Revaluation Reserve for 
that asset. 
 
Impairment 
All categories of non-current assets or material individual assets are reviewed each year 
for evidence of reductions in value. 
 
Where there is a material reduction in recoverable amount, the loss is reflected through 
an impairment charge to the service accounts, unless there is a revaluation surplus in the 
revaluation reserve for that asset, in which case it will be set off against that surplus.   
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all non-current assets with a finite useful life with the 
exception of Investment Properties, some Heritage Assets, Assets Under Construction 
and Assets Held for Sale.  Where depreciation is provided for, assets are generally 
depreciated using the “straight line” method on the opening balance. Details of the 
relevant periods are shown in the Property, Plant and Equipment note to the accounts. 
The depreciation periods are reviewed each year. 
 
In exceptional circumstances, where an event occurs in year that creates a material 
difference between the opening and closing valuation of an asset, a different approach 
may be used to provide a fair estimate of the value of using the asset in the year. This 
would base the depreciation charge on a value judged to best represent the year in 
question overall. This will only be done where it has a material impact on the depreciation 
charge and the details will be made explicit within the notes to the accounts. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated. An amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation and that which would have been charged on a historical cost 

Page 80



 

basis, is transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Derecognition 
Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when it has no future 
economic benefit or social benefit. 
 
The gain or loss from derecognition is the net of its disposal proceeds, if any, and its 
carrying amount and is included in the Other Operating Expenditure in the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
 
Where part of an asset is being replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the existing 
part is derecognised and replaced with the recognised amount for the new part. Where 
the carrying amount of the existing part is difficult to identify, estimates based on the cost 
of the new part are used to establish the amount. 
 
14. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage Assets are those that are: 

 held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture 
and/or  

 preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or 
historical associations  

 
They include both tangible and intangible assets. Where the values of these items are 
individually and/or collectively immaterial they are included in the Balance Sheet at a 
nominal value, and reference is made to them in the notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
With the exception of the relaxations shown below, Heritage Assets are recognised and 
measured in accordance with the policies on Property, Plant and Equipment or Donated 
Assets. 
 
Land and Buildings 
Where valuation methods cannot be applied due to the nature of the asset, for example 
Kendal Castle, a nil value has been used. No impairment or depreciation is therefore 
applicable in these cases. 
 
Collections 
The disparate collections held in various locations within the Council are reported in the 
Balance Sheet at valuation. This is estimated using the insurance value. When 
acquisitions are made they are initially recognised at cost, whereas donations will be 
recognised at valuation by reference to market information.  
 
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
Assets held and managed purely for rental income or capital appreciation are held as 
Investment Properties, and their annual revenue income and expenditure are reflected in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure. They are not subject to depreciation but are re-valued annually 
at Fair Value according to market conditions at the year-end. 

Page 81



 

 
 
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance, but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences), is capitalised when it will bring benefits 
to the Council for more than one financial year. The asset is normally held at historical 
cost, less any accumulated amortisation (depreciation) and impairment loss, unless there 
is an active market in which case fair value will apply.  
 
The amortisation (depreciation) cost is charged to the relevant service account over the 
economic life to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits. Where an intangible asset 
has an indefinite life no amortisation (depreciation) is applied. In line with tangible assets, 
the values of intangible assets (if in use) are reviewed periodically, and impairment, 

disposal and useful life policies are also applied and reviewed.  
 
17. NON-CURRENT ASSET DISPOSAL 
 
Held for Sale 
Assets held for sale must be available for and in a physical condition appropriate for 
immediate sale, all approvals received or granted and expected to be sold within one 
year. In most cases this will be when the Council approves its sale and marketing.  
 
When an asset is classified as for sale, it is immediately revalued in its pre-
reclassification asset class. It is thenreclassified and shown on the Balance Sheet at the 
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. When the asset is sold any gain or 
loss is shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains are only 
recognised up to the value of any losses previously posted to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Receipts 
Receipts from disposals are credited to Other Operating Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Amounts in excess of £10,000 are accounted for as Capital Receipts. 
 
The balance of receipts, after taking account of costs of disposal, is credited to a Capital 
Receipts Reserve and can only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement). Gains or 
losses on disposals are not a charge against Council Tax as amounts are provided for 
under separate capital financing arrangements. Amounts are appropriated from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

 
18. LEASES 
 
General 
The Council enters into leases both from and to external organisations/individuals. The 
nature of the lease can be either operational or finance with the determining factor being 
the amount of risks and rewards that pass with the lease. The Council currently has no 
Finance leases. 

Page 82



 

 
 
 
 
Operating Leases 
Rentals payable are charged directly to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. This generally means 
they are charged when they become payable. 
 
Rents received are credited to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as they are due. 
 
18. BAD DEBTS 
 
The Council continually reviews its debts as part of its monitoring process taking account 
of past recovery rates and any relevant advice from external bodies. Provision is made 
for impairment of debts, which for most services is calculated as 25% of all debts 
between 6 months and one year old, 50% of all debts between 1 and 2 years old and 
100% of all debts over two years old.   
 
Separate amounts are calculated for Council Tax, NNDR, Housing Rents and Benefits. 
These reflect increasing levels of provision dependent on the stage of recovery, with 
anything over two years being fully provided for.  
 
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents include: 

 petty cash 

 amounts held in instant access accounts 

 the consolidated payments and income accounts with the Council’s main bankers 
 
 
20. CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Capital grants and contributions received for the purposes of financing capital 
expenditure are credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis, unless 
there are conditions that have not been met. In this case, the income is credited to 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance until the conditions are met. It is then transferred to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
When there are no conditions outstanding and the related expenditure to be financed 
from that grant has been incurred, the grant is transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account and reported through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding but the related expenditure has not been 
incurred the grant is transferred to Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When the expenditure is incurred the grant is 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account with appropriate reporting in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. 

Page 83



 

 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate and set off against the previous entries in the accounts. Repayment is regarded 
as capital expenditure and transfers are made between the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the Capital Adjustment Account with the transfer being 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
21. PROVISIONS 
 
The Council makes general provisions for significant liabilities or losses, which are likely 
or certain to be incurred but are uncertain as to the amounts or dates on which they will 
arise. For example the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually 
result in the requirement to make a settlement or pay compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service in the year that the Council becomes 
aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the amount that might be paid. 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the 
Balance Sheet. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and where it is 
apparent that it is no longer needed or the amount needs to be changed, then amounts 
are either credited back to revenue or additional sums charged to revenue to increase 
the provision. 
 

Details of each provision are included in Notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
22. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes, 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expenditure is incurred it is charged to the service revenue account in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is appropriated back 
into the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net 
charge against council tax for the expenditure. A list of reserves for specific purposes, 
and an explanation of their use, is included in the notes to the Accounting Statements.  
 
Capital Reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets 
and retirement benefits. These are not available for use by the Council for revenue 
purposes, and some can only be used for specific statutory purposes. These reserves 
are explained in the relevant notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
Financial assets are classified into two main types: 

 loans and receivables – assets  that have fixed or determinable payments but are 
not quoted in an active market 

 assets held for sale – assets that do not fit under any other category; these are 
held at fair value and may include, for example, equity shareholdings and quoted 
investments, including UK Gilts. 

 

Page 84



 

Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has 
made, this means that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal receivable, and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
The Council has made loans to voluntary organisations and other bodies at less than 
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the present value of the interest 
that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost 
than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited at a marginally higher effective rate of 
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference 
serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory 
provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the 
interest receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain 
required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a 
charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited/debited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Assets Available for Sale 
Where financial instruments meet the Code criteria of “Assets Held for Sale” any change 
in fair value due to market conditions will be posted to ‘Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure’ but will be reversed into the Financial Instruments Available for Sale 
Reserve. This will leave only the effective interest rate based on the amortised cost as a 
credit to the General Fund. 
 

24. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount (balance carried forward) of the liability, 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the borrowings 
that the Council has, this means that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable, and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
Accounting for debt re-structuring or early settlement will be in accordance with the Code 
and relevant statute. 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

25. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date which relate to conditions that existed at the balance 
sheet date, are adjusted in the Accounts and disclosures. For events occurring after the 
Balance Sheet date relating to conditions that arose after that date, adjustments are not 
made in the Accounts but details are disclosed in a note. Events taking place after the 
date of authorisation are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Where there is a possible obligation to make a payment, but the amount and timing is not 
certain, no entry is required to be made in the accounts.  However, for each class of 
contingent liability which the Council has the following commentary has been included in 
the notes to the Accounting Statements: 

 the nature of the contingency 

 a brief description 

 an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate)  

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any 
payment  

 
27. CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
Contingent assets occur where a possible asset arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Council. No entry is required to be made in the 
accounts.   However, for each class of contingent asset which the Council has, the 
following information has been included in the notes to the Accounting Statements: 

 a commentary on the nature of the contingency 

 a brief description 

 an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate) 

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any 

receipt. 

 

Page 86



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 21 April 2016 

Internal Audit Recommendations and  

Annual Governance Statement Action Plan - 

Progress Report 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director (Resources) 
& Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer 

WARDS: Not applicable (corporate issue) 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report provides an update of the progress made against Internal Audit 
Report Recommendations and the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 
for 2015/16. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) note the progress made with implementing the Internal Audit 
Report recommendations 

(2) note the progress made against the Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan and Fraud and Corruption Action Plan. 

 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 A series of recommendations have been made by internal audit to improve 
governance. These recommendations should be implemented with regard to 
their priority. This report is a monitoring tool used by managers to track and 
report progress. The Internal Audit Manager also provides separate and 
independent comment on the implementation of the recommendations as part 
of regular or one off audits.  

3.2 At its meeting on the 4 June 2015 the Audit Panel considered senior 
management team’s self- assessment of the authority’s governance 
arrangements. Similarly to last year there were no issues that were 
considered as raising significant concern. Out of the 56 questions all but 3 self 
scored a 4 (4 equalling totally met).  These 3 scored a 3 which means that the 
best practice set out in the Code is considered to be partially met. The Audit 

Page 87

Item No.10



Panel considered and agreed with the scores as they were presented. The 3 
areas which did not score a 4 are included in the Appendix to this report to 
ensure that action is taken to consider how to improve the position. The 
progress to date which is all on track is set out in section 2.  
 
Internal Audit Recommendations Performance 

3.3 Section 1 of Appendix 1 contains the detailed recommendations and a note of 
the progress made against them.  There are 27 recommendations set out in 
the Appendix, 10 of which have future completion dates.  Out of the 17 
remaining, 4 have been completed and 13 are partially completed.   

 Annual Governance Statement Performance 

3.4 Section 2 of the Appendix sets out the actions that will be undertaken to 
improve the three areas highlighted as part of the self-assessment of the 
Council’s governance arrangements.  These involve longer term issues and 
work is underway to improve upon these and report back to the Audit 
Committee as part of the updated Annual Governance process in May 2016. 

 Fraud and Corruption 

3.5 Section 3 of Appendix 1 incorporates the outcome of the review of CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. There were 
six areas where improvements have been identified, 3 of which have been 
actioned. The progress with the three remaining is set out in the Appendix. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The author of this report has consulted with officers responsible for 
implementing each of the recommendations and has prepared this report on 
that basis.  The report has been considered by the Senior Management 
Team. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 None. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Improving governance will support the achievement of Council Plan priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 No additional financial or resources implications. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No additional human resources implications. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 This reporting mechanism provides assurance that the governance 
arrangements are effectively managed and reported. 

Page 88



 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental   

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

This report is a corporate governance 
issue and has no direct health, social, 
economic or environmental impacts.   

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

This report is a corporate governance 
issue and has no direct equality or 
diversity impacts.  

 

 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the audit 
recommendations and 
Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
are not implemented in 
a timely manner. 

Poor practice, weak 
controls, poor Value for 
Money.  

Prioritisation of the 
action to implement the 
recommendation and 
actions and monitoring 
and reporting of the 
process. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Shelagh McGregor, SLDC Chief Finance Officer, 01539 793112  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Report Recommendations/AGS Action Plan Monitoring 
Report/Corporate Fraud & Corruption Action Plan 

Page 89



 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None.  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

My Report n/a 1.04.16 1.04.16 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 21.04.2016 n/a My Report 1.04.16 

HR Resources 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

Assistant 
Directors  

 

1.04.16 n/a n/a 1.04.16  

 

Page 90



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

1 
 

        
     

    KEY: 
  
  

AMBER – work in progress  

    
 
 

GREEN -  implemented 
  

    WHITE –  deadline in the future 

1 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS  

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

March 
2014 

Car Parking   

1  R1) Further consideration should be given 
to increasing the health and safety and 
security arrangements surrounding the 
collection process. (Grade B - Medium) 

Community 
and 
Leisure 
Manager 

01/06/16 
 

 Partial Update 15/03/16: Planning Permission has been 

secured.  Insurance Company has been consulted.  

Procurement is underway having due regard to the 

security required.  Completion on target. 

17/11/14 Audit of Development Management 

2  Recommendation 4: 
Procedures should be fully documented to 
ensure there are no ambiguities in the 
application process, to guide 
administrative staff in their roles and to 
ensure consistency in processing 
applications. 
Medium Priority 

Development 
Management 
Group 
Manager 

Ongoing as part of the 
Customer Connect 
project over the next 18 
months. 
Sept 17 

The planning process is complex and requires 
professional judgement and flexibility to be an 
enabler of development in line with the Council’s 
ambitions for housing and jobs; in a dynamic 
policy environment this is not a one off process 
which can be easily documented. With this 
context in mind, it is accepted that administrative 
processes which support this can be documented 
more clearly. Progress is on track. 

P
age 91



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

2 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

18/11/14 Audit of Grounds Maintenance 

3  Follow up Recommendation 2 for ‘Audit of 
Grounds Maintenance’ on 10 August 2015: 
The key performance indicators and the 
system for recording and monitoring 
against them should be decided. Medium 
Priority. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer/Assist
ant Director 

March 
2016 

Partial The report was completed Sept 2015 and taken 
to October Cabinet.  The recommendation is to 
extend the contract with CLL and develop a 
partnership and a business plan.  Discussions 
are currently taking place to ascertain what is 
required to make this happen for 1 April 2017 

4  Recommendation 3: 
Management should review the 
arrangements around the use of Street 
Scene Monitors to ensure the approach is 
still relevant and adds value to the 
monitoring arrangements of the grounds 
maintenance contract. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer/Assist
ant Director 

March 
2016 

Partial 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Since the previous audit there is now a greater 
level of self-monitoring by the Contractor which is 
the subject of scrutiny at the weekly contract 
monitoring meetings. Future contract delivery 
options will consider the levels of self-audit and 
verification that need to be established to provide 
appropriate reassurances. A further assessment 
will be undertaken to determine if any additional 
resources are now required to support the current 
monitoring. 
Street Scene monitors will not be monitoring the 
grounds contact from 1 April 2016.  New 
monitoring arrangements will be established as 
part of the contract extension 

P
age 92



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

3 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

5/11/14 Audit of Lake Windermere Services 

5  Recommendation 1: 
The Council should develop its 
operational service planning 
arrangements for Windermere 
Lake Services to more clearly link 
service objectives and associated 
performance measures to wider 
Council’s priorities and the 
Strategic Vision of the partnership. 
Medium priority 

Director of 
People and 
Places 

01/11/16   Management recognised this is issue. There is to be a 
refresh of the Windermere Strategy; the Director of 
People and Places is leading on this review with LDNP. 
The timetable for the refreshed strategy has been 
revised with the LDNPA and reported to Lake 
Administration Committee,  with a completion date of 
the end of October 2016 
Draft action points from the 2011-15 Windermere 
Strategy are to be aligned to corporate priorities and will 
be incorporated into the Service Plan for year 
commencing Jan 2016. Progress is on track for 
inclusion in service plans for 2016/17. 

6  Recommendation 10: 
A cost / benefit analysis on the 
provision of RYA courses should 
be undertaken to ensure that the 
Council is fully informed on its 
decision on whether or not to 
continue / increase service 
provision in this area. 
 

Lake & 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 

01/01/16   Currently courses are offered to the Emergency 
Services on a cost neutral basis to support engagement 
with other public services, increase support on Lake. 
This training is offered during the ‘off peak’ season. 
A recent inspection of Ferry Nab as an RYA training 
centre reported excellent standards. 
Consideration to roll training out for general public 
consumption is open for debate. This would be a 
decision for the Lake Admin Committee and will be 
considered as part of the service planning 
arrangements. Progress is on track. 
Update 15/03/16: Consideration of rolling the training 
out has been delayed due to flooding in December 
2015. This will considered in late 2016 and within 
service planning process. 

P
age 93



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

4 
 

 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date Completed  Progress Comment 

15/06/ 
2015 

Audit of Fees and Charges 

7  Recommendation 1: 
The procedures and guidance around the 
application and review of the Corporate Charges 
Policy should be strengthened in the following 
areas: 
• A review should be undertaken of the 
effectiveness of the existing Corporate Fees and 
Charges Policy to assess and evidence that it 
remains relevant, fit for purpose in this economic 
climate and that it is accordance with good 
practice. The criteria for this review could be aided 
through the use of a self-evaluation questionnaire 
and how the policy should be accessible should be 
clearly defined; 
• Guidance should be prepared to aid a wider 
understanding of the principles contained within the 
Corporate Fees and Charges Policy and these 
should be shared with service managers; and 
• The Director’s Charges Report template 
should be reviewed and revised to include cross 
referencing to the principles contained in the 
Corporate Fees and Charges Policy Medium 
priority. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/16 as 
part of the 
Budget 
Process 

 Agreed and being 
reviewed as part of the 
2016/17 Medium Term 
Financail Plan. 

 

P
age 94



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

5 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit Report Title Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

11/06 
2015 

Audit of General IT Controls   

8  Recommendation 1: 
All system users should be 
requested to complete a 
declaration to confirm their 
receipt, understanding of 
and compliance to the IT 
Acceptable Use Policy. 
These declarations should 
be retained. 
Consideration may also be 
given to the automation of 
this declaration through the 
network log on process. 
Medium priority. 

IT Services 
Manager 
 

Jan 2016 Partial All new staff read and sign the 
appropriate policies prior to 
being given access to the 
council network – we haven’t 
requested all users resign as 
yet because the policies still 
need to be reviewed and 
updated 
 

9  Recommendation 3: 
Once all policies are 
refreshed, the procedure to 
be applied in the event of 
potential / known IT security 
breaches should be defined 
and documented. These 
arrangements should be 
made available to key staff. 
Medium priority. 
 
 

IT Services 
Manager 
 

March 2016 Partial Agreed that this will be part of 
the new policies that are 
created as part of the wider 
Information Governance 
project. 
The project has created the 
high level governance 
framework but the policies at 
this level haven’t been 
updated as yet. We are aiming 
to have the newly amended 
policies presented at the June 
HR Committee.  They will be 
rolled out after they have been 
approved. 

P
age 95



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

6 
 

 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

10/9/15 Audit of Insurance 

10  Recommendation 2: 
Service managers to be 
reminded of the importance 
of regular review of risks in 
demonstrating effective risk 
management to assist in 
assessing future insurance 
premiums. 
Medium priority. 

Street scene 
Manager 

31/10/15 
 

November 
2015 

Update 17/03/16: We now include the review of risks as 
part of our departmental team meetings as well as the 
project team meetings. Similar to project team meetings 
they are reviewed when appropriate. The round 
optimisation risks have been reviewed and amended 
several times in 2015/16. 

11  Recommendation 5: 
A review should be 
undertaken of the insurance 
documentation arrangements 
that includes focussing on the 
security of paper insurance 
files and should be in 
accordance with the 
Council’s document retention 
requirements. 
Medium priority. 
 
 
 
 

Financial 
Services 
Officer 

2015/16 TBA  The security of paper documents has been improved. 
Due to the low volume of documents and the need to 
retain some documents for a considerable period the 
current policy of retaining all documents indefinitely was 
not seen as a priority issue.  The management and 
retention of all documents will be reviewed as part of the 
implementation of the Council’s Data Governance project. 

P
age 96



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

7 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

10/9/15 Follow up Audit of Asset Management 

12  Recommendation 1:                                                                                    
The Council should have an 
overarching strategy of what 
is required / expected from its 
investment property portfolio. 
Medium priority 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Planning) 

31/03/17  Follow up Conclusion:  
The recommendation will be implemented as part of the 
property/asset management strategy review.  
 
Update 14/03/16: Preparation of a comprehensive 
medium term Strategic asset management Plan is a key 
action in year 1 of the re-tendered Property Management 
contract which commences in 2016/17. Ahead of that the 
Council has already commissioned a Town Centre 
masterplan exercise for Kendal, this will also inform 
strategic decisions about the investment portfolio 

13  Recommendation 4:                                                                                      
Management need to ensure 
a system is in place to enable 
proper co-ordination between 
NPS, the Legal and Finance 
sections to ensure all 
tenants/leaseholders are 
invoiced for the correct 
amount on a timely basis.  
Management should also 
monitor the effective 
operation of this system and 
apply accuracy checks to 
ensure the amounts charged 
are correct. 
High priority. 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Planning) 

 
31/12/15  

 
Partial 

Follow up Conclusion:  
This recommendation is partially implemented.  
Management actions demonstrate that actions were taken 
to coordinate efforts and apply accuracy checks to ensure 
the amounts charged are correct.     
 
Update 14/03/16: Partially implemented.  

Some monthly meetings have taken place but due to 
vacancies in Legal and the Asset Management Services 
these are not as yet as effective as they need to be. 

P
age 97



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

8 
 

14  Follow up Recommendation 
2:   
Management need to ensure 
a system is in place to ensure 
that action taken to 
implement rent reviews on a 
timely basis. 
Medium Priority. 

Solicitor to 
the Council 

October 
2015 
 

06/11/15 Legal advice on the collection of rent prior to there being a 
signed lease in place will be different depending on the 
circumstances. The consequences of collecting rent in 
advance of documentation being completed could be 
adverse to the Council should it seek to recover 
possession. This is why rent is not usually collected until a 
lease is completed.  
These particular cases will be discussed by Legal 
Services and NPS and an instruction sent to Finance.  
 
Update 06/11/15: Instruction prepared: Implemented. 
 

15  Recommendation 7:                                                                                    
Management should review 
the process to log and follow 
up rent review cases to 
ensure rent reviews are 
undertaken and enforced on 
a timely basis. 
Medium Priority. 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Planning) 

Sept 2016  Partial Update 14/03/16: There is a performance indicator in the 
new property management contract which highlights 
performance on completion of rent reviews over set time 
periods from giving instruction. It should be noted however 
that some tenants are less than constructive in seeking to 
agree rent reviews, in which case an independent process 
has to be actioned in order to reach a conclusion on those 
rent reviews. In the meantime progress on faster 
completion is being monitored with NPS at the monthly 
meetings. 

16  Follow up Recommendation 
3   
Relevant contract manager(s) 
should ensure that there is 
corrective action(s) in place 
that is agreed with NPS to 
increase completion rate of 
rent reviews/lease renewals.  
Medium Priority. 
 
Recommendation 2 also 
refers 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Planning) 

Sept 2016 Partial The new Property Services Contract commences in 
October 2016. One of the key year 1 actions is to develop 
a draft asset management strategy; this can be completed 
and the political process gone through in time for the 
implementation date agreed in the audit report of March 
2017. 
Additionally the new contract now has time related KPI`s 
for the completion of rent reviews (and lease renewals) 
following good practice. This KPI can be negotiated with 
the current provider NPS for the remainder of their (now 
extended) contract. 
 
 

P
age 98



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

9 
 

 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

10.11. 
2015 

Audit of the Homelessness (Social Lettings Scheme) 

17  Recommendation 1: 
Management should formally introduce 
performance measures for the Scheme 
and the targets should be agreed, 
monitored and reported through an 
appropriate forum. Scheme outcomes 
should also be shared. 
Medium priority   

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

March 

2016 

 Agreed management action:  
Recognised the need for performance measures to 
support the Scheme and this will be examined by 
management as part of future service planning 
arrangement.   
 
Update 14/03/16: These are currently being drawn 
up and will be ready by the end of March 

18  Recommendation 3: 
Management should strengthen the 
coverage and use of the ‘agreement to 
take accommodation on licence’, in 
particular: 
• The agreement template should 
be reviewed to ensure that it clearly 
sets out the obligations for each party 
and this wording should be endorsed by 
Legal Services. 
• Management should ensure that 
the authority for staff to sign the 
‘agreement to take accommodation on 
licence’ is defined and documented. 
Medium Priority 

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

April 2016  Agreed management action: 
Agreed, the format and use of the templates and 
authorisation processes will be reviewed. 

P
age 99



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

10 
 

19  Recommendation 4: 
Management should put arrangements 
in place to ensure to ensure that all 
checks have taken place to the required 
standard prior to the agreements being 
completed and that the appropriate 
records have been updated. 
Consideration should also be given as 
to what action should be taken, if any, if 
the property has a low energy efficiency 
rating. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

March 
2016 

Mar 2016 Agreed management action:  
Agreed – the process for evidencing that 
management checks have been undertaken will be 
introduced 
 
Energy ratings will inform the decision to accept 
properties on the Scheme and where improvements 
are required, referrals can be made to the Housing 
Standards team if appropriate. 
 
Implemented- new paperwork has been put in place 
for both pre tenancy checks and ongoing property 
inspections. These have to be signed off by the 
PHSHO. An agreed procedure for action re: 
properties with a low energy rating is now in place 

20  Recommendation 5: 
Supervisory checks of rent payments 
charged and management authorisation 
of write offs should be in place and 
evidenced. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

June 2016  Agreed management action:  
Agreed, more formal checks will be introduced. 

21  Recommendation 6: 
The methodology for calculating fees 
should be revisited to aid better 
transparency of the data and fees 
charged for each aspect. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

June 2016  Agreed management action:  
Agreed, the methodology will be reviewed to ensure 
transparency in the calculation 

22  Recommendation 7: 
Responsibility for managing the 
Scheme should be defined and 
documented (e.g. job descriptions 
updated). 
Advisory issue 

Developme
nt Strategy 
& Housing 
Manager 

March 
2016 

 Agreed management action:  
Agreed, responsibility for the Scheme will be 
documented and reflected in the relevant job 
description 
 
This is being processed by the DSHM 

23  Recommendation 8: 
Procedures should be established to 

Principal 
Housing 

June 2016  Agreed management action:  
This will be considered as part of the wider scheme 

P
age 100



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

11 
 

ensure that each property with an 
established tenancy has an expected 
date in which the landlord will take 
possession and onward responsibility 
for the tenancy. Also, the current 
arrangements for assisting clients to 
move onward to alternative 
accommodation should be reviewed 
and a procedure documented for 
action. 
 
(Refer to Recommendation 1 - 
Performance measures and outcomes 
should be reported to reflect the 
Scheme achievements i.e. when 
tenancies are returned to private sector 
landlord with established tenancies in 
situ, for future management or when 
clients progress from the Scheme to 
alternative accommodation.) 
 
High priority 

Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

review which will consider the pathways to 
alternative accommodations. 

24  Recommendation 9:  
The current approach and recording 
keeping arrangements for undertaking 
inspection of properties should be 
reviewed: 
• Management should seek 
evidence of the completeness of the 
inspections (including compliance to 
HHSRS inspection regimes) 
undertaken on properties prior to 
signing them to the Scheme. 
• A record should be retained of 
the checks carried out and action 

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

January 
2016 

Mar 2016 Implemented. As for recommendation 1 above a 
new procedure and paperwork is in place for weekly 
checks. These have to be signed off by the line 
manager. 

P
age 101



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

12 
 

arising from periodic inspection visits. 
• The frequency of inspection 
visits to be applied should be agreed 
and evidence of these should be 
recorded. 
Medium priority 

25  Recommendation 10: 
Procedures should be developed to 
enable the Council to recover (property 
damage) costs from the client, where 
appropriate. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessn
ess Officer 

January 
2016 

Mar 2016 Implemented. This procedure is now in place 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Completed  

Progress Comment 

P
age 102



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

13 
 

12.11. 
2015 

Audit of Street Cleaning 

26  Recommendation 1: 
The Service Plan should include 
specific actions relating to Education 
& Enforcement to reflect the Council 
Plan’s overall Environment priority.  
 
These actions should be targeted at 
the areas of greatest need and 
supported by clear objectives, 
budgets, targets and performance 
measures which can be 
independently reviewed by 
management and enable 
performance reporting of service 
outputs and outcomes. 
Medium priority 

Street Scene 
Manager 

March 
2016 

Partial Agreed management action:  
 The Clean Streets Campaign Action Plan will be 
revised to include specific targeted programs of 
educational / enforcement activity that are considered 
appropriate and proportionate and as may be 
considered necessary led by intelligence gathered from 
the contact centre. A separate Education Plan is not 
considered necessary nor enhanced resources needed 
to directly deliver educational messages at this time. 
We will continue to work with partner organisations 
LDNPA, CCC and LAPS and Town Councils to support 
them delivering their statutory and civic responsibilities. 
Current evidence points to an ongoing reduction in fly 
tipping incidents, Dog fouling issues, and recent limited 
feedback from a district wide parish council consultation 
did not indicate widespread nor significant littering 
concerns. 
Update 17/03/16: We have a broad action plan for the 
year for the Neighbourhood Enforcement Officers, and 
have a meeting next week to look specifically at the 
Clean Streets element for 2016/17. 

27  Recommendation 2: 
Management should consider 
whether Education & Enforcement 
requirements should be formally 
included within the Waste, Recycling 
and Street Cleansing service 
specification. Medium priority 

Street Scene 
Manager 

March 
2016 

Partial Agreed management action: 
Consideration will be given to including additional 
details regarding the Street Care enforcement and 
education, aims and objectives, as detailed within the 
service specification and any specific matters including 
key targeted project work will be Included within the 
service plan and clean streets campaign action plan.  
 
Update 17/03/16: The Service Plan is currently being 
reviewed for 2016/17. 

  

P
age 103



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

14 
 

2 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS 

AGS 
Ref No. 

AGS Measure Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

4.4.5 Ensure that effective, transparent and 
accessible arrangements are in place for 
dealing with complaints. 
Scored a 3 out of 4 in the self- assessment. 

AD 
Performance 
and Innovation 

2015/16  The process is currently under review along with the 
wider issues of data quality and transparency. 

5.3.2 Member succession planning. 
Scored a 3 out of 4 in the self- assessment. 

AD 
Performance 
and Innovation 

2015/16 31/10 
Partial 

This is being taken forward by the Member Support 
Group to see if any improvements can be made to 
existing arrangements. The Member Support 
Steering Group has produced a revised Member 
Support Strategy which will be presented to Cabinet 
in December for approval. This includes 
mechanisms for identifying candidates for leadership 
training. 

6.4.5 Ensure that the authority as a whole is open 
and accessible to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure that it has a 
commitment to openness and transparency in 
all its dealings including partnerships subject 
only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper 
and appropriate. Scored a 3 out of 4 in the 
self- assessment. 

AD 
Performance 
and Innovation 

2015/16  This is currently under review along with the wider 
issues of data quality and transparency. 

 
 

  

P
age 104



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

15 
 

 

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

The following are new items following the self-assessment against the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption and review of Local Code requirements. 

AGS 
Ref No. 

AGS Measure Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

3.1.2 Amend Risk Policy to make reference to risks 
arising from fraud and corruption 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

March 
2016 

 Completed as part of review of Risk Management 
Policy on agenda  

3.1.2 Complete fraud and corruption risk 
assessments including where the harm caused 
by fraud lies 

Corporate 
Anti-Fraud 
Officer 

October 
2015 

 Partially complete.  Delayed while awaiting the new 
CIPFA fraud risk wheel (published December 2015) 

3.1.2 Produce anti-fraud and corruption strategy as 
part of review of anti-fraud and corruption 
policy, to be considered by Audit Committee 
December 2015.  To include a specific goal of 
ensuring and maintaining its resilience to fraud 
and corruption and explore opportunities for 
financial savings from enhanced fraud 
detection and prevention. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

December 
2015 

 Dependent upon the completion of the fraud and 
corruption fisk assessments.  Will be informed by the 
newly published national Local Government counter- 
fraud and corruption strategy 201619 

Local 
Code 
Ref 
5b 

Ensuring appropriate financial skills of Officers 
scored 3 out of 4 with some scope to make 
financial acumen requirements more explicit. 

AD Resources 
 

2015/16  There is a pay and reward review underway which 
will address issues around required competencies 
corporately. 

 
 

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 106



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

21 April 2016 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (No.4) 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor –  

Assistant Director Resources & Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Emma Toyne - Audit Manager  
(Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service) 

WARDS: Not applicable (corporate issue) 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0  EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report summarises the work carried out by Internal Audit and details the 
progress made on the delivery of the approved 2015/16 Audit Plan.  

2.0  RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Committee notes the progress made 
against the agreed 2015/16 Audit Plan. 

3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Management is responsible for establishing effective systems of governance, risk 

management and internal controls.   It is the responsibility of management to 

establish the appropriate arrangements needed to confirm that their systems are 

working effectively, that all information within them is accurate and that they are 

free from fraud or error.  

3.2 Internal Audit’s role is to provide independent assurance to senior management 

and Audit Committee over the adequacy and effectiveness of management’s 

arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control.  

3.3 This report summarises the work carried out by the Cumbria Shared Internal 

Audit Service and details the progress made on the delivery of the approved 

2015/16 Audit Plan in the fourth quarter.  

 

4.0 AUDIT PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE 2015/16 AUDIT PLAN. 
 

4.1. To assist Members in monitoring the progress made against the agreed annual 

plan, Appendix 1 illustrates the current position of the Plan.  

 There are two finalised audit reports for members to consider at this 

meeting. These are attached as appendices 4 and 5; 

Page 107

Item No.11



 There are six audits which are ongoing, all are nearing completion; 

 We have completed the grant certification for the Rural Growth Network 

(RGN) – Kendal Enterprise Centre. 

4.2      There have been some changes to the planned work since the December 2015   

      meeting. The changes are outlined below: 

4.3      The flooding events in December 2015 have impacted on delivery of the audit  

     plan.  Staff resource within SLDC was diverted to deal with flooding issues which    

     has resulted in delays in some of the planned audits.  The position of each  

     individual audit is outlined in Appendix 1 to this report. 

4.4      The planned audit of Procurement has been removed from the 2015/16 audit    

     plan at the request of the S151 officer due to significant pressures on SLDC staff    

     following the flooding.  Whilst Internal Audit work had commenced on this audit    

     the remaining days allocated to this piece of work have been deducted from the  

     planned audit days. 

4.5 We have undertaken the audit of the RGN grant claim for Kendal Enterprise 

Centre.  This work was carried out at the request of the Chief Accountant and 

time has been taken from contingency as the work was not in the plan.  

4.6 We reported to the last meeting that the IT audit work had been undertaken.  

Given the scope and timescale for this work, the full allocation of audit time in the 

plan was not utilised.  The remaining time has been deducted from planned audit 

days (see Appendix 1 for detail).  

4.7 Members are asked to note the position and progress made against the agreed 

Audit Plan.  

 

5 INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

5.1 Appendix 2 lists the quarterly performance measures and reported performance 

to date. Other annual performance measures will be included within the Internal 

Audit Annual Report.  

5.2 Members are asked to note Internal Audit’s performance position.   

 

6 REVIEW OF COMPLETED AUDIT WORK 

6.1 There are two final audit reports to be considered by Members at this time.  

Guidance on the grading of audit recommendations, the audit follow up 

procedure and audit assurance ratings is attached as Appendix 3(a) and 3(b).  

6.2 The Executive Summary for each completed audit review listed below has been 

provided within Appendices 4 - 5.   

Audit of  Assurance 
Opinion 

Appendix 

Use of Agency and Interim Staff Reasonable 4 

Treasury Management Substantial 5 

RGN grant claim – Kendal Enterprise Centre N/A N/A 

 

Page 108



 

6.3 Members are asked to:  

 Note the progress made against the agreed 2015-16 Audit Plan. 

 Receive the Internal Audit quarterly performance measures as shown in 

Appendix 2. 

 Receive the completed final audit reports attached as appendices 4-5. 

 
7  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
7.1 This is a monitoring report, there are no alternative options.  

 
8  LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

8.1. To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

 

9  IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Financial and Resources 

 There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

9.2. Human Resources 

 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

9.3. Legal 

 There are no legal implications.  

9.4      Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and 
Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain 
your reasons. 

There are no health, social, economic  
or environmental issues. 

 

9.5. Equality and Diversity 

 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

There are no equality or diversity 
issues. 

Page 109



 

 

9.6. Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Audit coverage which 
does not cover the high 
risk areas of Council 
activity;  

Non delivery of the 
agreed Audit Plan; 

 

A key element of the 
internal control 
environment would be 
deficient, leaving the 
Council vulnerable to 
risk and potentially in 
breach of the statutory 
requirement to maintain 
an adequate and 
effective system of 
internal control. 

Insufficient internal audit 
coverage to provide 
assurance on the 
adequacy of the internal 
control environment. 

Robust audit progress 
reporting to senior 
management and Audit 
Committee each quarter 
period. 

Risk based annual audit 
planning. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Emma Toyne, Audit Manager, 01228 226261   emma.toyne@cumbria.gov.uk 

31 March 2016 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Plan 2015/16 

2 Audit Performance 2015/16 

3(a) and 3(b) Definition and structure of audit assurance opinions and 
recommendations 

4 Use of Agency and Interim Staff 

5 Treasury Management 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

 

 

 

 

Page 110

mailto:emma.toyne@cumbria.gov.uk


TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant Director Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to 
the Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 n/a n/a  n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 21/4/16 n/a  n/a 

Human Resources 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

Page 111



APPENDIX 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

Audit Plan 2015/16  
 

Report Title:                          Internal Audit Progress Report  (No.4) 
     Purpose of this Appendix:  To inform members of the updated content and delivery position of the Audit Plan. 

 
 
 

Directorate Audit Area Allocated 
Days 

Status (Target) Audit 
Committee  

Assurance 
Evaluation 

Comments 

Corporate  Use of Agency, Interim &Casual 
Workers  

15 Completed Apr 16 Reasonable  

Strategic Planning Housing Standards  15 Ongoing  (July 16)   Draft report issued.  Closeout 
meeting required. 

Strategic Planning 
 

Homelessness; advice, prevention, 
hostels and social lettings  

15 Completed Dec 15  Partial   

Neighbourhood 
Services 

Street Scene – Street Cleaning 15 Completed Dec 15 Reasonable   

Neighbourhood 
Services 

Bereavement Services 10   (July16)   Draft report due by 30/04/16 

Neighbourhood 
Services 

Leisure Services 15 Ongoing (July16)   Draft report issued, closeout meeting 
to be arranged. 

Resources – Financial 
Services 

Procurement  15 Postponed (N/A)  N/A Audit removed from current audit 
plan at the request of the S151 
Officer due to SLDC staff resource 
required for the audit being utilised 
on procurement exercises.  This 
audit will not be undertaken by the 
Shared Internal Audit Service. 

Resources – Financial 
Services 

Insurance 10 Completed Sept 15 Reasonable   

Policy and 
Performance 

Electoral Registration 10 Ongoing (July 16)  Audit fieldwork concluded.  Draft 
report is being prepared. 

P
age 112



 
Follow Up Audits  
 
 

Asset Management 5 Completed Sept 15 Reasonable   

Follow Up Audits Grounds Maintenance 5 Completed Sept 15 Reasonable  

Financial System 
Reviews 

Main Accounting System and 
Budgetary Control 

20 Ongoing  (July 16)   Draft report due 30/04/16 

  Treasury Management 15  Completed Apr 16  Substantial  

  Housing Benefits  25  Ongoing (July 16)   Draft report due by 22/04/16 

Governance  Corporate Governance – 
compliance with Local Code 

15   (July 16)   Work to be undertaken. 

Computer Audit  Digital Platform Project 15 Completed (Apr 16)  N/A 6 days used to complete the work.  9 
days unused (removed from the 
plan). 

  Audit planning and reporting 25 Ongoing (July 16)  N/A Work undertaken on an on-going 
basis as the contract progresses. 

Audit Management 
Advice & Guidance  

Contingency 10  Ongoing  -   2 days have been used from 
contingency to undertaken the grant 
certification for Rural Growth Network 
funding for Kendal Enterprise 
Centre.  

  Total Audit Days 
Less planned days not used:  
Procurement  
Digital Platform project  
Revised planned audit days 

255 
 

(9) 
(9) 
237 

        

 

P
age 113



APPENDIX 2  
South Lakeland District Council 

 

Internal Audit Service – Performance Monitoring 2015/16  
 

Report Title:                            Internal Audit Progress Report 2015/16  

Purpose of this Appendix: To provide members with quarterly performance monitoring information relating to the Internal Audit contract 

provided by Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service. 

 

 TARGET ACTUAL  Comments 

Audit Assignments     

Draft reports to Responsible 
Officer 

Within 20 working days of 
completion of audit 
fieldwork 

100%  

 
Final reports issued 

 
Within 10 working days of 
receipt of management 
response 

100%  

Audit Recommendations:    

Proportion of major and important 
recommendations acceptable to 
the audit clients 

An average of 80% over a 
year 

100%  21 important (20 medium priorities and 1 high priority) 
recommendations made to date, all of which have 
been accepted and timescales for implementation 
agreed. 

Follow up of 
Recommendations: 

   

Major recommendations followed 
up within the period specified in 
Audit Reports 

100% 100% The  follow up audits of the two partial assurance 
areas reported in 2014/15 have been completed. 

Major and important 
recommendations followed up 
within timescale set out in Quality 
Plan 

95% overall during a year To be undertaken as 
appropriate. 

 

 
 

   

P
age 114



 
 
Progress against Annual Plan: 
Number of man-days delivered in 
period expressed as proportion of 
annual plan.                                          
 
100% by 31 March with an even 
spread throughout the year                                                    

237 audit days in 15/16 
plan (revised). 

188 days delivered 
(79% of revised plan 
days) 

All audit assignments have been allocated for 
completion in specific quarter periods to aid workflow 
and committee reporting arrangements. Some delays 
have been experienced due to the December 2015 
flooding and this has impacted on delivery of Internal 
Audit work in previously agreed periods.   Percentage 
of planned days delivered is broadly comparable to 
14/15 where 81% had been delivered at this point.  
 
Note: WIP in Q1 of 2016/17 is inevitable due to year 
end reporting arrangements and constraints around 
committee reporting timescales.    
 

Number of man-days delivered in 
period analysed by staff grade 

Consistency with staff mix 
identified in contract 

On track to deliver Access to experienced and knowledgeable Principal 
and Senior Auditors are utilised to deliver the planned 
audit assignments.  

 

  

P
age 115



APPENDIX 3(a) 
Report Title:                            Internal Audit Progress Report (No.4) 

Purpose of this Appendix: To provide members with details on the structure and definitions of assurance options and recommendations 

used in audit reports. 

Audit Assurance Opinions 
There are four levels of assurance used; these are defined as follows: 

 

 

 

Definition: Rating Reason 

Substantial  There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 
the system objectives and this minimises risk. 
 

The controls tested are being consistently applied and no 
weaknesses were identified. 
Recommendations, if any, are of an advisory nature in context of 
the systems and operating controls & management of risks. 

Reasonable There is a reasonable system of internal control in place which 
should ensure that system objectives are generally achieved, 
but some issues have been raised which may result in a degree 
of risk exposure beyond that which is considered acceptable. 

Generally good systems of internal control are found to be in 
place but there are some areas where controls are not effectively 
applied and/or not sufficiently developed.  
Recommendations are no greater than medium priority. 

Partial The system of internal control designed to achieve the system 
objectives is not sufficient. Some areas are satisfactory but there 
are an unacceptable number of weaknesses which have been 
identified and the level of non-compliance and / or weaknesses 
in the system of internal control puts the system objectives at 
risk. 
 

There is an unsatisfactory level of internal control in place as 
controls are not being operated effectively and consistently; this is 
likely to be evidenced by a significant level of error being 
identified.  
Recommendations may include high and medium priority matters 

for address. 

Limited / None Fundamental weaknesses have been identified in the system of 

internal control resulting in the control environment being 

unacceptably weak and this exposes the system objectives to an 

unacceptable level of risk. 

Significant non-compliance with basic controls which leaves the 
system open to error and/or abuse. 
Control is generally weak/does not exist. Recommendations will 

include high priority matters for address. Some medium priority 

matters may also be present. 

P
age 116



  APPENDIX  3(b) 

Grading of Audit Recommendations 
Audit recommendations are graded in terms of their priority and risk exposure if the issue identified was to remain unaddressed. There are three levels of 

audit recommendations used; high, medium and advisory, the definitions of which are explained below. 

 

Definition: 

High ● Significant risk exposure identified arising from a fundamental weakness in the system of internal control 

Medium ● Some risk exposure identified from a weakness in the system of internal control  

Advisory ● Minor risk exposure / suggested improvement to enhance the system of control 

 

 

 
 

 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 118



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 0 
  

 
 

0 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

  

 

 

Audit Report for South Lakeland District Council 

Policy and Resources Directorate 

 

 

27 November 2015 

30 March 2016  

Audit of Use of Agency and Interim 

Staff 

Internal Audit Services are delivered to South Lakeland District Council under contract by Cumbria 

Shared Internal Audit Service, Cumbria County Council 

 

P
age 119

Item
 N

o.11a



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 1 
  

 
 

1 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Resources 

Title Name Email  Telephone 

Group Audit 

Manager 

Niki Riley niki.riley@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226261 

Lead Auditor(s) Gemma Benson gemma.benson@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226252 

 

 

Audit Report Distribution  

For Action: Andrew Reay, Human Resources Advisor; 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager. 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources & Chief Finance Officer 

Audit Committee The Audit Committee, which is due to be held on 21st April 2016, will receive sections 1 – 4 of the final audit report. 

 

Note: Audit reports should not be circulated wider than the above distribution without the consent of the Audit Manager. 

 

 

P
age 120



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council | Use of Agency and Interim Staff 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 2 

 
 

  

2 

1. Background

 
1.1. This report summarises the findings from the audit of Use of Agency and Interim Staff. This audit was a planned audit assignment which was 

undertaken in accordance with the 2015/16 Audit Plan.  

 

1.2. Use of agency / interim workers is important to the organisation because the reducing size of the substantive workforce may lead to more reliance 

being placed on alternative staffing arrangements. As such it is important to ensure that the Council has appropriate controls in place in this area 

to reduce the risks associated with use of external workers.  

 

1.3. Information provided from Finance showed that over the last two complete financial years (2013/14 and 2014/15) the Council spent an average of 
£536,000 a year on agency / interim staff, which is approximately 1% of the Council’s overall expenditure. To date (25th November) this financial 
year, £270,000 has been spent on agency staff with 24% of this relating to the Kerbside recycling service (see below). 
 

 
 

P
age 121



 South Lakeland District Council | Use of Agency and Interim Staff 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 3 

 
 

  

3 

 

 

2. Audit Approach 
 

2.1. Audit Objectives and Methodology 
 

2.1.1. Compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating 
to the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems.  A risk based audit approach has been applied which aligns to the five key 
audit control objectives which are outlined in section 4; detailed findings and recommendations are reported within section 5 of this report. 
 

2.2. Audit Scope and Limitations 
 

2.2.1. The Audit Scope was agreed with management prior to the commencement of this audit review.  The Client Sponsor for this review was the 
Assistant Director Resources and the agreed scope was to provide independent assurance over the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
arrangements in respect of: 

 

 Policies and procedures / guidance;  

 Recruitment of agency / interim staff; 

 Procurement of agency / interim staff, including use of preferred suppliers and tax implications; 

 Monitoring and reporting on the use of agency / interim staff within the Council. 
 

 

3. Assurance Opinion 
 

3.1. Each audit review is given an assurance opinion and these are intended to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 
control and potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.  There are 4 levels of assurance opinion which may be applied. The definition 
for each level is explained in Appendix 3a of the main Internal Audit progress report. 
 

3.2. From the areas examined and tested as part of this audit review, we consider the current controls operating within the use of agency and interim 
staff provide Reasonable assurance.    

 
 Note: as audit work is restricted by the areas identified in the Audit Scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and 

complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 

 
4. Summary of Recommendations, Audit Findings and Report Distribution 

 

P
age 122



 South Lakeland District Council | Use of Agency and Interim Staff 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 4 

 
 

  

4 

4.1. There are three levels of audit recommendation; the definition for each level is explained in Appendix 3b of the main Internal Audit Progress 
report.  
 

4.2. There are three audit recommendations arising from this audit review and these can be summarised as follows: 

 
 

4.3. Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 HR provides managers with guidance on agency/interim workers as requested 

 

4.4. Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

 

4.4.1. High priority issues: 

 There are no high priority issues arising from this review.  

 

4.4.2. Medium priority issues: 

 The Recruitment and Selection Policy does not include details on recruiting agency workers if standard recruitment is unsuccessful. There is 

no documented guidance on the use of agency workers recruited outside of the establishment or specific authorisation forms for this type of 

recruitment.  

 There is no regular reporting undertaken on the use of agency / interim workers. 

No. of recommendations 

Control Objective High Medium Advisory 

1. Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts - 1 - 

2. Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives achieved - - - 

3. Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information - 1 - 

4. Security - safeguarding of assets - - - 

5. Value - effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes - 1 - 

Total Number of Recommendations - 3 - 

P
age 123



 South Lakeland District Council | Use of Agency and Interim Staff 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 5 

 
 

  

5 

 There is no formal corporate purchasing arrangement in place for the supply of agency / interim workers.    

 

4.4.3. Advisory issues: 

 There are no advisory issues arising from this review.  

 

 

Comment from the Assistant Director Resources 

The actions required to improve the process will be implemented by the end of September 2016 to ensure that the improvements needed are 

implemented. Training will be provided to all Operational Managers and Assistant Directors. 

  
 

 

P
age 124



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 0 
  

 
 

0 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Audit of Lake Windermere Services 

 

22 March 2016 

  30 March 2016 

 

Audit Report for South Lakeland District Council   

Policy & Resources Directorate – Resources 

Internal Audit Services are delivered to South Lakeland District Council under contract by Cumbria 

Shared Internal Audit Service, Cumbria County Council 

Audit of Treasury Management 

P
age 125

Item
 N

o.11b



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council  |  Audit of Treasury Management 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 1 
  

 
 

1 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Audit Resources 

Title Name Email  Telephone 

Audit Manager Emma Toyne emma.toyne@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226261 

Lead Auditor(s) Gemma Benson gemma.benson@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226252 

 

 

Audit Report Distribution  

For Action: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

Claire Read, Financial Services Officer 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director - Resources 

Audit Committee The Audit Committee, which is due to be held on 21st April 2016, will receive sections 1 - 4 of the report. 

 

Note: Audit reports should not be circulated wider than the above distribution without the consent of the Audit Manager. 

 

 

P
age 126

mailto:emma.toyne@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.benson@cumbria.gov.uk


 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 2 

 
 

  

2 

1. Background 
 

1.1. This report summarises the findings from the audit of Treasury Management. This audit was a planned audit assignment which was undertaken in 

accordance with the 2015/16 Audit Plan.   

 

1.2. Treasury Management can be defined as “the management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 

capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 

with those risks”. 

 

1.3. Key activities associated with Treasury management involve cash flow forecasting (both in the short and longer term), investment of temporary 

cash surpluses to generate additional income, and managing borrowing and investment to finance the ongoing activities of the Council. These 

activities are all undertaken in-house. 

 

1.4. Treasury Management is important to the organisation because it ensures cash flow during the year is adequately planned, meaning the Council 

has the money it needs, when it needs it, to support the achievement of its priorities. 

 

 

2. Audit Approach 
 

2.1. Audit Objectives and Methodology 

 

2.1.1. Compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating 

to the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems.  A risk based audit approach has been applied which aligns to the five key 

audit control objectives which are outlined in section 4; detailed findings and recommendations are reported within section 5 of this report. 

 

2.2. Audit Scope and Limitations 

 

2.2.1. The Audit Scope was agreed with management prior to the commencement of this audit review.  The Client Sponsor for this review was the 

Financial Services Manager and the agreed scope areas for consideration were identified as follows: 

 Policies and Procedures; 

 Monitoring, Budgeting and Reporting; 

P
age 127



 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 3 

 
 

  

3 

 Loans and Investments; 

 Staffing; 

 Use of External Providers; 

 Data Security. 

 

2.2.2. There were no instances whereby the audit work undertaken was impaired by the availability of information. 

 

3. Assurance Opinion 
 

3.1. Each audit review is given an assurance opinion and these are intended to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 

control and potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.  There are 4 levels of assurance opinion which may be applied. The definition 

for each level is explained in Appendix 3a of the main Internal Audit progress report. 

 

3.2. From the areas examined and tested as part of this audit review, we consider the current controls operating within Treasury Management provide 

Substantial assurance.    

 

 Note: as audit work is restricted by the areas identified in the Audit Scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and 

complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 

 

4. Summary of Recommendations, Audit Findings and Report Distribution 
 

4.1. There are three levels of audit recommendation; the definition for each level is explained in Appendix 3b of the main Internal Audit progress 

report.  

 

4.2. There are two audit recommendations arising from this audit review and these can be summarised as follows: 

No. of recommendations 

Control Objective High Medium Advisory 

1. Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives achieved  - - - 

P
age 128



 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 4 

 
 

  

4 

 

4.3. Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 The number of officers able to arrange treasury management transactions remains restricted but has been doubled to provide increased 

contingency arrangements. 

 A clear record of all treasury transactions is maintained, along with an up to date list of counterparties the Council can deal with. 

 The contract for external treasury management advisors is regularly re- tendered. 

 

4.4. Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

 

4.4.1. High priority matters: 

 There were no high priority issues arising from this review. 

 

4.4.2. Medium priority matters: 

 There were no medium priority issues arising from this review. 

 

4.4.3. Advisory issues: 

 There is no formal process in place for the review and approval of treasury procedures. 

 Delegated authority to approve treasury management transactions has not been formally documented. 

2. Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts (see section 5.1) - - 1 

3. Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information - - - 

4. Security - safeguarding of assets (see section 5.2) - - 1 

5. Value - effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes - - - 

Total Number of Recommendations - - 2 

P
age 129



 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 5 

 
 

  

5 

Comment from the Assistant Director - Resources 

The Council has a strong Treasury Management function which the substantial assurance opinion reflects. I accept the recommendations to 

enhance the documentation and sign off on the good practices that are already in place.  

 

P
age 130



 

Chartered Accountants 

Member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP 

A list of members is available from our registered office. 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for investment business. 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Shelagh McGregor  
Assistant Director (Resources)  
South Lakeland District Council 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street 
Kendal 
Cumbria 
LA9 4UF 

 
19 January 2016 

Dear Shelagh  

Certification work for South Lakeland District Council for year ended 31 March 2015 

We are required to certify certain claims and returns submitted by South Lakeland District Council 
('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after the claim period and 
represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding. 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer Audit 
Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) has taken 
on the transitional responsibilities for HBCOUNT issued by the Audit Commission in February 
2015. 

We have certified one claim and return for the financial year 2014/15 relating to expenditure of 
£19.66 million. Further details of the claim certified  are set out in Appendix A. 

We are satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements to compile complete, accurate and 
timely claims for audit certification. However, our detailed testing identified some errors whereby 
claimants had received either an underpayment or an overpayment of benefit. In total, we identified 
five errors affecting Rent Allowance cases and two errors impacting on Non-Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) Rent Rebate cases. These errors were reported to the Department of Work and 
Pensions in our qualification letter. Additionally, we agreed some minor amendments with the 
Council impacting on non-HRA and HRA Rent Rebate cases. The total value of the amendments 
was £4641 which reduced the subsidy the Council claimed by £2628.  

In previous years we have identified errors relating to the classification of Rent Allowance 
overpayments. We found no such errors this year. 

The indicative fee for 2014/15 for the Council is based on the final 2012/13 certification fees, 
reflecting the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the claims and returns in that year. 
Fees for schemes no longer requiring certification under the Audit Commission regime (such as the 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields 
Manchester 
 

T +44 (0)161 953 6900 
F +44 (0)161 953 6901 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

Page 131

Item No.12



 2

national non-domestic rates return, teachers pensions return and pooling housing capital receipts 
return) have been removed. The final fee for the work undertaken this year is £10,060. This is 
consistent with the indicative scale fee set by the Audit Commission for the Council for 2014/15 of 
£10,060. Details of our fees are set out in more detail in Appendix B. 

Yours sincerely 
 
 
 

For Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Page 132



 3

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2014/15 

Claim or 
return 

Value Amended? Amendment 
(£) 

Qualified?  
 

Comments 

Housing 
benefits 
subsidy claim 

£19,664,402 Yes -4641 Yes Minor amendments made to 
adjust entries relating to six  
HRA Rent Rebate cases 
where subsidy claimed in 
error and correction of 
classification errors in 
respect of non-HRA Rent 
Rebates overpayments. 

 

  

Page 133



 4

Appendix B: Fees for 2014/15 certification work 

Claim or return 2013/14 
fee (£)  

2014/15 
indicative 
fee (£) 

2014/15 
actual fee 
(£) 

Variance 
(£) 

Explanation for variances 

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim 
(BEN01) 

10,060 10,060 10,060 0 N/A 

Total 10,060 10,060 10,060 0 N/A 

  

Page 134



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

The Audit Plan 

for South Lakeland District Council 

Year ended 31 March 2016 

April 2016 

Jackie Bellard 

Engagement Lead 

T 0161 234 6394 

E  jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com 

Neil Krajewski 

Engagement Manager 

T    0161 234 6371  

E    neil.p.krajewski@uk.gt.com 

Maeve Morgan 

In-Charge Auditor  

T     0161 953 6446  

E     maeve.t.morgan@uk.gt.com 

P
age 135

Item
 N

o.13



The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 

particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 

the Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely 

for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 

consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 

or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 

prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.  

 

2 

P
age 136



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 3 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of South Lakeland District Council, the Audit Committee), an overview of the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the consequences of 

our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. It also helps us 

gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit 

Office (NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015.  

Our responsibilities under the Code are to: 

- give an opinion on the Council's financial statements; and  

- satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Jackie Bellard 

Engagement Lead 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

4 Hardman Square  

Spinningfields 

Manchester, M3 3EB 

 

T 0161 953 6900 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

April 2016 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council for the year ending 31 March 2016 

South Lakeland District Council, 

South Lakeland House, 

Lowther Street, Kendal 

Cumbria, LA9 4UF 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 137



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business 5 

Developments and other requirements relevant to the audit 6 

Our audit approach 7 

Materiality 8 

Significant risks identified 9 

Other risks identified 11 

Value for Money 13 

Results of interim audit work 15 

Key dates 16 

Fees and independence 17 

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 18 

  

4 

P
age 138



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Understanding your business 

Our response 

• We will consider the Council's 

plans for addressing its financial 

position as part of our work to 

reach our VFM conclusion. 

 We will consider, as part of our 

VFM conclusion, how the Council 

is working with partners to take 

forward its strategic objectives 

relating to the local economy.  

 

Guidance note 

Consider the topic heading 

suggested on this slide, and 

select those which are relevant 

to provide more detailed 

comment/analysis. 
In planning our audit we need to understand the challenges and opportunities the Council is facing.  We set out a summary of our understanding below. 

Challenges/opportunities 

1. Autumn Statement 2015 and 

financial health 

• The Chancellor  proposed that 

local government would have 

greater control over its finances, 

although this was accompanied 

by a 24% reduction in central 

government funding to local 

government over 5 years.  

• Despite the increased ownership, 

the financial health of the sector is 

likely to become increasingly 

challenging. 

4. Economic Regeneration  

• Through their membership of 

Local Enterprise Partnerships, 

local authorities are focussing on 

how they can join up with industry 

to drive forward growth in their 

local economy  

• The Council is a member of the 

Cumbria Local Enterprise 

Partnership and the local 

economy is another of the 

Council's key priorities 

• The plans for local retention of 

business rates could increase the 

incentives for local authorities to 

generate economic growth.  

2. Devolution  

• The Autumn Statement 2015 

included proposals to devolve 

further powers to localities.  

• Discussions within Cumbria 

regarding the options for some 

form of devolution are on-going. 

 

• We will consider your plans as 

part of the local devolution 

agenda as part of our work in 

reaching our VFM conclusion. 

• We are able to provide support 

and challenge to your plans 

based on our knowledge of 

devolution elsewhere in the 

country. 

5 

3. Flooding  

• Flooding in December caused 

extensive damage to homes and 

businesses in the District. 

• The Council worked closely with 

the County Council and central 

government bodies to co-ordinate 

an effective response to the 

floods. Work to deal with the 

aftermath of the floods is still on-

going and the Council is 

continuing to liaise with partner 

organisations.  

• We have met with management to 

understand the impact of the 

flooding on the Council's finances. 

• We have determined that 

accounting for flooding represents 

a significant audit risk, as 

explained on page 9 of this audit 

plan. Management have provided 

a summary of their proposed 

accounting treatment which we 

are currently considering.  

P
age 139



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Developments and other requirements relevant to your audit 

In planning our audit we also consider the impact of key developments in the sector and take account of national audit requirements as set out in the Code of Audit Practice 

and associated guidance. 

 

Guidance note 

"One Firm" - use to bring ideas, 

issues or opportunities to our 

clients.  Consult with other 

service lines or sector teams for 

relevant matters.  This is 

intended to identify issues 

relevant for audit attention and  

the prime focus on matters 

relevant to the current financial 

period.  See AFR DL1000 for 

crib sheets to assist you with 

your discussions with your 

clients on the areas that are of 

relevance to them 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

Developments and other requirements 

1. Fair value accounting 

• A new accounting standard on fair 

value (IFRS 13) has been adopted and 

applies for the first time in 2015/16. 

• This will have a particular impact on 

the valuation of investment properties 

and surplus assets within property, 

plant and equipment which are now 

required to be valued at fair value in 

line with IFRS 13 rather than the 

existing use value of the asset. 

• There are a number of additional 

disclosure requirements of IFRS 13. 

 

4. Corporate Governance 

• You are required to produce an Annual 

Governance Statement (AGS) as part 

of your financial statements. 

• SOLACE and CIPFA recently 

concluded a consultation on proposed 

changes to the guidance relating to the 

Local Code of Governance. The 

revised guidance notes are due to be 

published in April 2016. 

 

Our response 

• We will keep the Council informed of 

changes to the financial  reporting 

requirements for 2015/16 through 

ongoing discussions and invitations to 

our technical update workshops. 

• We have already had early discussions 

with senior finance staff  regarding the 

basis of valuation of your surplus 

assets to ensure they are valued on 

the correct basis. 

• We will review your draft financial 

statements to ensure you have 

complied with the disclosure 

requirements of IFRS 13. 

• We will review your Narrative 

Statement to ensure it reflects the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of 

Practice when this is updated, and 

make recommendations for 

improvement. 

2. Narrative Statement  

• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015 require local authorities to 

produce a Narrative Statement, which 

reports on your financial performance 

and use of resources in the year, and 

replaces the explanatory foreword. 

 

 

 

• We will discuss with management 

whether any updates to the local Code 

are required in response to the latest 

guidance.  

• We will review your arrangements for 

producing the AGS and consider 

whether it is consistent with our 

knowledge of the Council and the 

requirements of CIPFA guidance. 

 

 

6 

3. Earlier closedown of accounts 

• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015 require councils to bring forward 

the approval and audit of financial 

statements to 31 May and 31 July 

respectively by the 2017/18 financial 

year. 

  

 

• We will work with you to identify areas 

of your accounts production where you 

can learn from good practice in other 

authorities.  

• We aim to complete all substantive 

work in our audit of your financial 

statements by 31 August 2016. 

 

P
age 140



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Devise audit strategy 

(planned control reliance?) 

Our audit approach 

Global audit technology 
Ensures compliance with International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs) 

Creates and tailors  

audit programs 

Stores audit 

evidence 

Documents processes  

and controls 

Understanding 

the environment 

and the entity 

Understanding 

management’s 

focus 

Understanding 

the business 

Evaluating the 

year’s results 

Inherent  

risks 

Significant  

risks 

Other risks 

Material 

balances 

Yes No 

 Test controls 

 Substantive 

analytical 

review 

 Tests of detail 

 Tests of detail 

 Substantive 

analytical 

review 

Financial statements 

Conclude and report 

General audit procedures 

IDEA 

Extract 

your data 

Report output 

to teams 

Analyse data 

using relevant 

parameters 

Develop audit plan to 

obtain reasonable 

assurance that the 

Financial Statements 

as a whole are free 

from material  

misstatement and 

prepared in all 

material respects 

with the CIPFA Code 

of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting 

using our global 

methodology and 

audit software 

Note: 

a. An item would be considered 

material to the financial statements 

if, through its omission or non-

disclosure, the financial statements 

would no longer show a true and 

fair view. 

7 

P
age 141



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in 

planning and performing an audit. 

The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'.  

As is usual in public sector entities, we have determined materiality for the statements as a whole as a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For 

purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £904,000 (being 2% of gross revenue expenditure). We will consider whether this level is 

appropriate during the course of the audit and will advise you if we revise this. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with 

governance because we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly 

inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £45,203. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which 

misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. 

We have identified the following items where separate materiality levels are appropriate. 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation 

Cash and cash equivalents All payments and receipts processed by the Council affect the balance and 

it is therefore considered to be material by nature. This means that we will 

apply a lower materiality and audit the balance regardless of whether it 

exceeds the overall materiality level we have set for the audit. 

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary 

bandings and exit packages in notes to the 

statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

Disclosure of auditors' remuneration in notes to the 

statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

Related Party Transaction Disclosures The Council conducts its business using public funds. The Related Party 

disclosures ensures that the Council discloses in full any transactions that 

have occurred with related parties.  This ensures that the Council is open 

about who it does business with and counters any allegations or suspicion 

of nepotism on the part of management or those charged with governance. 

 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

8 

P
age 142



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Significant risks identified 
"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA 315). In this section we outline the significant risks of material misstatement which we have identified.  There are two presumed significant risks which are 

applicable to all audits under auditing standards (International Standards on Auditing  - ISAs) which are listed below. Additionally, we have identified three locally-

determined significant risks. 

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures 

The revenue cycle includes 

fraudulent transactions 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue 

streams at South Lakeland District Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud 

arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because: 

 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including South Lakeland 

District Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable. 

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA 240 it is presumed that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

Work  planned: 

• Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

• Testing of journal entries 

• Review of unusual significant transactions 

Accounting for the impact of 

flooding  

The recent floods impact on the Council's financial 

statements, particularly the Collection Fund and the 

valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment. We have 

concluded that as the associated transactions are 

outside the normal course of business and the 

amounts concerned are material to the Council, this 

meets the definition of a significant risk. 

Work  undertaken: 

• We have met with officers and reviewed relevant documentation to obtain an 

overview of the impact of the floods 

• We have discussed with officers the different flood relief schemes which the Council 

established in conjunction with Cumbria County Council and central government. 

Work  planned: 

• We will review the controls management have established to ensure that the impact 

of the floods is appropriately reflected in the Council's accounts. 

• We will agree the accounting treatment for both grants received by the Council and 

grants paid out to local businesses and residents 

• We will confirm the programme of valuations includes appropriate coverage of  

Council assets affected by flooding.   

 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

9 

P
age 143



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures 

Valuation of property, 

plant and equipment 

The Council revalues its assets on a rolling basis 

over a four year period. The Code requires that 

the Council ensures that  the carrying value at 

the balance sheet date is not materially different 

from current value. This represents a significant 

estimate by management in the financial 

statements. 

 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate. 

 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used. 

 Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work. 

Further work planned: 

 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's 

asset register. 

 Discussions with the valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge of 

the key assumptions. 

 Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent 

with our understanding. 

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year 

and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current 

value. 

Valuation of Local 

Government Pension 

Fund Liability  

The Council's pension fund liability represents a 

significant estimate in the financial statements. 

  
 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of management processes to ensure the data supplied to the Cumbria Pension Fund is 

accurate and complete.  

Further work planned: 

 Liaison with the auditor of the Cumbria Pension Fund to understand the controls in place to ensure 

the data supplied to the actuary is accurate and complete. 

 Comparison of estimates used by the actuary to produce the valuation with actuals available to the 

Council and the Pension fund after the year-end. 

 Procedures to understand and assess the assumptions and techniques used by the actuary to 

estimate the value of the pension fund liability.   

 We will review the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the 

financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary. 

 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

10 

P
age 144



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Other risks identified  
"The auditor should evaluate the design and determine the implementation of the entity's controls, including relevant control activities, over those risks for which, in the 

auditor's judgment, it is not possible or practicable to reduce the risks of material misstatement at the assertion level to an acceptably low level with audit evidence obtained 

only from substantive procedures"(ISA (UK & Ireland) 315).  

In this section we outline the other risks of material misstatement which we have identified as a result of our planning. 

Other risks Description Audit approach 

Operating expenses Creditors understated or 

not recorded in the 

correct period 

(Operating expenses 

understated) 

 

Work completed to date:  

• We have reviewed the systems and controls that the Council have in place to pay and record expenditure incurred. 

• We have walked-through controls relevant to the risk identified. From this work we have not identified any control 

weaknesses or errors. 

• Early testing of a sample of expenditure transactions from the first eleven months of the financial year.  

Work planned:  

• Substantive testing of a sample of year end creditors and accruals. 

• Testing of both expenditure transactions in the remaining three months and a sample of creditors and accruals to 

ensure "cut-off" is correct (ie. that they are recorded in the right period). 

• Computer Assisted Audit Techniques to compare payments in the 2016-17 financial year with the balances 

outstanding in the balance sheet, as at 31 March 2016.  

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration 

accruals understated  

(Remuneration expenses 

not correct) 

 

Work completed to date:  

• We have reviewed the systems and controls that the Council has in place to ensure that its employees are paid the 

correct amount based on hours worked and their contractual entitlement, including arrangements to accrue for 

amounts outstanding but not yet paid at the year-end.  

• We have walked-through the controls the Authority has in place in relation to this risk. 

• We have undertaken early testing of payroll transactions relating to the period April 2015 – February 2016.  

 Work planned:  

• Sample testing of payroll transactions from March 2016. 

• Substantive testing of significant year end payroll accruals. 

• Analytical procedures to identify any discrepancies in monthly payrolls and consideration as to whether payroll 

expenditure is in line with our expectations based on supporting evidence. 

• Testing of the reconciliation between the payroll system and the amounts recorded in the financial statements. 

11 

P
age 145



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Other risks identified (continued)  

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous section but will include:  

Other audit responsibilities 

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in the Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and consistent 

with our knowledge of the Council. 

• We will read the Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the statements on which we give an opinion and disclosures are in line with the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

• We will carry out work on consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors. 

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about the accounts and consider and decide upon objections received in relation to the accounts  
 

• Investments (long term and short term) 

• Cash and cash equivalents 

• Borrowing and other liabilities (long term and short term) 

• Welfare Benefits Expenditure  

• Provisions 

• Usable and unusable reserves 

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes 

• Statement of cash flows and associated notes 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure 

• Taxation and non-specific grants 

 

 

• Segmental reporting note 

• Officers' remuneration note 

• Leases note 

• Related party transactions note 

• Capital expenditure and capital financing note 

• Financial instruments note 

• Collection Fund and associated notes 

12 

P
age 146



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Value for Money 

Background 

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act') and the NAO Code of 
Audit Practice ('the Code') require us to consider whether the Council has put in 
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work in November 2015. The Act and NAO guidance state that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has put proper arrangements in place.  

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria in the adjacent table: 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of good governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making and performance management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control. 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions 

• Managing assets effectively to support the delivery of 

strategic priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and 

other third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities. 

13 

P
age 147



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Value for Money (continued) 

Risk assessment 

We completed an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial risk assessment, we considered: 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements. 

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies. 

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its Supporting Information. 

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements. 

The NAO's Code of Audit Practice defines ‘significant’ as follows:  

A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of  interest to the audited body or the wider public. Significance 

has both qualitative and quantitative aspects.  

We have not identified any significant risks from our initial risk assessment. We will continue our review of your arrangements, including reviewing your Annual 
Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor's report. 

 

 

 

 

 

14 

P
age 148



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Results of  interim audit work 

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below: 

Work performed Conclusion 

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including: 

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values 

• Commitment to competence 

• Participation by those charged with governance 

• Management's philosophy and operating style 

• Organisational structure 

• Assignment of authority and responsibility 

• Human resource policies and practices 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements  

 

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and 
procedures as part of determining our journal entry testing strategy 
and have not identified any material weaknesses which are likely to 
adversely impact on the Council's control environment or financial 
statements. 
 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.  

Early Testing In order to ensure an efficient final accounts audit, we have 
undertaken early testing of income, operating expenses and payroll 
expenditure as part of our recent interim visit.  

Our early testing has not identified any issues.  

15 

P
age 149



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

The audit cycle 

Key dates 

Completion/ 

reporting  
Debrief 

Interim audit  

visit 

Final accounts 

Visit 

March 2016 July/August 2016 September 2016 November 2016 

Key phases of our audit 

2015-2016 

Date Activity 

January – March 2016 Planning 

March 2016 Interim site visit 

21st April 2016 Presentation of audit plan to Audit Committee 

July – August  2016 Year end fieldwork 

September 2016 Audit findings clearance meeting with the Assistant Director (Resources) 

By 30th September 2016 Report audit findings to those charged with governance (Audit Committee) 

By 30th September 2016 Sign financial statements opinion 

16 

P
age 150



©  2016  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The  Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 
 

DRAFT 

Fees 

£ 

Council audit 55,851 

Grant certification 5,082 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 60,933 

Fees and independence 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list. 

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 

changed significantly. 

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations. 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

 

Grant certification 

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited 

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'. 

Fees for other services 

We  have not agreed to provide any other services to the Council at the time of issuing this 

audit plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and Annual Audit 

Letter.  

 

Independence and ethics 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as 

auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services will be included in our Audit 

Findings Report at the conclusion of the audit. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

17 

P
age 151



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2015/16 

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, 

prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with 

governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings Report will be issued prior to approval of the financial 

statements  and will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 

with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council. 

Respective responsibilities 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

 

 

18 

P
age 152

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

19 

P
age 153



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 154



Page 155

Item No.14



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee Progress Report and Update 

Year ended 31 March 2016
April 2016

Jackie Bellard
Engagement Lead
T 0161 234 6394
E jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com

Neil Krajewski
Engagement Manager
T 0161 234 6371 
E neil.p.krajewski@uk.gt.com

Maeve Morgan
In-Charge Auditor
T     0161 953 6446 
E maeve.t.morgan@uk.gt.com

P
age 159

Item
 N

o.15



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

2© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 
reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 
be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 
affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 
of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 160



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

3© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit and Assurance Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, 

where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications:

• Innovation in public financial management (December 2015); www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-

in-public-financial-management/

• Knowing the Ropes – Audit Committee; Effectiveness Review (October 2015); 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/

• Making devolution work: A practical guide for local leaders (October 2015) 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager.

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report 

on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your 

external auditors. 

P
age 161



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

4© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at 4th April 2016

2015/16 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2015/16' by the 
end of April 2015

April 2015 Yes The 2015/16 fee letter was issued in line with the published timetable.

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 
Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 
opinion on the Council's 2015-16 financial statements.

March 2016 Yes Our audit plan has been produced and agreed with management and is 
included as a separate agenda item for the Audit Committee to 
consider.

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included:
• updated review of the Council's control environment
• updated understanding of financial systems
• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems
• early work on emerging accounting issues
• early substantive testing
• Value for Money risk assessment.

March 2016 Yes Our interim audit work concluded at the end of March. This included 
early audit testing where practical to support a more efficient final 
accounts audit.

Final accounts audit
Including:
• audit of the 2015-16 financial statements
• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts
• proposed Value for Money conclusion
• review of the Council's disclosures against the Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16  

July – August 
2016

Not started We are planning to complete our audit by 31st August. as part of the 
transition to the earlier closedown and audit cycle from 2018.

P
age 162



Local Government 
Accounting and other issuesP

age 163



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

6© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
6

IFRS 13 'Fair value measurement

The 2015/16 Accounting Code applies IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' for the first time. The standard sets out in a 
single framework for measuring fair value and defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

There is no public sector adaptation to IFRS13 but the Treasury and therefore the Code has adapted IAS 16 Property, 
Plant and Equipment so that operational assets (providing service potential) are no longer held at fair value but current 
value. As such IFRS 13 does not apply to operational assets. This new definition of current value means that the 
measurement requirements for operational property, plant and equipment providing service potential have not changed 
from the prior year.

However, surplus assets will need to be measured under the new definition of fair value, reflecting the highest and best 
use from the market participant perspective. 

Other areas affected by the new standard include investment property, available for sale financial assets and those items  
where fair values are disclosed - for example, long term loans and PFI liabilities. IFRS 13 also introduces extensive 
disclosure requirements.

P
age 164



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

7© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
7

Highways Network Asset 

CIPFA announced at the recent Local Government Accounting Conferences some key messages with regards to changes in accounting for the Highways Network Asset 
form 2016/17. These included:
• Transport Infrastructure Assets will now be referred to as single asset, the Highways Network Asset (HNA);
• this will be measured at Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) using the Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) basis of valuation from 1 April 2016 and will be applied 

prospectively rather than requiring a full retrospective restatement; and
• the new requirements only apply to authorities with assets meeting the definition of a single HNA asset.

CIPFA expects that the transport infrastructure assets held by district councils/ non-highways authorities will be scoped out of the new requirements as assets are unlikely 
to form a single interconnected network. However, district councils will need to consider the nature of their transport infrastructure assets to assure themselves and 
evidence that their transport infrastructure assets are not part of an interconnected network. 

The 2016/17 Accounting Code which will include further details on these announcements is expected to be published in Spring 2016. Grant Thornton has produced a short 
briefing on these announcements which is available from your Engagement Lead and Engagement Manager and will provide further briefings as further details become 
availablerequirements.

P
age 165



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

8© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
8

Unlodged non-domestic rate appeals

Last year, there were primarily no provisions for unlodged non-domestic rates appeals as appeals received on or after 1 April 2015 were only backdated to 1 April 2015. The 
effect of last years announcement was supposed to put authorities in the position as if the revaluation had been done in 2015 as initially intended before the extension to 
2017. This was only a one year reprieve and so any unlodged appeals at 31 March 2016 will only be backdated to 1 April 2015 and therefore may not be material.

However, this year, local authorities will need to estimate a provision for unlodged appeals but as above it may not be material.

Under IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' and the Code it is in only extremely rare cases that a reliable estimate cannot be made.  Therefore, if 
your local authority does have such an instance, the rationale needs backing up: both in terms of disclosures (as a contingent liability) and in providing evidence to those 
charged with governance as to why a reliable estimate for the provision cannot be made.

P
age 166



Grant Thornton 
PublicationsP

age 167



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

10© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Reforging local government: Summary findings of  financial 
health checks and governance reviews

The recent autumn statement represents the biggest 

change in local government finance in 35 years. The 

Chancellor announced that in 2019/20 councils will 

spend the same in cash terms as they do today and that 

"better financial management and further efficiency" will 

be required to achieve the projected 29% savings. Based 

on our latest review of  financial resilience at English 

local authorities, this presents a serious challenge to many 

councils that have already become lean. 

• the majority of  councils will continue to weather the 
financial storm, but to do so will now require difficult 
decisions to be made about services

• most councils project significant funding gaps over the next 
three to five years, but the lack of  detailed plans to address 
these deficits in the medium-term represents a key risk

• Whitehall needs to go further and faster in allowing localities 
to drive growth and public service reform including proper 
fiscal devolution that supports businesses and communities

• local government needs a deeper understanding of  their 
local partners to deliver the transformational changes that 
are needed and do more to break down silos

• elected members have an increasingly important role in 
ensuring good governance is not just about compliance with 
regulations, but also about effective management of  change 
and risk

• councils need to improve the level of  consultation with the 
public when prioritising services and make sure that their 
views help shape council development plans.

Our report is available at  

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-

government/, or in hard copy from your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.

Our research suggests that:

P
age 168



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

11© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

CFO Insights – driving performance improvement 

The tool provides a three-dimensional lens through 
which to understand council income and spend by 
category, the outcomes for that spend and the socio-
economic context within which a council operates. 
This enables comparison against others, not only 
nationally, but in the context of their geographical and 
statistical neighbours. CFO Insights is an invaluable 
tool providing focused insight to develop, and the 
evidence to support, financial decisions.

CFO insights is an online analysis tool that gives 

those aspiring to improve the financial position 

of  their local authority instant access to insight 

on the financial performance, socio- economy 

context and service outcomes of  every council in 

England, Scotland and Wales.

.

We are happy to 

organise a 

demonstration of  the 

tool if  you want to know 

more.

P
age 169



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

12© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Innovation in public financial
management

In December 2015 we issued a report, 

which drew on a survey of  almost 300 

practitioners worldwide, also includes 

insights from experts at the International 

Consortium on Governmental Financial 

Management (ICGFM) and the 

Massachusetts Institute of  Technology's 

Centre for Finance and Policy.

The report is the latest in a decade-long series jointly 

published by Grant Thornton and the ICGFM and it 

covers four major topics that, globally, will impact on the 

future of public financial management:

Changing practices: Our research showed that the 

biggest issue ahead will be finding the political 

commitment to support more difficult innovations on 

the agenda – such as increasing public engagement. 

The right PPP formula: 90% of respondents felt that 

substantial investment in infrastructure was required to 

drive economic growth. In this age of austerity, most 

governments are also seeking ways to attract outside 

investment – with the majority using some form of 

public-private partnership (PPP). Many countries remain 

inexperienced with such arrangements and the results of

their application have been mixed. There has been little 

improvement since our 2011 survey, which shows that it 

takes a long time to develop the requisite skills and 

experience to make PPPs work.

Transparency with technology: Public financial 

managers are convinced of the importance of enhancing 

transparency and most are trying to be innovative in this 

area. However, most are using outdated digital tools. 

Fewer than half use social media to enhance openness. 

Even among the best, most transparency efforts are 

focussed on releasing data sets than data insights.

The new normal: Public financial management remains 

weighed down by the effects of the global financial crisis, 

but respondents also focussed on important 

developments since 2008, such as the Eurozone 

problems and the collapse of commodity prices. This 

suggests that public financial management is having to 

come to terms with not just the lessons one major 

financial crisis, but with how governments can live with 

less over the long term.

Our report, Innovation in public financial management, 

can be downloaded from our website: 

http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/in

novation-in-public-financial-management/

Grant Thornton reports

P
age 170



Audit Committee progress report and update – South L akeland District Council

13© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

2016 Transparency Report

Grant Thornton's commitment to quality 

underpins all that we do and this is 

reflected in our 2016 Transparency Report.

We have more than 42,000 people in over 130 countries 

and this report is a public statement of our commitment 

to provide high-quality services to businesses and 

organisations operating throughout the world.

It is designed to help clients, audit committees, 

regulators and the public, who make up our many 

stakeholders, understand us better.

The report covers the three key aspects of our business, 

namely:

• Audit  and assurance;

• Taxation; and

• Advisory services.

The report provides information on our audit 

methodology and sets out how we monitor the quality of 

our work and engage with external regulators.

It also covers our arrangements for governance and 

management and sets our most recent financial 

information.

The report can be downloaded from our website:

www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-

firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-

2016.pdf

Alternatively, hard copies can be provided by your 

Engagement Lead or Audit Manager.

Grant Thornton reports

P
age 171



GRT102468

P
age 172



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

21 April 2016 

CHANGES TO ARRANGEMENTS FOR 
APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director (Resources) 
and Chief Finance Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Not applicable (corporate issue) 

KEY DECISION: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report summarises the changes to the arrangements for appointing 
External Auditors following the closure of the Audit Commission and the end 
of the transitional arrangements at the conclusion of the 2017/18 audits.  The 
Council will need to consider the options available to ensure new 
arrangements in time to make a first appointment by 31 December 2017. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) approve that the Council indicate its interest in the opting-in to 
the Sector Led Body approach for the appointment of External 
Auditors; and 

(2) note that a formal decision to opt-in will be required at a later 
stage. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 brought to a close the Audit 
Commission and established transitional arrangements for the appointment of 
external auditors and the setting of audit fees for all local government and 
NHS bodies in England. On 5 October 2015 the Secretary of State 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) determined that the transitional 
arrangements for local government bodies would be extended by one year to 
also include the audit of the accounts for 2017/18. 

3.2. The Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton, this appointment 
having been made under at a contract let by the Audit Commission. Following 
closure of the Audit Commission the contract is currently managed by Public 

Page 173

Item No.16



2 
 

Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), the transitional body set up by the 
LGA with delegated authority form the Secretary of State CLG. Over recent 
years the Council has benefited from reduction in fees in the order of 50% 
compared with historic levels. This has been the result of a combination of 
factors including new contracts negotiated nationally with the firms of 
accountants, savings from closure of the Audit Commission and changes in 
the volume of work following the Council’s housing transfer. The Council’s 
current external audit fees are £56,000 per annum.  

3.3. When the current transitional arrangements come to an end on 31 March 
2018 the Council will be able to move to local appointment of the external 
auditor. There are a number of routes by which this can be achieved, each 
with varying risks and opportunities. Current fees are based on discounted 
rates offered by the firms in return for substantial market share. When the 
contracts were last negotiated nationally by the Audit Commission they 
covered NHS and local government bodies and offered maximum economies 
of scale.  

3.4. The scope of the audit will still be specified nationally, the National Audit 
Office (NAO) is responsible for writing the Code of Audit Practice which all 
firms appointed to carry out the Council’s external audit must follow. Not all 
accounting firms will be eligible to compete for the work. They will need to 
demonstrate that they have the required skills and experience and be 
registered with a Registered Supervising Body approved by the Financial 
Reporting Council. The registration process has not yet commenced and so 
the number of firms is not known but it is reasonable to expect that the list of 
eligible firms may include the top 10 or 12 firms in the country, including our 
current auditor. It is unlikely that small local independent firms will meet the 
eligibility criteria.  

4.0 Options for local appointment of External Auditors 

4.1. There are three broad options open to the Council under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act): 

Option 1 To make a stand-alone appointment 

Option 2  Set up a Joint Auditor Panel/local joint procurement 
arrangements 

Option 3 Opt-in to a sector led body 

These options are considered below. 

4.2. Option 1: To make a stand-alone appointment the Council will need to set up 
an Auditor Panel. The members of the panel must be wholly or a majority 
independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for this 
purpose are independent appointees, this excludes current and former 
elected members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means 
that elected members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and 
choosing which firm of accountants to award a contract for the Council’s 
external audit. This auditor panel will be responsible for selecting the auditor 

 

 

Page 174



3 
 

Advantages/benefits 

a) Setting up an auditor panel allows the Council to take maximum 
advantage of the new local appointment regime and have local input to the 
decision. 

Disadvantages/risks  

a) Recruitment and servicing of the Auditor Panel, running the bidding 
exercise and negotiating the contract is estimated by the LGA to cost in 
the order of £15,000 plus on going expenses and allowances. 

b) The Council will not be able to take advantage of reduced fees that may 
be available through joint or national procurement contracts. 

c) There may be a limited number of bidders interested in the contract. 
d) The assessment of bids and decision on awarding contracts will be taken 

by independent appointees and not solely by elected members. 

4.3 Option 2:  Set up a Joint Auditor Panel/local joint procurement 
arrangements.  The Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 
establish a joint auditor panel. Again this will need to be constituted of wholly 
or a majority of independent appointees (members). Further legal advice will 
be required on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the 
obligations of each Council under the Act and the Council need to liaise with 
other local authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 

Advantages/benefits 

a) The costs of setting up the panel, running the bidding exercise and 
negotiating the contract will be shared across a number of authorities. 

b) There is greater opportunity for negotiating some economies of scale by 
being able to offer a larger combined contract value to the firms. 

Disadvantages/risks 

a) The decision making body will be further removed from local input, with 
potentially no input from elected members where a wholly independent 
auditor panel is used or possible only one elected member representing 
each Council, depending on the constitution agreed with the other bodies 
involved. 

b) The choice of auditor could be complicated where the auditor has recently 
or is currently carrying out work such as consultancy or advisory work for 
the Council. Where this occurs some auditors may be prevented from 
being appointed by the terms of their professional standards. There is a 
risk that if the joint auditor panel choose a firm that is conflicted for this 
Council then the Council may still need to make a separate appointment 
with all the attendant costs and loss of economies possible through joint 
procurement. 

4.4 Option 3: Opt-in to a sector led body.  In response to the consultation on 
the new arrangement the Local Government Association (“LGA”) successfully 
lobbied for Councils to be able to ‘opt-in’ to a Sector Led Body (SLB) 
appointed by the Secretary of State under the Act. An SLB would have the 
ability to negotiate contracts with the firms nationally, maximising the 
opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to procurement of 
external audit on behalf of the whole sector. 

Page 175



4 
 

Advantages/benefits 

a) The costs of setting up the appointment arrangements and negotiating 
fees would be shared across all opt-in authorities 

b) By offering large contract values the firms would be able to offer better 
rates and lower fees than are likely to result from local negotiation 

c) Any conflicts at individual authorities would be managed by the SLB who 
would have a number of contracted firms to call upon.  

d) The appointment process would not be ceded to locally appointed 
independent members. Instead a separate body set up to act in the 
collective interests of the ‘opt-in’ authorities. The LGA are considering 
setting up such a body utilising the knowledge and experience acquired 
through the setting up of the transitional arrangements. 

Disadvantages/risks 

a) Individual elected members will have less opportunity for direct 
involvement in the appointment process other than through the LGA 
and/or stakeholder representative groups. 

b) In order for the SLB to be viable and to be placed in the strongest possible 
negotiating position the SLB will need Councils to indicate their intention 
to opt-in before final contract prices are known.  

4.5 The Cumbria Chief Finance Officers considered these options at their meeting 
of 11 March 2016 and supported option 3 of the sector let body. 

5.0 Future Steps 

5.1. The Council have until December 2017 to make an appointment. In practical 
terms this means one of the options outlined in this report will need to be in 
place by spring 2017 in order that the contract negotiation process can be 
carried out during 2017. 

5.2. The LGA are working on developing a Sector Led Body. In a recent survey, 
58% of respondents expressed an interest in this option. The greatest 
economies of scale will come from the maximum number of councils acting 
collectively and opting-in to a SLB. In order to the strengthen the LGA’s 
negotiating position and enable it to more accurately evaluate the offering the 
Council is asked to consider whether it is interested in the option of opting in 
to a SLB. A formal decision to opt-in will be required at a later stage. 

6.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

6.1 Alternative options are detailed in the report above.  The Council have until 
December 2017 to make an appointment. In practical terms this means one of 
the options outlined in this report will need to be in place by spring 2017 in 
order that the contract negotiation process can be carried out during 2017. 

7.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

7.1 Being efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public. 

Page 176



5 
 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Financial and Resources 

8.1.1 Current external fees levels are likely to increase when the current contracts 
end in 2018.  

8.1.2 The cost of establishing a local or joint Auditor Panel outlined in options 1 and 
2 above will need to be estimated and included in the Council’s budget for 
2016/17 and 2017/18. This will include the cost of recruiting independent 
appointees (members), servicing the Panel, running a bidding and tender 
evaluation process, letting a contract and paying members fees and 
allowances.  

8.1.3 Opting-in to a national SLB provides maximum opportunity to limit the extent 
of any increases by entering in to a large scale collective procurement 
arrangement and would remove the costs of establishing an auditor panel. 

8.2 Human Resources 

8.2.1 There are no direct Human Resources implications of this report. 

8.3 Legal 

8.3.1 Section 7 of the Act requires a relevant authority to appoint a local auditor to 
audit its accounts for a financial year not later than 31 December in the 
preceding year. Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including 
that the authority must consult and take account of the advice of its auditor 
panel on the selection and appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides 
that where a relevant authority is a local authority operating executive 
arrangements, the function of appointing a local auditor to audit its accounts is 
not the responsibility of an executive of the authority under those 
arrangements; 

8.3.2 Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor: the 
authority must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the 
authority to appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local 
auditor on behalf of the authority.  

8.3.3 Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in 
relation to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This 
power has been exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a 
Sector Led Body to become the appointing person. 

 

 

 

 

 

8.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental   

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Page 177



6 
 

Impact Assessment? 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

The procurement of external auditors 
is a corporate governance issue and 
has no direct health social, economic 
or environmental impacts.   

 

8.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

The procurement of external auditors 
is a corporate governance issue and 
has no direct equality and diversity 
impacts. 

8.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council has no 
external auditors 
appointed by December 
2017 

Failure to meet statutory 
requirement; loss of 
reputation; requirement 
by Secretary of State to 
appoint external 
auditors. 

There is no immediate 
risk to the Council, 
however, early 
consideration by the 
Council of its preferred 
approach will enable 
detailed planning to take 
place so as to achieve 
successful transition to 
the new arrangement in 
a timely and efficient 
manner. 
Providing the LGA with 
a realistic assessment 
of our likely way forward 
will enable the LGA to 
invest in developing 
appropriate 
arrangements to support 
the Council. 

 

Page 178



7 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Helen Smith, Financial Services Officer, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

Audit Committee Update on 
Arrangements for External 
Audit 24 April 2014 

http://tinyurl.com/z3cbras  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

29/3/16 n/a 29/3/16 31/3/16 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 21/4/16 n/a 29/3/16 29/3/16 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

21 April 2016 

AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 

 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Cllr Stephen Coleman,  

Chairman of the Audit Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Not applicable (corporate issue) 

KEY DECISION: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to summarise the activities of the Committee during 
the current Council year. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee: - 

(1) consider the draft report; and 

(2) authorise the Chairman to submit it, with any agreed 
amendments, to Council. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The terms of reference of the Committee require the Council to report 
annually to Council on its work for the year.  As well as informing Councillors 
generally, the report will help to demonstrate the continuing effectiveness of 
the Committee. 

3.2 The attached draft report describes the Committee’s work during 2015/16, 
grouped under functional headings.  For completeness, agenda items for this 
meeting are included in the report on the assumption that they will be 
accepted: if necessary, changes will be made to reflect any different outcome.  
The Council year has been chosen for reporting purposes although this 
means that some cases, e.g. the internal audit annual report, does not fit the 
normal reporting cycle. 

Page 181

Item No.17



2 
 

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The Committee’s terms of reference require the Chairman to produce this 
report; its contents are subject to consideration by Members. 

5.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

5.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 This report has no financial implications. 

6.2 Human Resources 

6.2.1 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

6.3 Legal 

6.3.1 There are no legal implications of this report. 

6.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental   

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

This report is a corporate governance 
issue and has no direct health, social, 
economic or environmental impacts.   

 

6.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

This report is a corporate governance 
issue and has no direct equality or 
diversity impact.  

6.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

No discernible risks in 
this report. 

  

 

Page 182



3 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Helen Smith, Financial Services Officer, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Draft Audit Committee Annual Report 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

5/4/16 n/a 5/4/16 5/4/16 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 21/4/16 18/5/16 5/4/16 5/4/16 

Human 
Resources 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 183

mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



Appendix 1 
 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 
 

Chairman’s Foreword 
 
This is the ninth annual report of the Audit Committee and the eighth under my 
Chairmanship.   

The Committee’s role is to provide the Council and the public with independent assurance 
that it is operating securely and effectively within a sound governance framework.  The 
Committee’s brief covers risk management, performance management, governance and 
constitutional arrangements as well as traditional finance activities.  Our role is to oversee 
the management of those processes to ensure that robust procedures are in place without 
being involved in the detailed operation. 

Audit Committee Members take their role seriously and are committed to their work.  We set 
out a full annual work programme that is monitored at each meeting and revised as 
necessary.  We have been trained on a range of relevant subjects and understand the 
nature of local government audit.  

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  From May 
2012 the responsibility for the functions of the Accounts Committee transferred to the Audit 
Committee. 

The Committee’s terms of reference allow it to meet privately with External and Internal Audit 
(without council officers); earlier this year we had the seventh annual session with the two 
organisations to discuss topical issues.   

The Committee receives valuable support from both External and Internal Auditors, and 
enjoys a good working relationship with the respective Audit Managers.  All of their reports 
are presented to the Committee which pursues identified weaknesses in control systems to 
make sure that they are corrected.  In our experience, Council officers are receptive to the 
necessary changes and seek improvements wherever possible. 

I am pleased to present this report on behalf of the Committee.  It confirms the progress that 
we have made and that we continue to be an effective independent element of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  We know that Local Government doesn’t stand still and the 
Committee will continue to develop so that it is always able to anticipate and deal with new 
aspects of finance and governance. 

 
 
Councillor Stephen Coleman 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
April 2016

Page 185



Purpose of the Report 

This report summarises the work carried out by the Audit Committee during 2015/16.  It 
demonstrates to Council and stakeholders the effectiveness of the Committee in assessing 
and maintaining the organisation’s internal control environment and governance 
arrangements.  

Background 

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  As a result of 
the changes introduced by the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 which no longer 
required member approval of the draft Statement of Accounts, the Accounts Committee was 
discontinued with effect from the Annual General Meeting of Council in May 2012 and from 
that date the responsibility for the remaining functions of the Accounts Committee 
transferred to the Audit Committee 

The Terms of Reference for the Committee have been modelled on CIPFAi guidance and 
hence represent best practice.  A fully functioning Audit Committee needs to provide 
effective challenge across the Council’s activities together with independent assurance on 
the risk management framework and associated internal control environment to Members 
and the public and to demonstrate the impact of its work.  The Terms of Reference are 
reviewed annually with no changes required in 2015/16 to the amendments approved by 
Council on 11 December 2014. 

This is the ninth Annual Report of the Committee, covering the period from May 2015 to April 
2016.  This reporting timescale matches both the Council year and the external auditing 
cycle.   The Internal Audit annual report for 2015/16 will not be presented to the Committee 
until July 2016, however the regular progress reporting of internal audit activity enables the 
Committee to take an ongoing overview of its work. 

The Committee structures and plans its work around four main functional areas: external 
audit, internal audit, accounts and regulatory framework.  This report follows the same 
format in its summary of the year’s activities. 

The Committee 

Following the expansion of the duties of the Audit Committee to include the functions of the 
Accounts Committee the Committee has increased in size from five Councillors to seven.  All 
Councillors are independent of the Council’s Cabinet and the Committee membership is 
politically balanced.  Councillors Stephen Coleman and Pru Jupe have served as Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman since May 2008.  The Committee met on four occasions in 2015/16.   

The External and Internal Auditors, Responsible Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer are 
invited to all Committee meetings.  In addition its Members meet periodically with both Audit 
Managers to discuss topical issues without officers being present.  The Committee has the 
ability to seek attendance from any officer or Member of the Council and has exercised this 
right on several occasions. 

Training is an essential element for an Audit Committee.  The Committee have received 
training during the year on a number of issues. Additionally, Members have been updated on 
statutory accounting requirements and are alert to the possibility of areas in which their 
knowledge could be extended. 

The Committee has developed a structured work programme which maps out its activities on 
an annual basis.  This programme is supplemented by new requirements as they are 
identified.  Progress against the programme is monitored at each Committee meeting.  

Page 186



External Audit 

The Government changed the arrangements for the delivery of external audit for local 
government following the announcement of the abolition of the Audit Commission.  The 
external audit contract for the North West was awarded to Grant Thornton from September 
2012 for five years.   

The Audit Committee receives and approves the external auditor’s Annual Audit Plan.  It 
comments on the fee rates and work programme consultation carried out by Grant Thornton 
based on fees set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, the independent company set 
up by the Local Government Association with delegated statutory functions to set audit fees 
and make arrangements for certain audits.  Audit Committee receives the Annual Findings 
Report and the annual Grant Certification Report and monitors actions against the 
recommendations within these reports.  The Government have dropped the requirement of 
auditors to prepare a full Use of Resources assessment: instead a judgement is included in 
the Annual Governance Report indicating whether the Council has adequate arrangements 
to secure Value for Money in the use of resources.  The Annual Audit Letter summarised the 
auditor’s work for the year and opinion on the Council’s financial statements and value for 
money arrangements, as summarised later in this report. 

Internal Audit 

The Committee oversees the work of Internal Audit, a service provided by the Internal Audit 
Shared Service of Cumbria County Council (which incorporates the Internal Audit functions 
for Cumbria County Council, Carlisle City Council, Copeland Borough Council and Cumbria 
Police) since 1 April 2013, whose terms of reference are formally reviewed each year.  
These require the Auditor to carry out its work in accordance with the professional standards 
and good practice; from April 2013 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards replaced the 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit. 

At the beginning of the year the Committee approves the internal audit plan which sets out 
the individual audits to be carried out: coverage of the Council’s activities is informed by a 
risk-based audit needs assessment.  The plan includes an allowance for contingency items, 
provision of advice and audits requested by Members.   

Performance against the plan is monitored by formal progress reports to each Committee 
meeting, supplemented as necessary by verbal updates from the Internal Audit Manager.  
The Committee closely monitors the implementation of recommendations made by both 
External and Internal Audit. 

All individual audit reports are presented to the Committee.  During the 2015/16 year, 11 
reports were considered which recorded the following assurance levels:ii 

Assurance Level 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 

Substantial 2 3 0 

Reasonable 8 11 6 

Partial 1 3 1 

Limited/None 0 0 0 

Total 11 17 7 

 

Two reports were at draft stage at the end of the year and work was in progress on a further 
five audits. 

The Committee concentrates its attention on high priority recommendationsiii made in 
reports.  Where a report carries partial or limited assurance, the Committee has adopted the 
practice of requiring the relevant Assistant Director or Operational Manager to attend its next 

Page 187



meeting where appropriate to demonstrate that progress is being made in implementing its 
recommendations.  If necessary, Members have requested subsequent update reports.   

  

Investigations of potential frauds have been referred to Internal Audit where appropriate.  
Internal Audit also maintains a fraud hotline reporting service for the Council whereby 
members of the public and staff can raise concerns in complete confidence. 

The Internal Audit Manager presented her Annual Report for 2014/15 to the Committee in 
July 2015.  This summarised the results of her work during the year and contains her opinion 
of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment.  That 
opinion concludes that, for the systems reviewed, the Council has basically sound systems 
of control in place, although there are weaknesses that put some system objectives at risk.  
In the Internal Audit Manager’s experience, this profile of assurance is comparable with other 
local authorities.  The 2015/16 Annual Internal Audit Report will be prepared for the July 
2016 Committee meeting.  

In July 2015 the Committee considered a review of the effectiveness of the system of 
Internal Audit by reference to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and associated 
Local Government Application Note (LGAN).  This showed that the service was largely 
compliant with the relevant Code of Practice and concluded it was operating effectively. 

The Council’s Internal Auditors, the Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service, operate within a 
broad framework set by the contract between the two organisations. It is a requirement of 
the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards that the Council has an audit charter in 
place, which has been approved by senior management and the Audit Committee.  Key 
elements of the Charter are: 

 Reference to the mandatory nature of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 The functional reporting line of internal audit to the Audit Committee to maintain audit 
independence. 

 The requirement for internal audit to provide an annual opinion on the Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control. 

 Internal Audit’s right of access to all activities, premises, records, personnel, cash 
and stores as required to undertake agreed internal audit assignments. 

 The responsibility of the Head of Internal audit (the Group Audit Manager) to prepare 
an annual risk based audit plan for approval by senior management and the Audit 
Committee. 

 Certain specific responsibilities of the Head of Internal audit  
The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed annually and submitted for approval to the Audit 
Committee alongside the annual audit plan. 
 

Accounts  

Each year CIPFA updates the accounting requirements for statutory accounts by issuing a 
revised Code of Practice.  The Committee is informed of these changes by means of an 
informal training session and approves the resulting amendments to the Council’s 
Accounting Policies.  In April 2015 the Committee noted a draft set of Accounting Policies 
that would be applicable for the preparation of the 2014/15 Statement of Accounts.   

Changes to the Accounts and Audit Regulations no longer require member approval of the 
draft Statement of Accounts prior to its submission for audit.  Instead the Council’s Chief 
Finance Officer, the Assistant Director (Resources) approved the draft Statement by the 
statutory deadline of 30 June 2015.   

In September 2015 the Audit Committee received the Audit Findings Report from Grant 
Thornton, incorporating their draft opinion on the 2014/15 accounts, and approved the 
audited Statement of Accounts.  The auditors reported their intention to provide an 

Page 188



unqualified opinion on the financial statements.  Their key message was that the Council 
produced good quality financial statements that were free from material error.  Only 
disclosure amendments were required to the accounts and there were no major issues 
identified.   

In respect of the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money, Grant Thornton 
reported proper arrangements were in place to secure financial resilience for the Council for 
the foreseeable future and the Council has proper arrangements for challenging how it 
secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  The Council is prioritising its resources 
within tighter budgets and is challenging the way it delivers its services to ensure cost 
reductions are achieved, whilst maintaining service delivery.   

The Annual Audit Letter, reported to Audit Committee in December 2015 confirmed the audit 
conclusions in relation to 2014/15 were: 

 an unqualified opinion on the accounts which give a true and fair view of the 
Council's financial position as at 31 March 2015 and its income and expenditure for 
the year 

 an unqualified conclusion in respect of the Council's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

 an unqualified opinion on the Council's Whole of Government Accounts submission. 

Regulatory Framework 

Corporate Governance  

Following drafting work by the Audit Committee using a framework produced by CIPFA and 
SOLACEiv, Council approved a Local Code of Governance in May 2008.  The Committee 
reviews this Code annually but no changes were required in 2015/16. 

The Council is required to formally review its governance arrangements annually and the 
Committee carries out this work on its behalf.  This is achieved by the production of an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which is a far-reaching review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s governance, including departmental assurance statements and Internal Audit’s 
annual opinion report. 

Members of the Audit Committee sat on a Panel which examined and refined the 2014/15 
AGS before its adoption by the Leader and Chief Executive and inclusion in the Statement of 
Accounts.  The final Statement provides a thorough review of governance arrangements and 
for the first time identified no significant weaknesses.  Audit Committee members will revisit 
the subject when they will again play a leading role in preparing the 2015/16 AGS. 

The Audit Committee conducts an annual review of the Constitution.  During 2015/16 
substantial changes were made to improve the financial management and contract 
management processes of the Council including changes to reflect statutory changes in the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 

Fraud Prevention and Whistleblowing 

The promotion of fraud awareness is important to Audit Committee Members who encourage 
officers in their efforts; as a visible demonstration of this commitment, the Committee has 
introduced an annual report of anti-fraud activity, the first being presented in 2009.  The 
Committee received a review in December 2015 of activity up to that date. 

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy to ensure 
robust reporting and investigation arrangements where a fraudulent act is suspected.  The 
revised Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy was approved by Council in December 
2015. 

  

 

Page 189



Risk Management  

The Committee receives annual progress reports on the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.  The Committee maintains a risk register relating to its own activities and 
reviews this periodically.  The experience gained from the years of the Committee’s 
existence has enabled it to manage its risks effectively within its agreed risk appetite.   

Performance Management  

The Committee receives an annual progress report on the Council’s performance 
management arrangements.  The Committee received the annual review of the Performance 
Management Framework in April 2016. The framework describes how the Council monitors 
its performance and is intended to support the Council in developing and embedding a high 
performance culture to further enhance the quality of services for the people of South 
Lakeland. 

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

Officers from the Council used a checklist to test the effectiveness of the Committee 
produced by CIPFA as part of its Practical Guidance for Local Authority and Police Audit 
Committees in 2013.  The conclusion was that the Committee has been established in 
accordance with best practice and is operating effectively in all material respects. The 
Guidance includes suggested terms of reference for audit committees: as a result minor 
amendments to the Audit Committee terms of reference were approved by Council in 
December 2014.  No amendments were required for 2015/16. Minor weaknesses identified 
in past reviews have been recognised and addressed, including the introduction of separate 
meetings with the Internal and External Audit Managers; however Members need to be 
continually aware of areas in which they should be challenging the performance of the 
Cabinet and Council generally. 

Conclusions 

This Annual Report has summarised the work of the Committee over the last twelve months, 
indicating that it is functioning in accordance with best practice and providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements.  Committee Members believe that it is 
carrying out this role effectively, an opinion supported by the officer review. 

The Committee will continue to develop its role and impact through ongoing Member training 
and refinement of its work programme in order to meet future challenges.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 190



                                           
i
 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which sets standards for local 
government accounting and audit. 
 
 
ii
 Assurance levels given to individual audits by Internal Audit are: 

Substantial: There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the system 
objectives and this minimises risk. 

Reasonable: There is a reasonable system of internal control in place which should ensure 
that system objectives are generally achieved, but some issues have been 
raised which may result in a degree of risk exposure beyond that which is 
considered acceptable. 

Partial: The system of internal control designed to achieve the system objectives is 
not sufficient. Some areas are satisfactory but there are an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses which have been identified and the level of non-
compliance and / or weaknesses in the system of internal control puts the 
system objectives at risk. 

 
Limited / None:  Fundamental weaknesses have been identified in the system of internal 

control resulting in the control environment being unacceptably weak and 

expose the system objectives to a high degree of risk. 
 
iii
 Internal Audit report recommendations are prioritised as: 

High: Significant risk exposure identified arising from a fundamental weakness in 
the system of internal control; 

Medium: Some risk exposure identified from a weakness in the system of internal 
control; 

Advisory: Minor risk exposure/suggested improvement to enhance the system of 
control. 

 
iv
 The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers. 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 192



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

21 April 2016 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources & 
S151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: As above 

WARDS: Not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to Audit Committee to facilitate the annual review of 
the Audit Committee Risk Register.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee review the updated Audit 
Committee Risk Register. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Risk Register was last reviewed in July 2015 and has been brought back 
with that meeting’s recommendations included.  

Appendix 1 shows the risks previously identified for the Audit Committee and 
those which have been archived. These risks have been reviewed and 
archived during the period the Committee has existed.  These will continue to 
be reviewed annually. 

3.2 The Committee at its July 2015 meeting reviewed its two risks (AC1 and AC2) 
and identified two new risks (AC3 and AC4):   

3.2.1 RISK AC 1: The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to 
inexperience. This was archived on the 19/06/08, but resurrected as part of 
the review process at the 4 December 2014 Audit Committee. Although new 
appointments were made to the Committee for 2015 all members are now 
relatively experienced and had received training. In July 2015 the likelihood of 
this risk was reduced by one point.  

3.2.2 RISK AC 2:  This risk regards the ability of Audit Committee to carry out its 
functions effectively due to limited resources following Government changes 
to the funding of local government.  This risk is linked to the strategic risk 
around the Medium Term Financial Plan.  As a result of the future challenges 
facing local government this risk was identified as at the top of the scale for 
both likelihood and impact in July 2015. 

Page 193

Item No.18



3.2.3 RISK AC 3: Members identified the risk regarding the statutory timetable for 
final accounts reporting from the 2017/18 accounts being earlier than present.  
Although officers are already factoring this in, achieving quality accounts on 
time was a risk that Audit Committee needed assurance on. 

 The new deadlines will require the accounts for 2017/18 to be prepared and 
authorised by the Chief Finance Officer by the end of May 2018 and audited 
by the end of July 2018 which gives one month less for both the preparation 
and audit of the accounts.  Officers are aiming to complete a draft of the 
2015/16 accounts by the end of May 2016 with only checks to be completed in 
June 2016.  For 2016/17 the accounts will be completed and checked by the 
end of May 2017.  External Audit will monitor the delivery of these timescales 
and an update on progress for the 2015/16 accounts will be included in the 
report to Audit Committee with the Statement of Accounts in July 2016. 

3.2.4 RISK AC 4: External Auditor appointment.  The Council have until December 
2017 to make an appointment for external auditors when the current 
arrangements come to an end.  Previous appointments were made by the 
Audit Commission nationally and are currently overseen by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Ltd on behalf of the Secretary of State.  There is a report 
elsewhere on this agenda considering the options for the appointment of 
external audit. 

3.3 Previous risks that have been considered and archived are: 

RISK AC 001: Insufficient support/ backup provided to the committee: 
archived 19/6/08 
RISK AC 002: The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to 
inexperience: archived on the 19/06/08 
RISK AC 003: Officers do not recognise the importance of the Audit 
Committee: archived 10/2/11 
RISK AC 004: Members do not recognise the importance of Audit 
Committee: archived 10/2/11 
RISK AC 005: Perception that the Committee is too critical: archived 
10/2/11 
RISK AC 007: Significant changes to the membership In one year: 
archived 19/6/08 
RISK AC 008 Lack of indicators or measurable outcomes to enable the 
committee to demonstrate progress and contribution: archived 18/7/13 
RISK AC 009 The priority Significant Issues identified by Internal Audit are 
not addressed.   

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 No alternative options – risks should be reviewed and managed. 

5.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

5.1 Risk management activity underpins Council Plan activity 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 The proposed mitigations can be met within existing budgets.  

Page 194



6.2 Human Resources 

6.2.1 The proposed mitigations can be met from within the existing human 
resources available 

6.3 Legal 

6.3.1 There are no additional legal requirements. 

6.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental   

Have you completed a Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

The review of Audit Committee risks is 
a corporate governance issue and has 
no direct health, social, economic or 
environmental impacts.   

 

6.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

The review of Audit Committee risks is 
a corporate governance issue and has 
no direct equality or diversity impacts. 

6.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

No significant risks 
associated with this 
report. 

  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Shelagh McGregor, Chief Finance Officer SLDC 

01539 793112 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Committee Risk Register 

 

Page 195



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

My report n/a 7/4/16 7/4/16 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 31/4/16 n/a My report 7/4/16 

Human 
Resources 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 196



Appendix 1 
 

1 

Audit Committee Risk Register 
 

Report Author: Helen Smith/John Davies 

Generated on: 21.04.2016  Audit Committee 

 

 

The Risk matrix shows how risks are prioritised: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Committee Risks:  
 

2015/16 Risk Register/162015  
 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 1 The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant. The Audit Committee of the 
23/07 decided that this risk should be re-instated as 2 new 
members were added to the Committee at the 20 May 2015 
Annual Council. In July 2015 the likelihood was reduced 

reflecting the experience and training of the existing 
Committee members. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

 Provide suitable 

development 
opportunities to prepare 
Members to make an 
effective contribution. 

Action 

completed? 
Commenced Due Date 

 Throughout 

2015/16 Actioned 
Simon 
McVey 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

    

Low 

    

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

Priority risks which 
require mitigating 
controls and 

quarterly review 

Low priority risks 
which require annual 

review 

Page 197



Appendix 1 
 

2 

Risk No. & Title 

RISK AC 2 Audit Committee ineffective due to limited resources following Government 
changes to the funding of local government. 
 
Local authorities continue to face unprecedented challenges, relating to the pressures of 
austerity and central government funding reductions, and demographic and technological 
change. 

  

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

    X 

    

    

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 4 December 2014 added this risk. In July 
2015 the risk was amended to concentrate on the impact of 
funding cuts on Audit Committee.  The priority was changed to 
high likelihood and impact. 
This risk links to the Medium Term Financial Plan strategic 
risk. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

 Review as part of the 
updated MTFP reported 
to Cabinet and Council 

Action 

completed? 

Monitored 

as part of 

the 

Strategic 

Risk 

Register 

Due Date 
 To July 

Cabinet and 

Council 
Actioned 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

  

 

 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 3 The Council fail to meet the tighter timescales for the preparation of final accounts from 
2017/18 onwards. 

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Latest Note 

The new deadlines will require the accounts for 2017/18 to be 
prepared and authorised by the Chief Finance Officer by the end of 
May 2018 and audited by the end of July 2018 which gives one month 
less for both the preparation and audit of the accounts.  Officers are 
aiming to complete a draft of the 2015/16 accounts by the end of May 
2016 with only checks to be completed in June 2016.  For 2016/17 
the accounts will be completed and checked by the end of May 2017.  
External Audit will monitor the delivery of these timescales and an 
update on progress for the 2015/16 accounts will be included in the 
report to Audit Committee with the Statement of Accounts in July 
2016. 

Actions to 
control this 
risk 

 Review the 2015/16 
closedown 

Action 

completed? 
 Due Date 

Audit 

Committee 

July 2016 
Actioned 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 4 The Council fails to appoint external auditors in accordance with statutory requirements. 

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Latest Note 

The Council have until December 2017 to make an appointment for 
external auditors when the current arrangements come to an end.  
Previous appointments were made by the Audit Commission nationally 
and are currently overseen by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
on behalf of the Secretary of State.  There is a report elsewhere on 
this agenda considering the options for the appointment of external 
audit. 

Actions to 
control this 
risk 

Review the progress of the 
proposed sector-led 
procurement exercise 

Action 

completed? 
 Due Date 

During 

2016/17 Actioned 
Shelagh 
McGregor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 198



Appendix 1 
 

3 

Archived as agreed by previous Audit Committees 

Listed in order of Risk No. & Title 

 

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 001 Insufficient support/ backup provided to the committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant  

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 002 The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant. The Audit Committee of the 
23/07 decided that this risk should be re-instated as 2 new 
members were added to the Committee at the 20 May 2015 
Annual Council. This is included as a new risk below the line of 
tolerance. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

 Provide suitable 
development 
opportunities to prepare 
Members to make an 
effective contribution. 

Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 003 Officers do not recognise the importance of the Audit Committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 

this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 004 Members do not recognise the importance of Audit Committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



Appendix 1 
 

4 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 005 Perception that the Committee is too critical   

Risk 

Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 X   

    

    

Impact 
 

Latest 

Note 
Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 006 Insufficient capacity from Members to make the Committee effective   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 18/07/13 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 007 Significant changes to the membership In one year   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant  

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 008 Lack of indicators or measurable outcomes to enable the committee to 
demonstrate progress and contribution. 

  

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 18/07/13 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 009 The priority Significant Issues identified by Internal Audit are not addressed   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 4 December 2015 decided to archive this 
risk.  

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
 

Page 200


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	6 WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16
	7 WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
	8 REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND RISK PROCESS
	ITEM 8 PMF App 1
	ITEM 8 RM Process App 2

	9 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2015/16
	ITEM 9 AP 1516 App 1 Policies
	ITEM 9 AP 1516 App 2 Policies

	10 INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT
	ITEM 10 IA recs AGS PS progress report App 1

	11 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (No. 4)
	11a USE OF AGENCY AND INTERIM WORKERS
	11b TREASURY MANAGEMENT
	12 EXTERNAL AUDIT CERTIFICATION REPORT 2014/15
	13 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16
	14 EXTERNAL AUDIT FEE LETTER FOR 2016/17
	15 EXTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT
	16 CHANGES TO ARRANGEMENTS FOR APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR
	17 AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
	ITEM 17 AR App 1

	18 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER
	ITEM 18 AC Risk Register App 1


